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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

D e a r M em bers,

Your D irectors are delighted to  present the 18"'Annual Report 
on the business & operations o f the company together w ith the 
Audited Financial Statements & Accounts fo r the year ended on 
3 I "  March, 2011.

T E L E C O M  IN D U S T R Y  IN  IN D IA  

A N  O V E R V IE W

Telecommunications is pivotal to  a country ’s socio-economic 
grow th. It is one o f the main architects o f  the accelerated 
growth and progress o f different segments o f the economy. 
Narrow ing access gaps and removing barriers to  information 
dissem ination are p re requ is ites  fo r  p ro m o tin g  equitable 
and susta inab le  d e v e lo p m e n t as w e ll as p o lit ic a l and 
social cohesion. Increasing connectivity is highly instrumental 
in improving governance, business communications, security, 
response to  emergencies and in the overall strengthening o f 
the socio cultural ethos o f the country. The advantages o f the 
advent o f te lecom m unications are m anifold and exp lic itly  
verifiable from  the phenomenal success o f the sector.

The Indian te le co m m u n ica tio n s  in d u s try  is one o f the 
fastest grow ing in the w o rld . The indus try  has w itnessed 
con s is ten t g ro w th  du rin g  the  last year on the  back o f 
ro llo u t o f newer c ircles by opera to rs, successful auction 
o f th ird -g e n e ra tio n  (3G) and broadband w ire less access 
(B W A ) spe c tru m , n e tw o rk  ro l lo u t  in s e m i-ru ra l areas 
and increased focus on the  value added services (VAS) 
market.

A ccord ing  to  the Telecom Regulatory A u th o r ity  o f India 
(TRAI), the num ber o f te lephone subscriber base in the 
c o u n try  reached 846.32 m illio n  as on M arch 31, 2011, 
an increase o f 20.07 m illio n  subscribers . The w ire less 
subscriber base has increased to  811.59 m illio n  at the 
end o f M arch 201 [.T h e re  a re  564.08 m illio n  urban 
sub sc rib e rs  and ru ra l a re  283.23 m illio n  sub sc rib e rs  
taking te le density to  70.89% and w ireless te le density is 
67.98% . A p p ro x im a te ly  65 lakhs sub sc rib e rs  showed 
th e ir  in te res t in M obile N um ber Portab ility . Revenues o f 
the Indian Telecom sector grew by 7% to  Rs. 283,207 crore 
(US$ 63.8 m illion ) in the  2011 financial year. D uring  the 
previous fiscal year to ta l revenue o f the secto r stood at 
Rs. 264,669 crore.

Revenue fro m  va riou s  se rv ices  in the  Ind ian Telecom  
Industry grew to  Rs. 166 ,168 crore, up 14.9 per cent, in 2 0 10 -1 I 
fiscal year as against Rs. 144,600 c ro re  in the  prev ious 
financial year. The g row th  was purely driven by grow th  in 
subscriber base fo r various services.The maximum revenue in

the service sector o f the industry came from  the cellular 

services market which grew by 16.6 % to  Rs. 102,230 crore in 
financial year 201 I from  Rs.87680 crores in the previous 
fiscal year. Revenues from  fixed line continued to  decline both 
in terms o f number o f connections and revenues.

The bo om ing  do m e s tic  te le c o m  m a rk e t has been 
a ttrac ting  huge amounts o f investm ent which is like ly  to  
accelerate w ith  the e n try  o f new players and launch o f 
new services. According to  the Department o f Industrial Policy 
and P ro m o tio n  (D IPP), the  te le com m u n ica tion s  sec to r 
inc ludes ra d io  paging, m ob ile  serv ices and basic 
telephone services. As per an industry re p o rt the telecom 
in d u s try  w itn esse d  m e rg e r and a c q u is it io n  (M & A ) 
deals. T he re  w ere  10 inbound, ou tbou nd  and dom estic  
M &A deals in the  te lecom  s e c to r du ring  the  f irs t  nine 
months o f the current fiscal year. The biggest M&A deal in the 
s e c to r was made by te le c o m m u n ic a tio n s  serv ice  
p ro v id e r  th ro u g h  th e  a c q u is it io n  o f m o b ile  serv ices 
operations in 15 countries. The deal involved a transaction of 
US$ 10.7 billion.

The Indian telecom  industry manufactures a vast range o f 
telecom equipment using state-of-the-art technology.

The exponential g row th  witnessed by the te lecom  sector 
in the  past decade has led to  the  deve lopm ent o f .the 
te lecom  equ ipm en t m anufacturing  indus tries  and o th e r 
su p p o rtin g  in du s tries . W ith  adven t o f ne x t gene ra tion  
techno log ies and op e ra to rs  lo ok in g  to  ro l l o u t 3G and 
broad band w ire less excess service, the demand fo r  the 
te lecom  equipm ent is set to  increase g igantically in the 
times to  come.

Telecom as a service industry alone could no t continue to  
con tribu te  to  the cou n try ’s GDP at the current level. The 
economy can grow  only when the manufacturing industry grows. 
The focus has been shifted from  im port-cen tric  industry to  
global telecom equipment manufacturing hub.The im ports are 
de c lin in g  and no w  Ind ia is fo u r th  te le co m  eq u ipm en t 
manufacturer in the Asia Pacific region. It is a very heartening 
and healthy trend that many Multinational Companies have set 
up domestic manufacturing facilities like Huawei, NSN, Alcatel 
Lucent and Z te . The C o u n try  is no t on ly emerging as a 
manufacturing hub but is also planning to  increase its telecom 
exports each year.

E X P O R T S

Your Company is exporting Telecommunication products and 
systems to  various countries worldw ide.

The Export revenue is growing on yearly basis. In the recent 
past the company has completed some major In-building projects



in different countries.The Company has taken Turnkey Projects 
w orldw ide , which include the survey, planning, installation, 
commissioning etc. W e have appointed more than 50 Agents/ 
D istributors/ Value Added Resellers worldw ide. In the recent 
past we have been short listed as a preferred supplier fo r many 
operators in Europe, Africa, Latin America, etc.

The product was approved and the company has got the big 
o rd e r by one o f the biggest o p e ra to r in USA i.e. Verizon 

W ireless.

W e are planning to  open few new offices in different strategic 
locations from  where we can cover areas o f our expecting 
business.

F O R E IG N  D IR E C T  IN V E S T M E N T

The liberalization on the Foreign D irect Investment fro n t has 
stimulated the telecom secto rg row th as FDI in telecom projects 
is allowed from  74% to  100%. In case o f telecom operators, FDI 
is allowed upto 74% and 26% has to  be the Indian shareholding. 
FDI upto 49% is on the Autom atic Route and beyond that on the 
government Route. The telecom operators had invested huge 
money on telecom infrastructure over the past few years in 
expanding th e ir  n e tw o rk  m ore than 90% th rou gh ou t the 
country.

Telecom is considered to  be highly potential fo r investments 
and upcoming industries.

F U T U R E  IN  T E L E C O M

Telecom growth story w ill be a function o f the enhanced demand 
fo r  high speed broadband and data services fro m  bo th  
enterprises and consumers. The growth in the India domestic 
mobile handsets market w ill be fueled by a more than 150% 
increm ent in the value o f feature phones and smartphones 
shipped, from  Rs.50,714 crore  in 2010 to  Rs.1,28,729 crore in 
2 0 l4 .lt is also said that the India Telecom services sector may 
see policy changes that could result in market consolidation 
over the next few years.

The m ajor grow th  drivers fo r  the telecom  services sector 
segments would be the launch and ro ll-ou t o f 3G and BW A/ 
W iM ax /LTE services and the consequent growth in usage of 
high speed broad band, VAS and data services. Establishment of 
3G and BW A (W IM A X  and long evaluation LTE) w ill have a 
positive im pact on the India M arket; however, broad band 
content w ill remain in early stages o f development through 
2011, CMR. In terms o f broadband content, 2011 & 2012 w ill 
witness early stages o f development. However, as W iM ax / LTE 
services gain in popu larity , con ten t c rea tion  and m obile 
app lica tion  deve lopm ent w ill w itness increased focus by 
vendors, developers and service providers looking to  build the ir 
ow n p o r t fo l io  o f  un ique ‘apps’ . A lso , m ob iles handsets 
w ill w itness a high g ro w th  ra te  o f 26.2 pe rcen t CAG R

over the period 2010- 2014 to  touch Rs. 1,28,729 C ro re  
in 2014. S m artphone  m a rk e t to  g ro w  to  o v e r lOmn 
units in 2011- 2012. The Smartphones m arket in India is 
expected to  g ro w  year by year. The A n d ro id  O pera ting  
System w ill continue to  gain acceptance as a mode operating 
system (OS) and 12 percen t o f all sm artphones shipped 
in India du ring  201 I are expected  to  be based on the 
Android platform.

S T R E N G H T H S  O F  IN D U S T R Y

Ind ia  has all the  m akings o f a g lob a lly  c o m p e tit iv e  
te le c o m  M a n u fac tu ring  and R&D d e s tin a tio n . This is 
evident from:

•  A  large and booming domestic market w ith Indian operators 
reaching ou t to  the global market providing w ider access 
to  Indian telecom companies.

•  S trong management experience in c ritica l functions 
such as SCM, high tech manufacturing systems, working 
capital managerhent, value chain w ith  EMS companies, 
captive facilities o f MNCs (willing to  invest further in India), 
auxiliary component manufacturing base (e.g., fo r cables, 
cabinets, shelves, p o w e r e lec tron ics , to o lin g , bare 
PCBs, etc.).

•  Strong technical and R&D workforce having experience in 
R&D centers o f M NC companies, IT service companies 
doing telecom projects, strong academic and research labs 
and an increasing number o f Indians who are returning 
back from  USA/Europe.

•  Skilled & trained shop flo o r w ork fo rce  fo r  electronics 
c irc u it assembly, testing and in tegra tion  from  w idely 
available resources from  Industrial Training Institutes and 

Polytechnics.

•  Cost advantage arising from  low er manufacturing plant 
establishment cost and competitive labor costs.

•  Availability o f capital from  a well established financing 
industry as well as private equity network.

•  Exports growth at 25 percent CAGR over next 5 years, 
reaching over USD 10 Billion.

•  Domestic telecom products grow th o f 18 percent CAGR 
over next 5 years.

•  E m p loym en t g e n e ra tio n  (d ire c t  and in -d ire c t)  o f 
20 million

•  A t least 70 percent o f Indian domestic telecom needs are 
met by products manufactured in India.

•  H andse t and o th e r  D a ta  P rod uc ts  im p o rts  and 
manufacturing has become a very big market in India. India 
is the largest im porter o f Handsets &  Data Products in the 
world.



SHvnm
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C O M P A N Y ’S O V E R V IE W

Your company is a com p le te  te lecom  so lu tion  provider. 
Your company offers an entire suite o f both in-building and 
o u td o o r  R epeaters and DAS P roduc ts . Y our com pany 
offers a w ide range o f band selective repeaters from  low  
po w e r up to  ve ry  high po w e r available in a single, dual 
and tri-band version allowing any frequency combination in 
2G,3G & LTE Technology.

Your company also deals in In- building solutions & state o f the 
a rt Turnkey projects. The company has penetrated the GSM & 
C D M A markets.

LTE is the brand name fo r emerging and developed technologies 
tha t com prise the existing 3G and 4G networks. The LTE 
specification provides downlink peak rates o f at least 100 Mbps, 
an uplink o f at least 50 Mbps and RAN round-trip times o f less 
than 10 ms. LTE supports scalable carrier bandwidths, from  1.4 
MHz to  20 MHz and supports both frequency division duplexing 
(FDD) and tim e division duplexing (TDD).

Your company has been a proven supplier o f the Telecom 
Equipment to  Telecom Equipment Manufacturers like Huawei, 
Ericsson, Nokia, etc. and Telecom Service Providers like Aircel, 
Vodafone, MTS, Idea, etc. Service providers are going big way in 
In-Building solution where your company is one o f the leading 

solution providers.

In International Market, your Company has marked its presence 
in Asia Pacific, USA, Europe and Russia.The Company has also 
been successful in procuring big orders from  Latin America fo r 
repeaters. Your Company also got the product approved from  
operators in N o rth  & South America and is also testing various 
products w ith  major operators in Europe.

The com pany in tro d u c e d  3G T ri band R epeaters, 4G 
Repeaters and 450 M Hz (TETRA) O p tica l Repeaters in 
the last financial year and now planning to  introduce Indoor 

Repeaters w ith  new technology Processors. W e have also 
launched the W eb based application in o u r existing NMS 
(N e tw ork  Management System). Company also designed some 
new low  cost products to  meet the custom er and market 
requirements.

The company is currently working on the IP based software 
feature which w ill fasten the application o f products and make it 
more user friendly.

The m ajor con tribu tion  to  the top  line is from  dealing in 
C D M A  Handsets and Accessories. W e are the  N a tiona l 
supplier o f Handsets and Accessories fo r the retail market for 
an op e ra to r and are active ly w o rk ing  w ith  o th e r Service 
Providers to  s ta rt relationship w ith  them. The company is 
im porting these from  the top  handset manufacturers o f the 
w o rld  like LG, Samsung, ZTE, etc. The company would be

introducing a range o f new handsets and accessories in the 
market in the coming years.

F IN A N C IA L  P E R F O R M A N C E
(Rupees in Lacs)

P A R TIC U LA R S

Financial 

Year 

2010-2011

Financial
Year

2 0 09 -201 0

Sales and Services 68314.69 29329.75

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 377.09 (655.90)

Provision fo r Income Tax

C urrent Tax 90.13 -

Deferred Tax (48.60) (209.18)

MAT Credit available fo r set off 12.92 -

Wealth Tax 0.88 1.07

Income Tax/ Deferred Tax (60.14) -

fo r earlier year

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 381.90 (447.79)

O P E R A T IO N S

During the period under review your company has registered a 
turnover of Rs. 683.15 crore against Rs. 293.30 crore in the year 
2009-2010. A  net p ro fit o f Rs. 3.82 cro re  has been made 
during this period as against a loss o f Rs. 4.48 crore in the previous 
period.The year to  year increase in the tu rnove r is 132.92%,

D IV ID E N D

The Board considering prudent to  conserve resources fo r 
investments in business, regrets its inability to  recommend any 
dividend fo r the year ended 3 1"  march 201 I .

S U B S ID IA R Y

The Company has only one subsidiary viz. Shyam Telecom Inc, 
USA and therefore as per Section 212 o f the Companies Act, 
1956, the reports  and Aud ited Accounts o f the subsidiary 
company along w ith  the statement from  the part of Annual 
Report. The subsidiary being near to  the customers is able to  
provide the end to  end support to  the customers.The subsidiary 
has appointed the local manpower so that it can fully understand 
the customer requirements and can provide the best solutions. 
Subsidiary also provides the logistic benefits which helps in 
quick delivery o f products at the customer end.

There has been a change in the financial year o f the subsidiary as 
it observe financial year commencing from  1st January to  31st 
December in place o f 1st A pril to  31st March. Accordingly, 
Accounts enclosed are only fo r the period o f nine months i.e. 
from  I St April 2 0 10 to  3 1 st December 2010.
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P U B L IC  F IX E D  D E P O S IT

The company has no t accepted deposits from  Public under 
Sec S8A o f the Companies A c t 19S6.

D IR E C T O R S

In accordance w ith  the provisions o f Sec 2S6 o f the Companies 
A c t, I9S6 and A rc tic le s  o f A ssoc ia tion  o f the  company, 
Mr. N. Kumbhat, Mr.Vinod Juneja and Mr. C.S Malhotra, Directors 
o f the company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves fo r re- appointment. 
Their brief profile has been stated in the corporate Governance 

Report.

Mr. Ravikant Jaipuria ceased to  be the director w.e.f 11.02.2011 

D IR E C T O R S  R E S P O N S IB IL IT Y  S T A T E M E N T

In terms o f the provision o f Section 2 17(2AA) of the Companies 
Act, I9S6, you r d irec to rs  confirm  that;

i) In the preparation o f the Annual Accounts, the applicable 
Accounting Standards had been followed along w ith proper 
explanation re la ting to  m aterial departures w herever 
necessary.

ii)  The D irec to rs  had selected such Accounting Policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to  give a true and fair 
view  o f the state o f affairs o f the company at the end o f 
financial year 2010-11 and o f the p ro fit/ loss o f the company 
fo r the year ended on tha t date;

iii)  The D irec to rs  had taken p rope r and sufficient care fo r  
th e  maintenance o f adequate A ccounting Records in 
accordance w ith the provisions o f this A ct fo r safeguarding 
the assets of the company and fo r preventing and detecting 
fraud and o th e r irregularities.

iv) The D irec to rs  have prepared the Annual Accounts on a 
going concern basis.

A U D IT O R S

M/s Mehra Goel & Co., Chartered Accountants, the re tiring  
A ud ito rs  o f you r company expressed th e ir  w illingness to  
continue as auditors, if re- appointed at the Annual General 
Meeting to  hold the office until the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting.The Company has received from the Auditors a 
certificate to  this effect that their appointment, if made, would be 
w ith in  the prescribed lim it under Section 224(1-8) o f the 
Companies Act, I9S6.

A U D IT O R ’S R E P O R T A N D  C L A R IF IC A T IO N

The notes to  the accounts in A u d ito rs ' R e po rt are self 
exp la na to ry  excep t the  fo llo w in g  w hereby management

response to  qualifications/observations made in Annexure 
to  the A ud ito rs ’ Report is stated as under.

( i )  Po in t 8 o f A n n exu re  to  A u d ito rs  R epo rt

The observation expressed is purely statement o f fact 
wherein it  is stated tha t they have no t and are not 
required to  carry ou t the examination o f cost records 
and accounts.

( i i)  Po in t 9 o f A n n exu re  to  A u d ito rs  R ep o rt

The delays are very nominal and due to  mismatch o f 
cash inflows, but on the date o f the A ud ito rs  Report 
all such dues have been paid and regularized.

P A R T IC U L A R S  O F  C O N S E R V A T IO N  O F  ENER G Y, 
A B S O R P T IO N  O F  T E C H N O L O G Y  A N D  F O R E IG N  
E X C H A N G E  E A R N IN G S  A N D  O U T G O

The information relating to  conservation of energy, as required 
under Section 217(1 )(e) of the Companies Act, 19S6 read with the 
Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of 
D irectors) Rules, 1988, is annexed and form  the part of this 
Report.

P A R TIC U LA R S  O F  T H E  EM PLOYEES

In compliance w ith  the provisions o f Section 2 I7 (2A ) o f the 
Companies Act, I9S6, read w ith  Companies (Particulars of 
Employees) Rules, 197S, statement of particulars o f employees has 
no t been given as none o f the employee during the financial 
year drew  rem uneration m ore than Rs. S Lacs per month o r 
Rs. 60 Lacs per annum.

IN D U S T R IA L  R E L A T IO N S

Relations with the Employees remain cordial and your Directors 
wish to  place on record the ir appreciation o f the co-operation 
and con tribu tion  made by the employees at all levels.

C O R P O R A T E  G O V E R N A N C E

A  Report on Corporate Governance as required under Clause 
49 of the Listing Agreement, as applicable, form the part of this 
re p o rt.

M A N A G E M E N T  D IS C U S S IO N  A N D  A N A LY S IS

A  report on Management Discussion and Analysis as required under 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, as applicable, form the part of 
th is repo rt.

C O N S O L ID A T E D  F IN A N C IA L  S T A TE M E N TS

In acco rdance  w ith  A c c o u n tin g  S tandard 21, A u d ite d  
Consolidated Financial Statements have been attached which 

form  the part o f this report and accounts.
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Dr. V inod  Juneja 

Mr. Praveen K. Bhatia 

M r C.S. M alhotra  

M r.A ru n  Khanna

C O M P O S IT IO N  O F  A U D IT  & F IN A N C E  C O M M IT T E E

Disclosure pursuant to  the provisions o f Section 292A o f the 
Companies Act, 19S6, the Aud it & Finance Committee o f the 
Company consists of:

M r.A ch in tya  K ara ti - Independent D ire c to r  & Chairm an

Mr. N arendra  K um bhat - Independent D ire c to r  & M em ber

Mr. Ravikant Ja ipuria* - Independent D ire c to r  & M em ber

- Independent D ire c to r  & M em ber

- Independent D ire c to r  & M em ber

- Independent D ire c to r  & M em ber

- N on  Executive D ire c to r  & M em ber

Mr. D harm ender D h ing ra - V ice P resident (Legal) & Com pany Secretary. 

*M r. Ravikant Jaipuria has ceased to  be D ire c to r  w .e.f. I 1.02.201 I.

A C K N O W L E D G M E N T

Your D irectors acknowledge w ith gratitude the co-operation 
rece ived fro m  Bankers, C e n tra l and State G ove rnm en t 
Departments, Local Authorities and Customers for their continued 
guidance and support.

Your Directors also convey their gratitude to  the Shareholders, 
Statutory Aud itors and Employees o f the company fo r the ir 
commitment and support which has contributed to  the growth and 
success of the company.

On Behalf o f the Board o f D irectors of 
S H Y A M  T E L E C O M  L IM IT E D

PLACE: NEW  DELHI 
DATE : I S t  August, 2 0 1 I

Sd/-
RAJIV M E H R O T R A

Chairman & Managing D irecto r

ANNEXURESTO DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT

A N N E X U R E -1

S T A T E M E N T  O F  PA R TIC U LA R S  W IT H  RESPECT T O  
C O N S E R V A T IO N  O F  E N E R G Y , A B S O R P T IO N  O F  
T E C H N O L O G Y  A N D  F O R E IG N  E X C H A N G E  
E A R N IN G S  A N D  O U T G O  IN  A C C O R D A N C E  W IT H  
T H E  C O M P A N IE S  (D IS C LO S U R E  O F  PARTICULARS  
IN  T H E  R EPO R T O F  T H E  B O A R D  O F  D IR E C T O R S ) 
RULES, 1988 ARE G IV E N  H ER E IN  B ELO W :

C O N S E R V A T IO N  O F  E N E R G Y

(a ) Energy Conservation measures taken:

•  All high-energy lighting is controlled to  switch off with
manual switches, thus consuming energy only during 

essential periods.

•  Employment of highly efficient low power consuming 
m anufacturing equipm ent e.g. SMT, Progressive 
Assembly, Conveyer Belt system and utilizing state 
of-the art technology.

•  Factory layout helps to  utilize daylight for illumination 
in w o rk in g  areas and passages, thus reducing 
substantially the consumption o f electrical energy.

•  Use o f programmable and high efficiency power supply 
units for our equipment consumes less power than 
other power supplies.

•  Use o f automatic power fector correction panel for 
energy conservation.

•  For lightening purpose, only CFL tubes are used. New 
purchasing o f power equipments with Power Saver 
Ratings have applied.

•  Installed automatic voltage regulator fo r maintaining 
electricity voltage enabling to  reduce consumption of 
energy units

•  All soldering workstation are automated, if not in use 
it goes in idle mode.

•  Employer Awareness has generated to  conserve 
electricity/ power.

(b ) A d d it io n a l in v e s tm e n ts  and pro po sa ls , if  any, 
being im p lem ented  fo r reducing consum ption of 
energy:
A  con tinuous study is being made on measures to  
conserve energy and several new measures are under 
implementation.

(c ) Im pact o f measures a t (a) and (b ) above:
By high level of integration and automation in the manufeauring 

process cycle, saving in the energy/fuel consumption has been 
achieved which definitely an impact on production cost.

DISC LO SU R E O F PARTICULARS W IT H  RESPECT T O  
A B S O R P T IO N  O F T E C H N O L O G Y :

W ith  its established in-house Research and Developm ent 
D epa rtm en t, Shyam has b u ilt its  re p u ta tio n  w ith  its 
customers by offering a winning combination o f sophisticated 
technical expertise, innovative design and high volume manufacturing. 

W e understand the econom ic and com petitive  pressures 
o f the rapidly growing Telecom Market and have responded 
to  this w ith  the on-going development program to  increase 
overall value to  ou r customers. Efforts are being made to  
hire highly qualified and experienced personnel in the said 
Department, to further enhance the quality o f work, processes and 
products fo r this could come out to  be another step towards 
customer satisfection and thus in-turn capturing more share in the 
market.



T E C H N O L O G Y  A B S O R P T IO N , A D A P T A T IO N  A N D  
IN N O V A T IO N  :

E ffo rts , in b r ie f, m ade to w a rd s  
Technology absorp tion, adaptation, 
and Innovation .

Benefits derived  as the  re s u lt o f 
th e  above e ffo r ts , e.g. p ro d u c t 
Im p ro v e m e n t,  c o s t re d u c t io n , 
p r o d u c t  d e v e lo p m e n t, im p o r t  
substitu tion , etc.

In case o f lm p o r t in g (  im p o r te d  
d u rin g  th e  last Syears reckoned  
f r o m  th e  b e g in n in g  o f  th e  
in fo rm a tio n ) may be fu rn ished:

(a) Technology im po rte d .

(b) Year o f im p o r t

(c) Has te c h n o lo g y  been fu l ly  
absorbed?

(d) If  n o t fu lly  abso rbed  areas 
w here  th is has n o t taken place, 
reasons th e re fo re  and fu rth e r 
plans o f  action .

The com m ercialization o f in-house 
deve loped techno logy has been 
d o n e  to  p ro v id e  enh a n ced  
in f ra s t ru c tu re  m a na g e m en t 
Technical up-gradation has been 
done w ith  unstinted e ffo rts  o f Its 
R & D  w h ic h  has lead to  to ta l  
C o n tro l o f  Technology.

Increased the  range o f p ro d u c t 
like  3G, 4G and te tra  repea te r 
p rod u c ts . O ffe rings to  dom estic  
and In ternational cus tom ers.W ith  
co n tinuous e ffo rts , the  benefits 
derived  are namely coverage o f 
area along w ith  cost R eduction. 
P roducts g o t approved by various 
o p e ra to rs  w o rld w id e .

O p t im u m  u t i l i z a t io n  o f  
in d ig e n o u s ly  d e v e lo p e d
techno logy is done so as to  ca te r 
the  m arke t w ith  b e tte r features 
in te rm s  o f  coverage and co s t 
effectiveness, since it  has inversely 
affected European coun tries  and 
also china in te rm s  o f bo th  price 
and perfo rm ance.

F O R E IG N  E X C H A N G E  E A R N IN G S  A N D  O U T G O :

I ) A c tiv itie s  re la tin g  to  exp o rts , in itia tives  tak en  to  
increase e x p o r ts , d e v e lo p m e n t o f new  e x p o r t  
m a rk e ts  fo r  p ro du cts  and services and ex p o rts  
plans:

The company has added Tri-Band RF & Optical Repeaters 
in ex is ting  p ro d u c t range w ith  new features such as 
SNMF p ro to c o l,  sleep m ode, o s c illa tio n  d e te c tio n , 
p o te n t ia l fre e  con tacts  etc. A ll o u r repeaters have 
advance features where the  o p e ra to rs  can R em ote ly 
M o n ito r  and C o n tro l v a rio u s  p a ra m e te rs  fro m  a 
centra l location.

The exports has increased due to  increasing demand of 
Repeaters and Accessories in various countries across the 
globe inc lud ing  USA, Turkey, Fortuga l, Spain, Russia, 
Argentina, France, Bulgaria, Italy, Bahrain, Indonesia, Nigeria, 
Ghana and many more, outpacing the ir competitors like 
Chinese and European Companies in te rm s o f price, 
performance and services.The company has also done 
several trials with software customisation fo r TNM (Malawi) 
& Vodafone.

During the period under review the product of the Company 
are being used in more than 12 networks worldwide. The 
company has also got favorable response by participating in 
exhib itions in N o rth  and South America, Europe, South 
East Asia and the Indian Subcontinent.

2 ) Total foreign exchange used:

a) Total Foreign Exchange Used (Rs. in Lacs)

- Travelling 72.89

- Business From otion 28.08

- Commission 22.32

- Exhibition Expenses 163.92

- Froduct Certification Charges 40.58

- Legal ,Frofessional and consultancy

Charges 30.47

- Raw Material 2,883.69

- Communication Systems & Accessories 327.74

- Capital Goods 63.03

- Mobile Handsets & accessories 60,628.69

b) Incom e in Foreign C urrency (Rs. in Lacs)

- F.O.B.Value o f Export Goods 1,702.71

- F.O.B.Value o f Export Service 6.88



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 2010-201 I
C O M P A N Y ’S P H IL O S O P H Y

The philosophy on corpora te governance envisages the attainment o f transparency, accountability and equity in all facets o f its 
operation and all its interactions w ith  its stakeholders, including shareholders, employees and lenders.

The company believes all its actions and operations must serve the underlying goal o f enhancing overall shareholder value, over a 
sustained period o f time.

The comm itm ent to  adhere to  corporate governance principles not just in le tte r but in spirit, permeates through every level o f the 
company.

Driven by an active, independent and participative Board, the company is to ta lly committed to  timely and comprehensive disclosures, 
transparent accounting policies and high levels o f integrity.

B O A R D  O F  D IR E C T O R S

(A ) C O M P O S IT IO N  O F  B O A R D

In compliance w ith  Clause 49 (l)(A) o f the Listing Agreement, the Board comprises o f three Executive D irectors & Six Non- 
Executive D irectors o f whom Five are Independent Directors. The Chairman o f the Board is an Executive D irecto r and in 
compliance w ith  said clause more than half o f the Board comprises o f Independent Directors. All the members o f Board are 
highly experienced professional drawn from  the field o f business, finance and public enterprises.

N a m e o f th e  
D ire c to r

C ategory Designation N u m b e r of 
Directorships  
held in o th er  
Com panies

N u m b e r of 
m em berships in 
C o m m itte es  of 

th e  Board o f 
O th e r  Com panies

N u m b e r of 
Chairm anship in 
C o m m itte es  of 

th e  Board of 
O th e r  Com panies

Rajiv M eh ro tra Prom oter & Chairman &
Executive Managing

D ire c to r
4 - -

A jay Khanna Prom oter & 
Executive

Managing
D ire c to r

3 2 -

AlokTandon Prom oter & 
Executive

Managing
D ire c to r

3 2 -

Achintya Karati Independent D ire c to r 7 7 -

V inod ju n e ja Independent D ire c to r 4 - -

Praveen K um ar B hatia Independent D ire c to r 1 - -

C.S. M alhotra Independent D ire c to r - - -

N aren d ra  K um bhat Independent D ire c to r 3 - -

A run  Khanna Non Executive D ire c to r 1 - 2

’"Ravi K ant Jaipuria Independent D ire c to r 7 - -

(*Mr.Ravikant Jaipuria has ceased to  be a D irecto r w.e.f. I 1.02.201 I)

NCjTES;

1. Number o f o ther Directorships and Com m ittee membership indicated above is exclusive o f Private Limited Companies, 
Foreign Companies, Companies under Section 25 o f the Companies Act, 1956 and only tw o  committees viz.. A ud it Committee 
and Shareholders’ Grievance Com m ittee are considered.

2. None o f the D irec to r is a member o f more than ten committees o r act as a chairman o f more than five committees across all 
companies in which he is a Director.

3. Mr.Ajay Khanna and M r.Arun Khanna are related to  each others as brothers.
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4. Shareholding o f D irectors fo r  the period ending as 
on 31" March, 2 0 11 is as follows.

N a m e  o f th e  D ire c to r

Rajiv M ehrotra 
Ajay Khanna 
A lok Tandon 

Arun Khanna 
Narendra Kumbhat 

Ravikant Jaipuria 
Achintya Karati 
Dr.Vinod Juneja 

P. K. Bhatia 

C. S. Malhotra

N o . o f Shares held 
as on 3 1“ M arch, 201 I

5260S
4SI8

I7S70
490
Nil

Nil
Nil

402
Nil
Nil

( ii)  B O A R D  M E E T IN G S

•  During the financial year 2 0 10-201 I , the Board met four 
times on the following dates in compliance w ith Section 
28S o f the Companies Act, I9S6 and Clause 49 o f the 
Listing Agreement:

1. 30" April, 2010

2. 30" July, 2010

3. 29" October, 2010

4. I I "  February, 2011

Attendance o f each Director at Board Aleet/ngs and Last Annual 
General Meeting

N a m e  o f  
th e  D ire c to r

N u m b e r  o f  
B o a rd  

M e e tin g s  
A t te n d e d

P rese nce  a t  th e  
S e v e n te e n th  A n n u a l 

G e n e ra l M e e tin g  
h e ld  o n  2 7 "  

S e p te m b e r, 2010 
a t  Ja ipu r, R a jas than .

Rajiv M e h ro tra 2 N O

A ja y  Khanna 4 YES

A lo k  Tandon 4 YES

A ru n  Khanna 4 YES

N a re n d ra  K u m b h a t 4 YES

Ravi K a n t Ja ipuria - N O

A c h in ty a  K a ra ti 4 N O

V in o d  Juneja 4 N O

Praveen ku m a r Bhatia 3 N O

C.S. M a lh o tra 4 N O

•  In accordance w ith  Clause 49 o f the Listing Agreement, 
the requisite information was placed before the Board 
and was also made a part o f the minutes o f the meeting o f 
the Board.

•  A il the pecuniary relationship o r transactions o f the Non 
Executive D irectors vis-a-vis the company, if any, have 
been disclosed in the Financial Statements o f the company 
fo r the year ended 3 1"  March, 2011. (Refer N o te  No. 9 o f 
Schedule IS form ing part o f Accounts).

(C ) B O A R D  PRO CESS

It has always been the company’s policy and practice that 
apart from  matters requiring Board’s approval by statute, all 
major decisions including quarterly results o f the company, 
financial res truc tu ring , capital expend itu re  proposals, 
collaboration, material investment proposal in jo in t venture/ 
promoted companies, sale and acquisition of material nature 
o f assets, mortgages, guarantees, donations etc. are regularly 
placed before the Board.

(D )  C O D E  O F  C O N D U C T

Fursuant to  Clause 49 o f the Listing Agreement, the Board 
M em bers and S enior Management Executives o f the 
Company have confirmed compliance w ith  the Code of 
Conduct fo r the period ended 31" March, 201 I.

SEBI (Frohibition o f Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, 
are adhered strictly.

The CEO o f the company affirms the compliance of the 
Code o f Conduct o f the company.

(E ) C E O / C F O  C E R T IF IC A T IO N

C E R T IF IC A T E  B Y  T H E  C H IE F  E X E C U T IV E  
O F F IC E R  (C E O ) &  C H IE F  F IN A N C IA L  O FF IC E R  
(C F O ) O N T H E  F IN A N C IA L  S T A TE M E N TS  O F T H E  
C O M P A N Y

We, B. S. Yadav, Acting C.E.O. & Umesh Garg, C.F.O. o f the 
company, hereby certify and affirm that as on & upto the date 
o f th is ce rtifica te , the re  has been due compliance o f 
Accounting Standards and other related functions as laid 
dow n by the  company, under Clause 49 V o f Listing 
Agreement, honestly and ethically.

W e heading & discharging the finance function hereby certify 
to  the Board that:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow 
statement fo r the year and that to  the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do no t contain any materially 
untrue statement o r om it any material fact o r contain 
statements that might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair 
view o f the company’s affairs and are in compliance 
w ith existing accounting standards, applicable laws 
and regulations.

(b) There are, to  the best o f ou r knowledge and belief, no 
transactions entered into by the company during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal o r  violative o f the 
company’s code o f conduct.

(c) W e accept responsibility fo r  establishing and maintaining 
in te rna l c o n tro ls  and th a t we have evaluated the 
effectiveness o f the internal con tro l systems o f the 
company and have disclosed to  the Auditors and the 
A u d it  C o m m itte e , de fic ienc ies  in the  design o r 
operation o f internal controls, if any, o f which we were 
aware and the steps we have taken o r propose to  take 
to  rectify these deficiencies.



(d) W e have ind ica ted to  the A u d ito rs  and the A u d it
committee:

(i) significant changes in internal contro l over financial 
reporting during the year:

( ii)  s ig n if ic a n t changes in a cco un ting  po lic ies  
during the year and th a t the same have been 
disclosed in the notes to  the financial statements: 
and

(iii) instances o f significant fraud o f which they have 
become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 
o f the  management o r  an em ployee having a 
significant ro le in the company’s internal contro l 
system over financial reporting.

This certificate is given by the undersigned & full reliance can 
be placed fo r  what has been stated above.

B S Y A D A V  
(A ctin g  C E O )

SHYAMTELECOM LIM ITED

U M E S H  G A R G  
( C F O )

SHYAMTELECOM LIMITED

(v i) C O M M IT T E E S  O F  T H E  B O A R D

In compliance w ith  Clause 49 o f the Listing Agreement, the 
Board has constituted the follow ing committees;

•  A ud it & Finance Com m ittee

•  Shareholder & Investor Grievance Committee

•  Remuneration Committee

A U D IT  &  F IN A N C E  C O M M IT T E E

(A )  C O M P O S IT IO N  O F  C O M M IT T E E

The Com m ittee comprises o f six Non Executive D irectors 
o f whom five are Independent D irectors.The Chairman of 
the Com m ittee is an Independent D irector. Mr. Dharmender 
Dhingra, Vice President (Legal) & Company Secretary, acts 
as the Secretary to  the Committee. All the members are 
well versed w ith  Accounting and Financial Knowledge.

N am e o f the  

M e m b e r

C a te g o ry D esigna tion

Achintya Karati Independent D ire c to r Chairman

Narendra Kum bhat Independent D ire c to r M em ber

A run  Khanna N on Executive D ire c to r M em ber

*Ravi Kant Jaipuria Independent D ire c to r M em ber

V inod June/a Independent D ire c to r M em ber

Praveen Kum ar Bhatia Independent D ire c to r M em ber

C. S. Malhotra Independent D ire c to r M em ber

(B ) A U D IT  &  F IN A N C E  C O M M IT T E E  M E E T IN G S

During the financial year 2 0 10-201 I , the Com m ittee met six 
times on following dates;

1. 30* April. 2010

2. 30* July, 2010

3. 29* October, 2010

4. 19* November, 2010

5. I I *  February, 201 I

6. 25* March, 2011

A T T E N D E N C E  O F  E A C H  M E M B E R A T T H E  A U D IT  
&  F IN A N C E  C O M M IT T E E  M E E T IN G S  H E L D  

D U R IN G  T H E  Y E A R  2 0 10 -2 0 1 I

N a m e  of th e  M em b e r N u m b e r of 
M eetings A tte n d ed

Achintya Karati 6

Narendra Kumbhat 4

Arun Khanna 6

Ravi Kant Jaipuria -

Vinod Juneja 5

Praveen Kumar Bhatia 4

C. S. Malhotra 6

(*Mr.Ravikant Jaipuria has ceased to  be a D ire c to r w.e.f. I 1.02.2011)

The chairman o f the committee was unable to  attend the 
last Annual General Meeting, in place o f whom Mr. Narendra 
Kum bhat was appo in ted  to  answer the  queries o f 
shareholders.

(C ) ROLE A N D  P O W E R S  O F  A U D IT  & F IN A N C E  
C O M M IT T E E

The role and the powers o f the A ud it Com m ittee are as per 
provisions o f Section 292A o f the Companies Act, 1956 and 
the guidelines set ou t in the Listing Agreement.

ROLE

The A ud it Com m ittee w ill assist the Board in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities for;

1. The integrity o f the company’s statements:

2. The company’s compliance w ith  legal and sta tu to ry  
requirements:

3. The Ind epe nd en t A u d ito r ’s q u a lif ic a tio n s  and 
independence:

4. The perform ance o f the  com pany’s In ternal A u d it 
function and Independent Auditors and

5. The a p p o in tm e n t o f C FO  a fte r  assessing the  
qualifications, experience and background, etc. o f the 
candidate.

PO W E R S

The powers o f A ud it & Finance Com m ittee shall include the 
fo llow ing:

■ To investigate any activity w ith in its terms o f reference.



SHvnm
T t I e c o

■ To seek information from  any employee.

■ To obtain information outside legal o r  o ther professional 
advice.

■ To secure a ttendance o f ou ts ide rs  w ith  re levant 
expertise if it  considers necessary.

(D )  BR IEF D E S C R IP T IO N  O F  T H E  TE R M S  O F  
RE FER EN C E

The Com m ittee looks after the following matters;

1. Oversight o f company’s financial reporting process and 
the disclosure o f its financial information to  ensure that 
the  financia l s ta tem e n t is c o rre c t, su ffic ie n t and 
creditable.

2. Review m ajor issues regarding accounting principles and 
financia l s ta tem ents  p resen ta tions , inc lud ing  any 
sign ificant changes in the  com pany’s se lection o r 
application o f accounting princip les, the e ffect o f 
regulatory and accounting initiatives, as well as off- 
balance sheet structures on the financial statements o f 
the company

3. Recommending to  the Board, to  appoint, re-appoint and 
oversee the w o rk  o f the public accounting firm employed 
by the organization to  conduct the statutory external 
audit and, if required, the replacement o r  removal o f the 
Statutory A ud ito r and the fixation o f audit fees.

4. Approval o f payment o f statutory audit fo r any other 
services rendered by the Statutory Auditors.

5. Reviewing w ith  the management, the annual financial 
statements before submission to  the Board fo r approval 
w ith  particular reference to;

•  Matters required to  be included in the d irec to r’s 
responsibility statement to  be included in the Board’s 
rep o rt in terms o f clause (2AA) o f section 217 of 
the Companies Act, 1956.

•  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices 
and reasons fo r the same.

•  Major accounting entries involving estimates based 
on the exercise o f judgment by management.

•  S ign ificant ad jus tm ents  made in the  financia l 
statements arising ou t o f audit findings.

•  C o m p lian ce  w ith  lis tin g  and o th e r  legal 
requirements relating to  financial statements.

•  Disclosure o f any related party transactions.

•  Qualification in the draft A ud it Report.

6. Reviewing w ith  the management, the quarterly financial 
statements before submission to  the Board fo r approval. 
Such review w ill include scrutiny o f earnings and the 
effects o f any changes in accounting practice.

7. Reviewing w ith  the management effectiveness o f the 
company’s the internal contro l systems.

8. Review w ith  management and the chief internal auditors, 
the charter, plans, activities, including the structure of 
the internal audit function, staffing and seniority o f the

official heading the department, reporting structure 
coverage and frequency o f internal audit.

9. O b ta in  and rev iew  a re p o r t  by the  independent 
A u d ito r  describ ing the company's in terna l quality- 
c o n tro l procedures, any m aterial issues raised by 
the  m ost rece n t in te rna l q u a lity -c o n tro l review, 
o r  peer review o f the firm  and assess the aud ito r’s 
independence.

10. Discussion w ith  management the company’s m ajor 
po lic ies w ith  respect to  risk  assessment and risk  
management.

I I . Reviewing the company’s procedure fo r detecting fraud 
and ensure that arrangements are in place by which staff 
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible 
improprieties in matters o f financial reporting, financial 
contro l o r any o ther matters

12. D iscuss ion  w ith  S ta tu to ry  A u d ito rs  be fo re  the  
audit commences, about the nature and scope o f audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to  ascertain any areas 
o f concern.

13. To look into the reasons fo r substantial defaults in the 
paym ent to  th e  d e p o s ito rs , de be n tu re  ho lders , 
shareholders (in case o f non payment o f declared 
dividends) and creditors.

14. Carrying ou t any o ther function as is mentioned in the 
terms o f reference o f the A ud it Committee.

(E )  R E V IE W  O F  IN F O R M A T IO N  B Y  A U D IT  &
F IN A N C E  C O M M IT T E E

The Aud it & Finance Com m ittee shall mandatory review the
follow ing information:

•  Management D iscussion and Analysis o f Financial 
condition and results of operations.

•  Statement o f significant related party transactions (as 
defined by the A ud it & Finance Committee) submitted 
by management.

•  M anagem ent le t te rs /  le tte rs  o f in te rn a l c o n tro l 
weaknesses issued by the Internal Auditors.

•  Internal A u d it Reports re lating to  internal con tro l 
weaknesses, and

•  The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration 
o f the Chief Internal A ud ito r shall be subject to  review 
by the A ud it & Finance Committee.

S U B S ID IA R Y  C O M P A N Y

•  The Company has only one subsidiary namely Shyam 
Telecom Inc. USA.

•  The A ud it & Finance Com m ittee o f the company 
reviews the financial statements o f the subsidiary 
company.

•  The Minutes o f Board Meetings o f subsidiary company 
are placed before the Aud it & Finance Committee and 
Board o f the company and reviewed in detail.



SHA REHO LDER & INVESTO R GRIEVANCE C O M M ITTE E

(A ) C O M P O S IT IO N  O F  C O M M IT T E E

Mr.Arun Khanna, Non Executive D irec to r is the Chairman 
o f the Com m ittee alongw ith Mr. Narendra Kumbhat, who in 
his absence chairs the meeting and Mr. Dharmender Dhingra, 
Vice President (Legal) & Company Secretary acts as the 
compliance officer o f the Committee. :

N am e o f  M e m b e r

A run Khanna

Narendra Kum bhat

Dharm ender Dhingra

C ate go ry

N on Executive D ire c to r

Independent D ire c to r

Vice President (Legal)

& Company Secretary

D esignation

Chairman

M em ber

Compliance

O ffice r

During the financial year 2 0 10-201 I , the committee met 25 
times.

(B )  B R IE F  D E S C R IP T IO N  O F  T E R M S  O F  
R E FER EN C E
The Com m ittee looks after the following matters:

•  Redressal o f shareholder and investor’s complaints, etc. 
relating to  transfer o f shares, non receipt o f Annual 
Report, non receipt o f declared dividends, etc.

•  Consolidation and sub-division o f Share Certificates.

•  A pp rova l o f T ransfe r and Transm ission o f Share 
Certificates.

•  Issue o f Duplicate o r Fresh Share Certificates.

( C )  D E T A IL S  O F  Q U E R IE S / C O M P L A IN T S  
R E C E IV E D  A N D  S O L V E D  D U R IN G  T H E  
F IN A N C IA L  Y E A R  2010-201 I

N a tu re  o f  Q u e rie s /C o m p la in ts Received
(No.’s)

Solved
(No.’s)

Pending
(No.’s)

Non-receipt o f Share Certificate 01 01 Nil

Number of requests fo r change 
of address

01 01 Nil

Number of requests fo r Transfer 10 10 Nil

Issue o f Duplicate Share Certificates Nil Nil Nil

Non-receipt o f Dividend Warrants Nil Nil Nil

Revalldacion o f Dividend Warrants Nil Nil Nil

Non-receipt o f Annual Report Nil Nil Nil

Total 12 12 Nil

The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions and 
grievances expeditiously and replies are sent /issues 
resolved usually w ith in IS days.

The Company has com plied w ith  submission o f its 
response to  the queries/clarifications sought by the Stock 
Exchanges on various market related information like 
clarifications on market rumors, etc. from  time to  time. 
These responses have not been included in the above 
list.

Registrar and Transfer agent does share Transfer W orks 
and as on 31" March, 2 0 1 I , no complaints were pending.

R E M U N E R A T IO N  C O M M IT T E E

A ) C O M P O S IT IO N  O F  C O M M IT T E E

The committee comprises o f four independent directors, 
the details are as follows:

N am e  o f  M e m be r C a teg o ry Designation

Achintya Karati 

Ravi Kant Jaipuria 

Praveen Kumar Bhatia 

C.S. Malhotra

Independent D irector 

independent D irector 

Independent D irector 

Independent D irector

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

(*Mr.Ravikant Jaipuria has ceased to  be a D irector w.e.f. I 1.02.201 I)

There was only one meeting held during the year 2010- 
201 I i.e on I I *  February 2011 regarding the revision o f the 
remuneration o f executives and employees o f the company.

(B ) TER M S O F  REFERENCE

The Com m ittee looks after the following matters:
•  To determ ine the company’s policy on and approve 

remuneration packages fo r Executive D irectors and their 
relatives working in the Company including pension rights 
and compensation payment.

•  To approve the remuneration payable to  the managerial 
personnel under the Companies Act, 1956, taking into 
account the financial position o f the Company, trend in 
the industry, the appointee’s qualification, experience, 
past remuneration and performance.

D E TA ILS  O F  R E M U N E R A T IO N  T O  A L L  D IR E C TO R S  

( A )  R E M U N E R A T IO N  T O  E X E C U T IV E  
D IR E C T O R S

The Com pany is n o t paying any rem unera tion  to  its 
Executive Directors.

(B )  D E T A IL S  O F  R E M U N E R A T IO N  T O  N O N ­
E X E C U T IV E  D IR E C TO R S

Non Executive D irectors are entitled to  Sitting Fees only 
fo r  attending the Board and Com m ittees Meetings. The 
company does not pay any o ther remuneration to  them 
besides sitting fees. Appropriate records are maintained in 
respect o f the payment made to  them

G E N E R A L  B O D Y  M E E T IN G S

(A ) DETA ILS  O F  L A S T  TH R E E  A N N U A L  G EN ER A L  
M E E T IN G S

A G M Year Day &  Date T im e Venue

15'*'Annual 
G enera l 
M eetine

2008
Tuesday,

30'" September, 2008
10.00
A.M.

Hotel Pink Pearl,
10'" Mile, Mahapura, 

A im er Road, laipur-302026

16*" Annual 
G enera l 
Meeting

2009
Friday,

25'" September, 
2009

10.00
A.M.

Hotel Pink Pearl,
10'" Mile, Mahapura, 

A im er Road, laiDur-302026

17*" Annual 
G enera l 
Meeting

2010
Tuesday,

27'" September, 
2010

10.00
A.M.

Hotel The Fern,
Plot No. 3. 

A irp o r t PlazaTonk Road, 
Durgapura.Jaipur-302018

(B ) S P E C IA L  R E S O L U T IO N  PASSED IN  P R EV IO U S  
TH R E E  A N N U A L  G E N E R A L  M E E T IN G S

There has been no special resolution passed

o
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(C )  P O S TA L  B A L L O T

There has been no resolution passed through Postal Ballot 
during the year I “ April, 2010 to  31“  March, 2011.

D IS C L O S U R E S

(i) D isclosure on m aterially significant related party 
transactions i.e. transactions o f the company of material 
n a tu re  w ith  its  p ro m o te rs , d ire c to rs  o r  the  
management, the ir subsidiaries o r relative that may 
have potential conflict w ith the interest o f the company 
at large:

Disclosure on related party transaction is made in 
N o te  No. 9 o f Schedule 15 to  the Balance sheet.

(ii) Details o f non-compliance by the company, penalties, 
s tr ic tu re s  im posed on the  com pany by S tock 
Exchanges o r SEBI o r any statutory authority, on any 
m atter related to  capital markets, during the last three 
years;

The Company has complied w ith the requirement of 
regu la tory au thorities  o f capital markets and no 
penalties/ strictures have ever been imposed against 
it in the last three years.

(iii) W h is tle  B low e r Policy and a ffirm a tio n  th a t no 
personnel has been denied access to  the  audit 
committee:

The Company has effective W histle  Blower Policy 
mechanism in place & during the year no personnel 
has been denied access to  the A ud it Committee.

(iv) Details o f compliance w ith mandatory requirements 
and adoption o f the non-mandatory requirements of 
the Clause 49 o f the Listing Agreement:

The Company has stringently complied w ith all the 
mandatory requirements o f this clause & the non­
mandatory requirements were followed to  the extent 
possible.

M E A N S  O F  C O M M U N IC A T IO N

(A )  Q U A R TE R LY  RESULTS

Q u a rte r ly  Results along w ith  the notes are norm ally 
published in Business Standard and Jalte Deep and also 
informed to  all Stock Exchanges where the shares o f the 
Company are listed.

(B )W E B -S IT E /IN V E S T O R S  G R IE V IA N C E  ID

The results and official news are displayed on the company’s 
website viz. www.shyamtelecom.com. Further the Investor 
Grievance ID as per Listing Agreement fo r investor’s queries 
has been generated on the company’s website which is 
investors@ shyam telecom .com .

G E N E R A L  S H A R E H O L D E R S  IN F O R M A T IO N

(A )  A N N U A L  G E N E R A L  M E E T IN G

A G M Year Day &  D ate T im e Venue

18''' AGM 201 1 Monday.
5th September, 201 1

12.00
Noon

Hotel Marriot, 
Jawahar C ircle Ashram Marg, 

Tonk Road, 
Jaipur-30201S, Rajasthan

(B ) F IN A N C IA L  C A L E N D E R

The Company follows financial year from  I “ April to  31" 
March each year.

P a rtic u la rs D u e  D a te

First Q u a rte r Results 

Second Q u a rte r Results 

Th ird  Q u a rte r Results 

Fourth Q u a rte r Results 

A udited Annual Results 

Consolidated Annual Results

Released on 30" July, 2010 

Released on 2 9 " O ctober, 2010 

Released on I I "  February, 201 1 

Released on 14" May 201 1 

Released on 1 “ August, 201 1 

Released on 1 "A ugust, 201 1

(C ) DATE O F  B O O K  C L O S U R E

The book closure shall be from I st September, 2011 (Thursday) 
to 5th September, 2011 (Monday) (both days inclusive).

(D )  D IV ID E N D  P A Y M E N T  DATE

The company has not declared dividends fo r the financial 
year ending 3 1 “  March, 2 0 1 I .

(E ) L IS T IN G  O N  S T O C K  E X C H A N G E S

The company’s shares are listed on the N ational Stock  
Exchange o f India L im ited  and the Stock Exchange, 
M um bai.

The company has paid the Annual Listing Fees due to  all 
stock exchanges upto the year 201 1-2012.

(F ) S T O C K  C O D E  

BSE 5 1 7 4 1 I 

NSE S H Y A M T E L  

IS IN  IN E 6 3 5 A 0 I0 2 3  

(G ) M A R K E T  PRICE DATA

High, Low during each month during the financial year 2010- 
2011

M onth BSE (In  Rs.) N S E (I n Rs.)

High Low High Low
April, 2010 84.45 70.00 84.40 68.00
May, 2010 76.00 61.15 76.00 61.00
June, 2010 68.50 61.55 68.90 61.50
July, 2010 68.80 59.00 68.60 62.15
August, 2010 77.70 62.80 77.80 62.60
September, 2010 80.00 66.10 84.00 66.60
October, 2010 74.40 65.00 72.00 66.00
November, 2010 77.60 50.10 77.70 50.15
December, 2010 59.95 45.65 59.50 45.50
January, 201 1 61.30 45.10 61.35 45.00
February, 201 1 55.80 39.30 54.90 38.35
March, 201 1 47.95 40.05 48.80 38.40

The Performance o f the company’s equity share relative to 
the BSE Sensitive Index (Sensex) is given in the chart below:

http://www.shyamtelecom.com
mailto:investors@shyamtelecom.com
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Monthly Share Price v/s BSE Sensex 2010-11 (Closing)

Apr-10 ' May-10 ' June-10 ’ July-10 ' Aug-10 ' Sep-10 OcMO Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 
Months

(H )  R E G IS TR A R  A N D T R A N S F E R  A G E N T S

Share transfer w o rk  in physical as well as demat mode is 
done by the company’s Registrar & Transfer Agent :

Indus Portfo lio  Private L im ited
G-65, Bali Nagar,New Delhi -  I 10015.
Email; rnt@ indusinvest.com; rnt@indusinvest.com

( I )  SH A R E  T R A N S F E R  SYSTEM
Physical share transfers are registered and returned within 
a period o f 15 days o f receipt, if the documents are correct 
and valid in all respects.

(J) D IS T R IB U T IO N  O F  S H A R E H O L D IN G

Distribution o f shareholding as on 31“  March, 201 I is as 
fo llows;

N u m b e r of 
shares

N o . o f 
shareholders

% o fTo tal 
shareholders

N o . of 
Shares held

% o f
TotalEquity

Upto 100 12228 74.80 517383 4.59

101-500 3256 19.91 792067 7.03

501-1000 453 2.77 355638 3.16

1001-5000 339 2.07 695267 6.17

5001-10000 33 0.20 229735 2.04

10001-20000 19 0.12 272831 2.42

20001-30000 5 0.03 119936 1.06

30001 -40000 0 0.00 0 0.00

40001-50000 4 0.02 190432 1.69

50001-100000 3 0.02 177900 1.58

lQOOOl-500000 3 0.02 768078 6.82

500001 and above 7 0.04 7150733 63.45

Total 16350 100.00 11270000 100.00

(K ) C A T E G O R IE S  O F  S H A R E H O L D E R S  A S  O N  
31=^ M A R C H , 201 I

S hareho lder’s C a tegory Percentage 
o f H olding

Promoters’, Relatives and Associates 66.28
Bodies Corporate  (Domestic) 4.72
Banks & Financial Institutions 0.00
Mutual Funds 0.01
Foreign Institutional Investors 5.17
Non-Resident Indians & Overseas Corporate  Bodies 0.96
Resident Individuals 21.70
Any O the r (Clearing Houses. Clearing Members,Trust) 1.16

Total 100.00

(L ) S H A R E H O L D IN G  W IT H  M O R E  T H A N  O N E  
P E R C E N T  H O L D IN G  A S O N  3 I M A R C H , 2 0 1 I

S hareho lder’s C a tegory Percentage  
of H olding

Intell Invofin India Private Limited 15.065
M ehrotra Invofin India Private Limited 13.85
Cellcap Invofin India Private Limited 7.259
A T  Invofin India Private Limited 7.186
Teletec Finsec India Private Limited 7.133
Cellphone C red it & Securities India Private Limited 6.745
Shyam Antenna Electronic Limited 6.21 1
Cresta Fund Limited 4.193
Rakesh Kanwar 1.646

(M )  D E M A T E R IA L IZ A T IO N  O F  S H A R E S  A N D  
L IQ U ID IT Y

The Securities and Exchange Board o f India (SEBI) mandated 
compulsory trading in shares o f the company by all investors 
in electronic form.As on 31“  March, 201 I, I 1221426 shares 
o f the company held by shareholders are in dematerialized 
form, aggregating to  99.56 % o f the equity share capital. 
W ith  this the problem associated w ith the physical delivery 
w ill now be reduced to  a large extent.

(N )O U T S T A N D IN G  A D R s/ G D R s/ W A R R A N T S /  
A N Y  C O N V E R T IB L E  IN S T R U M E N T S  W H IC H  
H A V E  LIKELY IM P A C T  O N  E Q U IT Y

The company has no outstanding ADRs/ GDRs /W arrants/ 
any Convertible Instruments which have likely impact on its 
equity.

(O ) P L A N T  L O C A T IO N

246, Phase-IV, UdyogVihar,
Gurgaon-122015, Haryana 
INDIA
Telephone No.; -b9l 124 43 I I 600-609

(P ) IN V E S T O R  Q U E R Y /A D R E S S  FO R  
C O R R E S P O N D E N C E
The Company Secretary 
Shyam Telecom Limited,
A-60, Naraina Industrial Area,
Phase -  I, New Delhi-1 10028 
INDIA
Telephone No.;-H91 I I 4141 1070-72
Fax No.; -1-91 11 2579 2194, -1-91 I I 4141 0839

BRIEF RESUM E O F  T H E  D IR E C TO R S  P R O P O S E D  T O  
BE R E -A P P O IN T E D :

■ N A R E N D R A  K U M B H A T

D ate  o f B irth

D a te  o f A p p o in tm e n t

Q u a lif ic a tio n

2 3 .1 2 .19 4 3  

29, July, 1999

Post G radua te  in Business M anagem ent

Mr. Narendra Kumbhat was inducted on the Shyam Board on 
29* July 1999 as D irecto r (Finance). He is a post Graduate in 
Business Management and has over 41 years of experience 
in the various fields namely A dm in istra tion , Personnel, 
Finance, Accounts, Materials, Taxation and Company Law 
etc.

Mr. Kumbhat is a Member o f the Institute o f Internal Auditors, 
Florida, USA, American Management Association, USA and 
Administrative Staff College o f India. He has also worked 
w ith Shriram Group, Indo Rama India, RPG Group, BST Ltd., 
J. K. Organisation, Hfcl Bezeq Telcom.

Mr. Kumbhat has been taking up sessions in the programs on 
Revival/Rehabilitation o f Sick Industries conducted by the 
BANKERS’ TRAINING  COLLEGE o f Reserve Bank o f India 
and conducts research on the causes o f Industrial Sickness 
in India and Rehabilitation o f Sick Companies.

o

mailto:rnt@indusinvest.com
mailto:rnt@indusinvest.com


O T H E R  D IR E C T O R S H IP S

s. N o. N a m e  o f  th e  C om pany P os ition

1. Shyam I.T Services Ltd. D ire c to r

2. Aksh O p tifib re  Ltd. D ire c to r

3. Aksh Technology Ltd. D ire c to r

C O M M IT T E E  C H A IR M A N S H IP / M E M B ER S H IP  IN  
O T H E R  C O M P A N IE S :

N am e o f  the C o m p a n y

A ksh  O p tif ib re  Ltd.

C o m m it te e

A u d it  and Finance

Position

C h a irm a n

D R .V IN O D  JUNEJA

D ate  o f  B irth

D a te  o f  A p p o in tm e n t

Q u a lif ic a tio n

20.04.1949

29" August 2008

B. Com. (Hon.), M. Com., 
L.L.B. & Ph D.

D r.V inod Juneja is the Managing D irec to r o f Bra] Binani 
G roup o f Industries (Metals, Cements, Zinc & Glass Fibre). 
He has also been Dy. Managing D irector, Bank o f Rajasthan, 
previously, and represented the Bank on the Board o f Bharat 
Overseas Bank Ltd. (now Indian Overseas Bank) as Chairman. 
He started his banking career from  Syndicate Bank and 
achieved remarkable performance fo r Bank’s growth and 
development by working in various capacities as Branch 
Head, Development O fficer and Lead D is tric t Manager. Due 
to  the later’s initiative, the Bank was able to  set up firs t RRB 
o f the Country. During the period 1981 to  1989, he joined 
E xport-lm port Bank (EXIM Bank) and became instrumental 
in form ulation and implementation o f various schemes and 
project exports in various capacities as Manager and Regional 
Representative in N o rth e rn  India. Further, he jo ined 
SANW A Bank o f Japan as Dy. C.E.O. He was also associated 
w ith  the Choung Bank o f South Korea as Dy. C.E.O. and 
established the Bank’s Business Operations in India, right 
from  obtaining RBI & Government approval to  setting up 
the branch.

Dr. Juneja was also associated w ith  Sumitomo Bank o f Japan 
(now known as Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corpora tion - 
a fter m erger o f Sakura Bank) as Dy. C.E.O. Further, he 
remained associated w ith  many big Corporates o f the W orld  
such as Suzuki M otors, Honda M otors, Sony, Mitsubishi 
C orporation etc.

Dr. Juneja played a vital role in disinvestments in various 
PSUs including MUL, HZL, HCL, Jacob & Co., A ir  India etc. 
etc. by providing advisory and consultancy services and making 
presentations to  the Governm ent in co-ordination w ith  
Credit Analysis and Research Ltd. (CARE).

Last but no t the least. Dr. Juneja was a Member o f the 
Fersonnel & Legal Com m ittee and Bank’s Sports Board of 
the Indian Banks’ Association during the period from  2004 
to  2007.

As recognition o f his services in various fields he received 
various awards, some o f which are;

“ UDYOG RATNAAW ARD” ,“ BHARAT GAURAVAWARD” , 
“ GOLD STARAWARD” & “ INTERNATIONAL GOLD STAR 
AW ARD” “ ACHIEVERS EXCELLENCE AWARD.”

O T H E R  D IR E C T O R S H IP S

S. N o. N am e o f th e  C om pany P osition

1. Shristi In frastructure  
D evelopm ent C orpo ra tion  Ltd.

D ire c to r

2. Rajasthan Financial C orp. Ltd. D ire c to r

3. Binani Metals Ltd D ire c to r

4. Edelweiss Fianace & Invest Ltd, D ire c to r

C O M M IT T E E  C H A IR M A N S H IP / M E M B ER S H IP  IN  
O T H E R  C O M P A N IE S :

N am e o f th e  C om pany C o m m it te e P osition

N il N il N il

M R .C .S ^M A L H O T R A

D ate  o f B irth 01.04.1931

D ate  o f  A p p o in tm e n t 25" September 2009

Q u a lif ic a tio n M .A .,D B M ,M B A

Mr. C.S. Malhotra is the Management advisor to  Delhi Flying 
Club. He was also the Ex- D irecto r o f Indian Airlines, Shyam 
Telelink Ltd. & Pro Agro Seeds. He got an extensive experience 
o f over 42 years in HR and General Management and was an 
advisor to  IGRU academy, Delhi, Sahara Airlines and Hexacom 
India.

He has w orked w ith  Indian A irlines from  1947-1988 and 
re t ire d  as D ire c to r  heading e igh t de pa rtm en ts  m ainly 
HRD, Industrial Relations, handling trade unions, ground services, 
employees welfare etc. As a head o f HR, he has dealt w ith 
e ight trade unions representing d iffe re n t crafts. He was 
instrumental in negotiating and finalizing long term  settlements 
on wages and o th e r term s and conditions o f employment 
w ith  various unions. Responsible fo r  C risis Management 
including Strikes and was involved in policy making activity 
at the top level.

He was on the Panel o f Experts o f International Civil Aviation 
O rganization, lATA and also attended as a member o f the 
Employers’ team in the ILO conference at Hague, Netherland.

O T H E R  D IR E C T O R S H IP S

N am e o f th e  C om pany P os ition

Nil N il

C O M M IT T E E  C H A IR M A N S H IP / M E M B ER SH IP  IN  
O T H E R  C O M P A N IE S

N am e o f  th e C om pany C o m m it te e Position

N il N il N il
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CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of 

Shyam Telecom Limited

We have examined the compliance o f conditions o f C orporate Governance by S H Y A M  T E L E C O M  L IM IT E D , 

fo r th e  year ended on 31“  March, 2 0 1 I, as stipulated in clause 49 o f the ListingAgreement o f the said company w ith  stock 

exchange(s).

The compliance o f conditions o f Corporate Governance is the responsibility o f the management. O u r examination 

has been lim ited to  a review o f the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company fo r ensuring 

the compliance o f the conditions o f Corpora te Governance. It is neither an audit no r an expression o f opinion 

on the financial statements o f the Company.

In our op in ior and to  the best o f our information and according to  the explanations given to  us and the representations 

made by the D irectors and Management, we certify that the Company has during the year complied w ith  the conditions 

o f Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Clause o f Listing Agreement.

We state tha t no investor grievance(s) is pending fo r a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the 

records maintained by the Company.

W e fu rthe r state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to  the future viability o f the Company nor the efficiency 

o r effectiveness w ith  which the management has conducted the affairs o f the Company.

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

G E E T IK A  M E H R A
P L A C E : N E W  D E L H I (P A R T N E R )
DA TE : I S t  August, 2 0 1 I M . N o . 5 10525
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AN D  ANALYSIS REPORT

IN D U S T R Y  S T R U C T U R E  A N D  O P P O R T U N IT IE S

The Indian telecommunications industry is one o f the fastest 
growing in the world . The industry has witnessed consistent 
growth during the last year on the back o f ro llou t o f newer 
circles by operators, successful auction o f third-generation (3G) 
and broadband wireless access (BW A) spectrum , ne tw ork  
ro llo u t in semi-rural areas and increased focus on the value 
added services (VAS) market.

According to  the data released by Telecom Regulatory A u thority  
o f India (TRAI), the number o f telephone subscribers in the 
country reached 874.68 m illion at the end o f May 2 0 11 from  
8 6 1.48 m illion at the end o f A pril 2 0 11, resulting the increase of 
1.53 per cent.The wireless segment’s (GSM, CDMA, FWP) total 
subscriber base increased to  840.28 m illion at the end o f May 
2011 from  826.93 million in A pril 2011, registering a growth o f 
1.61 per cent. W ireless subscription in rural areas grew 2.15 
per cent while the urban subscription grew 1.34 per cent. 

Meanwhile, Indian Global System o f Mobile Communication 
(GSM) telecom operators added 8.58 m illion new subscribers 
in June 2 0 11, taking the all-India GSM cellular subscriber base to  
598.77 million, according to  the Cellular Operators Association 
o f India (COAI).

The sector w ill witness up to  US$ 55.95 billion investments 
and the market w ill cross the US$ 100 billion mark in 5 years, 
according to  consultancy firm  Boston Consulting G roup (BCG). 
BCG India's Partner and D irector, A rvind Subramanian said the 
industry w ill continue to  grow  at 12-13 per cent annually. The 
old players are adding millions o f subscriber m onthly while the 
new players are facing problems.

S H Y A M  A D V A N T A G E

Once these basic steps are covered, telecom company- 5hyam 
Telecom can go deeper by segmenting customers in to groups 
and targeting them w ith  special prom otions and offers. Instead 
o f prim arily focusing on finding new customers, telcos could 
focus on increasing the value derived from  current customers. 

Being a local company the opera to r looks towards 5hyam to  
provide reliable and cheap products. Most o f the new operators 
have issues w ith  the Capex and they are looking fo r products 
w h ich  can m eet th e ir  coverage requ irem ents and satisfy 
customers.

N ew  3 G players are looking fo r coverage solution which can 
be provided by 5hyam. W e have lo t o f experience in selling the 
3G products to  various developed countries in Europe,America 
etc. using our experience the customer are providing reliable 
services.

5hyam is also providing the lo t o f 2G, 3G , 4G and Tetra solution 
to  operators and o ther public users like DMRC etc.

IN T E R N A L  C O N T R O L  S Y S T E M  A N D  T H E IR  

A D E Q U A C Y

The body responsible fo r  the internal contro l system, the Board 
o f D irectors lays down the guidelines fo r the system and verifies 
its adequacy, efficacy and proper functioning, while making sure

o

that the main operational, compliance, economic and financial 
risks are appropriately identified and managed. In performing 
this responsibility, the Board, in addition to  the Internal Contro l 
and Corporate Governance Committee, uses a person endowed 
w ith an appropriate degree of independence and adequate means 
to  be responsible fo r the internal contro l function.

The functions assigned to  this person are to  assist in verifying 
the adequacy and efficacy o f the internal contro l system and, 
where anomalies are found, to  propose appropriate remedies. 
The person responsible fo r internal con tro l reports to  the 
member o f the Board o f D irectors.

S T R E N G H T H S  O F  IN D U S T R Y

India has all the makings o f a globally com petitive telecom 
Manufacturing and R&D destination. This is evident from;

•  A  large and booming domestic market w ith Indian operators 
reaching ou t to  the global market providing w ider access 
to  Indian telecom companies.

•  5trong technical and R&D workforce having experience in 
R&D centers o f M NC companies, IT service companies 
doing telecom projects, strong academic and research labs 
and an increasing number o f Indians who are returning 
back from  U5A/Europe.

•  Cost advantage arising from  low er manufacturing plant 
establishment cost and competitive labour costs.

•  Availability o f capital from  a well established financing 
industry as well as private equity network.

•  Exports grow th at 25 percent CAGR over next 5 years, 
reaching over U5D 10 Billion.

•  Domestic telecom products grow th o f 18 percent CAGR 
over next 5 years.

•  Employment generation (direct and in-direct) of 20 million

•  A t least 70 percent o f Indian domestic telecom needs are 
met by products manufactured in India.

•  H andse t and o th e r  D a ta  P rod uc ts  im p o rts  and 
manufacturing has become a very big market in India. India 
is the largest im porter o f Handsets & Data Products in the 
world.

RISKS A N D  C O N S T R A IN T S

Challenges faced by Telecom sector are as follows:
•  Volatile Telecom Market. 5udden capex freeze.
•  Focus on Tender business, as we have to  dedicate our full 

tim e on tender and there is either 0% o r 100% probability 
o f getting the same.

•  Reduction of CAPEX budget by all the operators, as their margins 
are declining so they don’t  have enough money to  spend.

•  C om petition from  Chinese players, as the ir prices are 
drastically low er as compared to  our

•  Fast technological obscelence
•  Infrastructure sharing by operators
•  Low quality products used in ne twork
•  Roll ou t plans o f operators are no t clear.
•  Operators are buying equipment from  foreign buyers as it 

comes w ith  funding



SHvnm
T S I  B C O  M  t  T  O

A U D I T O R S ’ R E P O R T

TO TH E M EM BERS OF SHYAM TELECOM  L IM ITE D

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet o f S H Y A M  T E L E C O M  L IM IT E D  as at 31st March, 201 Land also the Profit & Loss 

Account and the cash flow  statement o f the Company fo r the year ended on that date annexed thereto.These financial statements 

are the responsibility o f the Company’s management. O u r responsibility is to  express an opinion on these financial statements 

based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance w ith the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we 

plan and perform the audit to  obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free o f material misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis fo r our opinion

3. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003, issued by the Central Government o f India in terms o f sub-section 

(4A) o f Section 227 o f the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 

4 and 5 o f the said order.

4. Further to  our comments in the Annexure referred to  in paragraph 3 above, we report that: -

(a) W e have obtained all the information and explanations, which to  the best o f our knowledge and belief were necessary for 

the purposes o f our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books o f account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as appears from  our 

examination o f those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Frofit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt w ith  by this report are in agreement w ith the 

books o f account;

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Frofit & LossAccount and Cash Flow Statement dealt w ith  by this report comply w ith the 

Accounting Standards referred to  in sub-section (3C) o f section 21 I o f the Companies Act, 1956;

(e) On the basis o f w ritten  representations received from  the directors as on 31st March, 201 I and taken on record by the 

Board of D irectors, we repo rt tha t none of the directors is disqualified as on 3 1 “  March 2 0 1 I from  being appointed as a 

d irector in terms o f clause (g) o f sub-section ( I )  o f section 274 o f the Companies Act, 1956;

(f) In our opinion, and to  the best o f our information and according to  explanations given to  us, the said accounts give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conform ity w ith 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India;

i. in the case o f the Balance Sheet, o f the state o f affairs o f the company as at 31st, March, 2011;

ii. in the case o f the Frofit and Loss Account, o f the Frofit fo r the year ended on that date; and

iii. in the case o f the Cash Flow Statement, o f the cash flows fo r the year ended on that date.

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  CO . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R .K .M E H R A
P LA C E: N EW  DELHI FARTNER
D A TED : I st August 2 0 I I  M.No. 6 102
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T B 1 E C O  M  L T D

A N N E X U R E
(Referred to  in paragraph 3 of our report o f even date)

i) The Company has maintained records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation o f fixed assets.The 

fixed assets covering significant value have been physically verified by the management during the year, which in our opinion is 

reasonable, having regard to  the size o f the Company and the nature o f its business. On the basis o f the information and 

explanations given by the management, no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. Substantial Part of 

fixed assets have been disposed o ff on account o f technical obsolescence during the year. However this has not affected going 

concern status o f the company.

ii) In our opinion, the Management at reasonable intervals has physically verified the inventories o f the Company in its possession. 

Stocks in the possession and custody o f the th ird  parties have been verified by the Management w ith regard to  confirmation o r 

statement o f account o r  correspondence o f the th ird  parties o r subsequent receipt o f goods. The procedures o f physical 

verification o f inventory o f the Company followed by the Management are reasonable and adequate in relation to  the size o f the 

Company and nature o f its business. The company is maintaining proper records o f inventory

iii)  The Company has no t granted any loans, secured o r unsecured to  Companies, firms o r other parties as covered in the register 

maintained under section 301 o f the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has no t taken any secured loans from  Companies, firms and o ther parties covered in the register maintained 

under section 3 0 1 o f the Companies Act, 1956. In respect o f unsecured loan taken from  a Company covered in the register 

maintained under section 301 o f the Companies Act, 1956, the rate o f interest and other term s and conditions o f loan are prima 

facie are no t prejudicial to  the interest o f the Company.The maximum amount outstanding at any tim e during the is Rs.33.98 

crores and year end balance Rs. 33.98 crores.The principal and interest amount is repayable on demand.

iv) In our opinion and according to  the information and explanations given to  us, there are adequate internal contro l systems 

commensurate w ith  the size o f the company and the nature o f its business fo r the purchase o f inventory, fixed assets and fo r the 

sale o f goods and services. During the course o f Audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal contro l systems.

v) In ou r opinion and according to  the information and explanations given to  us, the particulars o f contracts o r arrangements 

referred to  in section 301 o f the A c t have been entered in to the register maintained under Section 301 o f the Companies Act, 

1956.

According to  the inform ation and explanations given to  us the transaction made in pursuance o f such contracts o r arrangements 

exceeding value o f Rs. Five Lacs have been entered into during the financial year at prices which are reasonable having regard 

to  the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

vi) To the best o f our knowledge and according to  the information and explanations given to  us, the Company has not accepted any 

deposits covered under Section 58 A  and 58 A A  o r any o ther relevant provisions o f the Companies Act, 1956.

vii) To the best o f our knowledge and as per the information and explanations given to  us, the Company has a reasonable internal 

audit system, being carried by a firm  o f Chartered Accountants, commensurate w ith  its size and nature of its business.

v iii) On the basis o f records produced, we are o f the opinion that prima facie, the cost records and accounts prescribed by 

the Centra l G overnm ent under section 20 9 (l)(d ) o f the Companies Act, 1956, have been maintained in respect o f a 

division to  which it is applicable. However, we have not, nor we are required, carried out any detailed examination o f such accounts 

and records.

ix) To the best o f our knowledge and according to  the information and explanations given to  us, the Company is generally regular 

in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Investor Education and Frotection fund. Employee State Insurance, Frovident 

Fund, W ealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Cess and any o the r s ta tu to ry  dues, where applicable w ith the 

appropriate authorities However some delays have been noticed in depositing Income Tax, ESI & Provident fund.

o



According to  the information and explanations given to  us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect o f I ncome Tax, Wealth Tax, 

Sales Tax, Custom Duty and Excise Duty were outstanding as at 3 I -03-20I I  fo r a period o f more than six months from the date 

they became payable.

Further according to  the information and explanations given by the management, there were no disputed dues o f sales tax, 

income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, excise duty, service tax and cess.

x) The Company has no brought forward losses and has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year. However there was 

cash loss o f Rs. 2.76 crores in the immediate preceding financial year.

x i) On an examination o f the records o f the company & information & explanation given to  us, the company has not defaulted in the 

repayment o f dues to  any financial institutions o r bank o r debenture holder as at the balance date.

x ii) On the basis o f verification o f accounts and records maintained by the Company and to  the best of our knowledge & belief, the 

Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis o f security by way o f pledge o f shares, debentures and other 

securities.

x iii)  In our opinion, and to  the best o f our information and according to  the explanation by the management, we are o f the opinion 

that the company is neither a chit fund nor a nidhi/mutual benefit society.

xiv) To the best o f our knowledge and according to  information given to  us, the Company is not dealing o r trading in shares, 

debentures and o ther securities, except certain shares and units o f mutual fund were traded during the year.

xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to  the information and explanation given to  us, the Company has not given 

guarantee fo r loans taken by others from  Banks/ Financial Institutions.

xvi) To the best o f our knowledge and according to  the information and explanations given to  us, no term  loans were taken by the 

company during the year.

xvii) According to  the Cash Flow Statement and o ther records examined by us and information and explanations given to  us, on an 

overall basis, funds raised on short-term  basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year fo r long-term investment.

xviii) According to  the information & explanations given to  us, the Company has not made any preferential allotm ent o f shares during 

the year to  parties and companies covered in the Register maintained under section 301 o f the Companies Act, 1956.

xix) According to  the information & explanations given to  us the Company has not issued any debentures during the year.

xx) According to  the information & explanations given to  us, the Company has not raised any money by Public Issue during the year.

xxi) Based upon the audit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the management we repo rt that no fraud 

on o r by the Company has been noticed o r reported during the year.

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O .
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R .K .M E H R A
P LA C E; NEW  DELHI PARTNER
D A TED : I st August 2 0 1 I M.No. 6 102
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH, 2011

S O U R C E S  O F  F U N D S  
S H A R E H O L D E R ’S F U N D S
Share Capital 
Reserves and Surplus

L O A N  F U N D S
Secured Loans
Unsecured Loans
D eferred  Tax L iability  (N e t)

II A P P L IC A T IO N  O F  F U N D S  
F IX E D  A SSETS
Gross Block 
Less : Depreciation

N et Block
C apita l W o rk  in Progress 
IN V E S T M E N T S
C U R R E N T  A SSETS, L O A N S  & A D V A N C E S
C u rren tA ssets
Inventories 
Sundry Debtors 
Cash & Bank Balances 

Loans & Advances

Less : C U R R E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S  &  P R O V IS IO N S
C urren t Liabilities 
Provisions

N E T  C U R R E N T A S S E T S

S C H E D U L E
N O .

6
7
8
9

10

AS A T
3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

112.700.000 
382,398,275

11,429,720
339.865.000 

32,923,289

8 7 9 ,31 6 ,28 4

442,023,636
173,183,809

26 8 ,83 9 ,82 7

9,076,738

1,192,530,610
794,419,887
402,999,169
347,397,199

2 ,737 ,346 ,865

2,118,689,225 
17,257,921

2,135,947,146
601,399,719

879 ,31 6 ,28 4

AS A T  
3 I-M a r -2 0 10 

(Rs.)

1 12,700,000 
344,208,602

75,167,484 
283,665,000 

44,201,220

859 ,942 ,306

552,353,063
179,231,870

373,121 ,193
20,490,5(8
26,289,570

484,261,811 
813,658,194 
186,519,997 
287,049,219

1,771,489,221

1,316,094,796
15,353,400

1,331,448,196
440,041,025

85 9 ,942 ,306

S IG N IF IC A N T  A C C O U N T IN G  P O L IC IE S  I 4
N O T E S  T O  A C C O U N T S  15
The schedules referred above form  an integral part o f the Balance Sheet.

As per our report o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K. M E H R A
Partner 
14. No. 6 102

RAJIV M E H R O TR A
Chairman & (Managing D irecto r

AJAY K H A N N A
(Managing D irecto r

A L O K  T A N D O N
Managing D irector

P L A C E  ; NEW  DELHI 
D A T E D  : 1st August, 201 I

U M E S H  G A R G
Chief Financial O fficer



PROFIT & LOSS AC C O U N T FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31̂  ̂ MARCH, 201 I

S C H E D U L E
N O .

IN C O M E

Sales & Services

Less : Excise Duty & Service Tax

N e t Sales
O ther Income I I

E X P E N D IT U R E
Manufacturing & O the r Expenditure I 2

Financial Charges I 3

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) BEFO RE D E P R E C IA T IO N  & T A X

Less : Depreciation

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) BEFO RE T A X
Provision fo r Taxation 

Income Tax

- C urrent Tax

- Deferred Tax

- MAT C red it available fo r set-off 

W ealth Tax

Income Tax /  Deferred Tax For Earlier Year 

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) A F T E R T A X  

Balance C arried  to  Balance Sheet

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share ( Refer Point No. 8 o f Schedule IS )

Nominal Value o f equity share

S IG N IF IC A N T  A C C O U N T IN G  P O L IC IE S  14

N O T E S  T O  A C C O U N T S  15
The schedules referred above form  an integral part o f the Profit & Loss Account.

Y E A R  E N D E D  
3 1-M ar-201 I 

(Rs.)

6,8I7,9SS,940

46,246,333

6 ,7 71 ,70 9 ,60 7

59,759,289

6 ,8 31 ,46 8 ,89 6

6,727,152,511 

32,359,348

6 ,7 59 ,51 1 ,85 9  

71 ,957 ,0 37

34,248,491

37 ,708 ,5 46

9,012,492

(4,860,035)

1,292,374

88,000

(6,013,958)

38 .189 .673

38 .189 .673

3.39

10

Y E A R  E N D E D  
3 I -M ar-2010 

(Rs.)

2,948,061,057

33,594,702

2 ,914 ,466 ,355

18,508,678

2 ,932 ,975 ,033

2,917,540,885

45,220,709

2 ,962 ,761 ,594
(2 9 ,7 8 6 ,5 6 1 )

35,803,433

(6 5 ,5 8 9 ,9 9 4 )

(20,918,255)

107,000

(4 4 .7 7 8 .7 3 9 )

(4 4 .7 7 8 .7 3 9 )

(3.97)

10

As per our repo rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K. M E H R A
Partner 
M .N o. 6102

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irector

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irecto r

A L O K T A N D O N
Managing D irector

P LA C E  ; NEW  DELHI 
D A T E D  ; I st August, 2 0 1

U M E S H  G A R G
Chief Financial O fficer
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T E L E C O

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 3 1 ST MARCH, 2011

(A )  C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  O P E R A T IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  ;
N e t  P ro fit a fte r ta x  and before ex trao rd in ary  item s  
A djustm ents f o r :
Depreciation
Interest and Financial Charges 
Interest & Dividend Income 
Provision fo r Tax 
Bad Debts W ritte n  O ff
Opening Research & Development Expenses W /o ff 
Provision fo r Doubtful Debts/ Advances (Net)
Provision ( Leave Encashment & Retirement Benefit)
Profit / Loss on Sale O f Fixed Assets
Plant and Machinery Discarded
(Profit)/Loss on Sale o f Investment
O p e ra tin g  P ro fit before w orking  capital change
A djustm ents f o r :
Trade & O ther Receivables 

Inventories
Trade & O the r Payables
Cash Generated From Operations
D irect Taxes Paid
Cash flow  fro m  operating  activities (A )

(B ) C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  IN V E S T IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  :
Purchase o f Fixed Aseets (including Capital W ork  in Progress)
Sale o f Fixed assets 
Interest & Dividend Income 
Investments
N e t cash Used In / fro m  Investing A ctiv ities  (B )

(C )  C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  F IN A N C IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  :
Short term  borrowings (net)
Interest and financial charges paid
N e t cash (used in ) / fro m  financing activities (C )
N e t  increase / (decrease ) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning o f the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end o f the year

C u rre n t Y ear

381.90

342.48
323.59

(165.10)
(4.81)

3.66
204.91 

71.07 
19.05 

(3.18) 

782.20
(355.27)

1,600.49

• (409.24) 
(7,082.69) 

7,864.65 
1,973.21  

(184.56) 
1,788.66

(140.38)
61.69

165.10
527.40

613.81

(75.38)
(162.30)

(2 3 7 .6 8 )
2 ,164 .79

1,865.20
4,029.99

(Rs. in lacs) 
Previous Year

(447.79)

358.03 
452.21 
(41.09) 

(208.1 I) 
152.42

(22.54)
17.00
1.78

261.91

2,444.83
(2,025.36)

369.88
1,051.26

70.54
1,121.80

(368.17) 
2.31 

41.09 
(0.84) 

(3 2 5 .6 1 )

135.89
(242.80)

(1 0 6 .9 1 )
689.28

1,175.92
1,865.20

N otes :
1. Cash flow  statement has been prepared following the “  indirect method “  as set out in the Accounting Standarard-3 on Cash 

flow  statement.
2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balance including bank deposit.

As per our report o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O .
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K. M E H R A
Partner 
M .N o. 6 102

P LA C E  ; NEW  DELHI 
D A T E D  : 1st August, 201 I

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irector

U M E S H  G A R G
Chief Financial O fficer

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irecto r

A L O K  T A N D O N
Managing D irector
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T E i e C O M  I T O

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE - I SHARE CAPITAL

A U T H O R IS E D

50,000,000 Equity Shares o f Rs. 10/- each

2.500.000 Preference Shares o f Rs 100/- each.

IS S U E D  , S U B S C R IB E D  A N D  P A ID  U P

11.270.000 Equity Shares o f Rs 10/- each, fully paid up

A S A T
3 1-M ar-2011  

(Rs.)

500.000.000

250.000.000 

7 5 0 ,00 0 ,00 0

112,700,000

112,700 ,000

A S A T  
3 1 -M a r2010  

(Rs.)

500.000.000

250.000.000 

750 ,00 0 ,00 0

112,700,000 

1 12,700 ,000

SCHEDULE - 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS

Investm en t Subsidy

Acquired under the scheme o f Arrangement 

P ro fit &  Loss A cco un t

As per last Balance Sheet

Add: Balance transferred from  Profit & Loss account

1,500,000

342,708,602

38,189,673

380,898,275

38 2 ,39 8 ,27 5

1,500,000

387,487,341

(44,778,739)

342,708,602

344 ,20 8 ,60 2

SCHEDULE - 3 LOAN FUNDS

S E C U R E D  L O A N S  

T erm  Loans

- Vehicle Loans from  Bank (*)

Cash C re d it

- From Bank (**)

541,983

10,887,737

1 1,429,720

2,903,429

72,264,055

75 ,167 ,4 84

U N S E C U R E D  L O A N S

- From Corpora te Bodies 339,865,000

33 9 ,8 6 5 ,0 0 0

283,665,000

28 3 ,66 5 ,00 0

(*) Secured by hypothecation o f specific Assets.

(**) Secured by way o f firs t charge on Stock and Book Debts o f the Company and second charge on Movable and Immovable Fixed 

Assets o f the Company, on Pari Passu basis among member banks and personal guarantee o f Three Prom oter D irectors

o



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE - 4 FIXED ASSETS

A S S E T S G R O S S  B L O C K

AS  A T
0 1 -A pr-1  0

(Rs.)

A d d it io n s / 
A d ju s tm e n ts  

D u rin g  
th e  ye a r 

(Rs.)

D e le tio n s / 
A d ju s tm e n ts  

d u r in g  th e  
y e a r  
(Rs.)

A s  A t  
3 1-Mar-11

(Rs.)

D E P R E C IA T IO N

A s A t
O I-ApnIO

(Rs.)

D u rin g
th e

y e a r

(Rs.)

W r i t t e n
B a ck

(Rs.)

U p  to  
3 1-Mar-1 I

(Rs.)

N E T  B L O C K

A s A t  
3 1 -M a r- l I

(Rs.)

A s  A t  
31 -M a r -10

(Rs.)

Land Free Hold 177,150

Land Lease Hold 8,352.429

Building 44,474,745

Plant & Machinery 400,174,942 7,206,358

Electric Installation 1 1,901,983

Furniture & Fixture 19,499,309 1,437,668

Vehicles 24,394,953 2,172,785

Office Equipment 16,372,060 1,039,974

Com puter 5,269.372 1,227,370

123.175,455

1,192,267

177,150

8,352,429

44,474,745 8,268,740 1,588,468

284,205,845 129,223,184 22,097,007

1 1,901,983 1,646,628 655,016

20,936,977 6,796,974 1,549,337

25.375,471 9,294,310 2,466,687

17,412,034 4,021,535 2,166,406

6,496,742 2,256,822 601,658

39,915,141

177,150 177.150

8,352,429 8,352,429

9,857,208 34,617,537 36,206,005

111,405,050 172,800,795 270,867,597

2,301,644 9,600,339 10,181,658

8,346,31 1 12,590,666 12,775,981

1 1,379,586 13,995,885 15,100,672

6,187,941 1 1,224,093 12,350,522

2,858,480 3,638,262 3,096,735

530,616,943 13,084,155 124,367,722 419,333,376 161,508,193 31,124,579 40,296,552 152,336,220 266,997,156 369,108,749

Intangible Assets
Software 21,736,120 954,140 22,690,260 17,723,677 3.123,912 20.847.589 1,842,671 4,012,444

G R A N D T O T A L 552,353.063 14,038,295 124,367,722 442,023,636 179,231,870 34,248,491 40.296.552 173,183,809 268,839,827 373,121,193

Previous Year figu res; 536,664,690 16,730,633 1,042,260 552,353,063 144,062,108 35,803,433 633,671 179,231,870 373,121,193

Capita lW ork in Progress 20,490,518

268,839,827 393,611,711

- C apita lW ork in Progress Includes advance fo r capital expenditure. (Unsecured. Considered Good.)

SC H ED U LE■5 INVESTMENTS 
N O N  T R A D E
Q U O T E D  - Fully P aid -up(*)

Long - T erm  ( A t  C ost )
3,300 Equity Shares o f Rs 10/- each o f Intec Capital Limited 
1,41,427 Equity Shares o f RslO/- each o f Spanco Limited 
NIL (RY. 4,86,667) Equity Shares o f RslO/- each fully paid up of 
Sparsh BPO Services L td

T R A D E  IN V E S T M E N T S  
U N Q U O T E D  - Fully Paid-up  
IN  S U B S ID IA R Y  C O M P A N IE S
100 Common stock o f $ 1.00 each o f Shyam Telecom Inc.USA 
IN  O TH E R S
3,80,307 (P.Y. 2,92,544) Equity Shares o f Rs. 10/- each o f 
Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd.
S H O R T T E R M
NIL (P.Y. 80.63) Units, UTl Treasury Advantage Fund 
A D V A N C E  FO R  IN V E S T M E N T  
IN  S U B S ID IA R Y  C O M P A N Y
Shyam Telecom Inc, USA

AS A T  
3 I-M a r^ 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

33,000
5,232,799

5 ,2 65 ,79 9

4,374 

2,711,881

1,094,684

3,810,939

9,076,738

AS A T  
3 I-M a r -2 0 10 

(Rs.)

33,000
5,232,799

18,006,679

23 ,272 .478

4,374

1,834,251

83,783

1,094,684

3,017,092

26 ,289 ,570

( * )  Aggregated market value o f Q uoted Investments Rs 2 15.88 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 294.28 Lacs) including cost where market value 
is not readily available.

SCHEDULE ■ 6 INVENTORIES
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Material 
Finished Goods 
W ork  In Process 
Stores & Spares 
Material In Transit

171,012,355
855,175,733

74,931,879
3,435,542

87,975,101

1,192,530,610

137,875,894
301,044,776

34,001,368
1,017,081

10,322,692

484,261,81 I



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE - 7 SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated) 

Debts Outstanding fo r over 6 months
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful

Less : Provision fo r  Doubtful Debt.

O thers

A S A T  
3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

503,623,303
13.777.705 

517,401,008

13.777.705

503,623,303
290,796,584

794,419,887

A S A T  
3 I -M a r-2 0 1 0 

(Rs.)

479,707,670
7.642.329 

48 7 ,349 ,999

7.642.329 

47 9 ,707 ,670
333,950,524

81 3 ,658 ,194

SCHEDULE - 8 CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash in Hand
Balance W ith  Scheduled Banks in ;
- Fixed Deposits (including interest accrued) (*)
- Current Account

(*) Rs. 1729 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 1099.08 Lacs) under lien 
w ith Bank as Margin Money

1,230,705

309,762,629
92,005,835

402,999,169

1,707,251

109,907,940
74,904,806

186,519,997

SCHEDULE - 9 LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)

Advances recoverable in cash o r in kind o r fo r value to  be received
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful

Less : Provision fo r Doubtful Advances 

Security Deposits
Due From Subsidiary (interest Free)
Cenvat Receivable
Balance w ith  Excise Department
Advance Tax (Net)
MAT C red it available

91,775,540
971,500

9 2 ,747 ,0 40
971,500

91,775,540
17,045,430

155,290,467
60,005,394

24,152
23,256,216

347,397,199

48,786,195

48 .786 .195

48 .786 .195
10,968,256

167,602,563
42,764,922

37,402
15,597,507

1,292,374

287 ,049 ,219

& PROVISIONS
C U R R E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S

Sundry C reditors
Advance From Customers & Others 
Interest Accrued on Loans

P R O V IS IO N S

Leave Encashment 
Retirement Benefit

1,422,630,420 
614,051,975 

82,006,830 

2,118,689,225

11,188,478 
6,069,443

661,508,299
588,709,205

65,877,292

1,316,094,796

10,061,654
5,291,746

15,353 ,400



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OFTHE ACCOUNTS
Y E A R  E N D E D Y E A R  E N D E D

31-M a r-2 0 1 1 3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l0
SCHEDULE - 1 1 OTHER INCOME (Rs.) (Rs.)

Interest On Deposits ( * ) 13,456,367 3,937,076
Dividend on Non Trade Long Term Investments 3,053,811 171,928
Profit on Sale o f Investment 35,526,858 -

Exchange rate Fluctuation ( Net) 5,470,016 10,612,282
Miscellaneous Income 1,933,826 3,787,392
Profit on Sale o f Assets (Net) 318,411 -

59 ,759 ,2 89 18,508,678

(*)T ax  deducted at source Rs. 14.53 Lacs (Previous Year Rs 5.96 Lacs)

SCHEDULE - 12 MANUFACTURING & OTHER EXPENDITURE
Material Consumed 360,403,794 269,182,374
Purchase o f Goods Traded 6,423,225,293 2,453,854,921
Stores & Spares Consumed 5.334,446 2,696,497
Power & Fuel 8,083,035 6,907,694
Manufacturing Expenses 12,344,939 12,359,708
Excise Duty on Closing Stock (Finished Goods) (Net) 139,896 (763,940)
Salary, Wages & Bonus 121,130,261 115,484,618
Employer’s Contribution to  PR & O the r Fund 11,187,292 7,544,858
Staff Welfare 8,418,645 8,323,825
Repair to:

Plant & Machinery 2,124,616 1,928,974
Building 1,661,387 4,983,390

A ud ito r’s Remuneration :
Aud it Fee 775,000 653,000
Tax A ud it Fee 175,000 150,000
O ther Services 360,957 216,000

Research & Development Expenses 36,349,131 -
Communication Expenses 11,697,722 9,483,437
Printing & Stationery 3,289,067 2,067,978
Travelling & Conveyance 34,924,584 29,015,426
Rates & Taxes 2,334,356 1,431,227
Insurance 6,309,474 5,332,472
Rent 17,676,879 14,677,498
D irec to r Sitting Fees 82,000 56,000
Advertisement & Publicity 24,353,473 34,81 1,946
Packing & Forwarding 70,596,041 23,1 11,533
Sundry Balance W ritte n  off 640,645 -

Bad Debts W ritte n  O ff ( Net) 366,052 15,242,268
Add/(Less): Provision fo r Doubtfull Debts 7,106,876 7,472,928 (2,253,714) 12,988,554

Legal & Professional Charges 31,827,506 37,257,392
Foreign Consultancy Charges 3,047,302 4,999,876
O ther Administrative Expenses 38,028,158 23,652,517
Loss on Sale o f Assets (Net) - 177,862
Discount on Sales - 26,000,000
Plant and Machinery Discarded 78,220,152 -

7 ,322 ,213 ,979 3 ,108 ,585 ,637
A dd / Less Decrease / Increase in S to cks :
A dd  ; O pening  Stock

W o rk  In Process 34,001,368 20,450,841
Finished Goods 301,044,776 123,550,551

Less : Closing S to c k :
W o rk  in Process 74,931,879 34,001,368
Finished Goods 855,175,733 301,044,776

6,727,152,511 2 ,917,540,885
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE -1 3  F IN A N C IA L CHARGES

Y E A R  E N D E D  Y E A R  E N D E D
3 I - M a r - 2 0 I I  3 1 -M a r-2 0 10

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Interest on
- Fixed Period Loans 261,405 3,380,312
- O thers 24,298,847 33,320,816

Bank Charges 7,799,096 8,519,581

32,359 ,348 45 ,220 ,709

SCHEDULE ■ 14 SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES

1. BASIS FO R  P R E P A R A T IO N  O F  A C C O U N T S

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance w ith generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable Accounting Standards as specified in Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 
2006 under Companies Act, 1956.

2. USE O F  E S T IM A TE S

The presentation o f financial statements in conform ity w ith the Indian GAAP requires the management to  make estimates 
and assumptions to  be made that may affect the balances o f assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to  contingent 
liabilities as at the date o f the financial statements and the reported amounts o f incomes and expenses during the reporting 
period. Although these estimates are based upon management best knowledge o f current events and actions, actual results 
could differ from  those estimated.

3. F IX E D  A SSETS

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, net ofVAT/ CENVAT, less accumulated depreciation.All costs comprises purchase price, non- 
refundable duties, levies and borrow ing costs till assets are ready fo r intended use are capitalised. Capital expenditure on 
assets not owned by company is reflected in capital w o rk  in progress account till the period o f completion and thereafter in 
the fixed assets. Machinery spares that can be used only in connection w ith an item o f fixed asset and the ir use is expected 
to  be irregular are capitalized. Replacement o f such spares is charged to  revenue. Advance paid towards the acquisition of 
fixed assets, and the cost o f assets not ready fo r intended use, before the year end, are disclosed under capital work-in- 
progress.

4. IN T A N G IB L E  A SSETS

In accordance w ith  the Accounting Standard (AS) 26 relating to  intangible assets, all costs incurred on technical know-how 
/ license fee relating to  production process are charged to  revenue in the year o f incurrence. Costs incurred on technical 
know-how / license fee relating to  process design/ plants/ facilities are capitalized, at the time o f capitalization o f the said 
plant/ facility and amortized on pro-rata basis over a period o f five years. Com puter software is capitalized on the date of 
installation and is amortized on pro-rata basis over a period o f three years.

5. IM P A IR M E N T  O F  A SSETS

Carrying amount o f cash generating units/ assets is reviewed fo r impairment. Impairment, if any, is recognized where the 
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount being the higher o f net realizable price and value in use.

6. E X P E N D IT U R E  IN C U R R E D  D U R IN G  C O N S T R U C T IO N  P E R IO D

Expenditure directly relating to  construction activity including tria l run production expenses (net o f income, if any) is 
capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as part o f the indirect construction cost 
to  the extent to  which the expenditure is indirectly related to  construction o r is incidental thereto. O ther indirect expenditure 
(including borrow ing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to  the construction activity nor is 
incidental thereto, is charged to  the Profit & Loss Account.

7. IN V E S T M E N T S

Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. C urrent investments are stated at the lower of cost and 
quoted/ fair value. Long term  investments are stated at cost less any provision fo r dim inution in value o ther than temporary.

8. R E V E N U E  R E C O G N IT IO N

Sales are inclusive of, excise duty, service tax and net o f sales tax and discount. Export sales are net o f ocean freight and 
insurance.

o
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Revenue in respect o f long-term turnkey works contracts is recognized under percentage o f completion method, subject to  
such contracts having progressed to  a reasonable extent. Revenue in respect o f installation services is recognized on 
completion o f services fo r which ascertained amount is more likely to  be recovered than not.

9. IN V E N T O R Y  V A L U A T IO N
Inventories are valued at lower o f cost o r  net realizable value except scrap which is valued at net realizable value.The cost 
is determined by using first-in -firs t-ou t (FIFO) method. Finished goods and work-in progress include costs o f conversion 
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to  the ir present location and condition.

Excise duty on closing stock o f finished goods and scrap are accounted fo r on the basis of payments made in respect o f goods 
cleared and also provision is made fo r goods lying in the factory and included in the value o f such stocks.

10. D E P R E C IA T IO N
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV 
to  the Companies Act, 1956, except in case o f mobile phones on which depreciation has been charged on pro-rata basis over 
four years . Individual assets costing Rs.5000 o r less are depreciated in full in the year o f purchase. Leasehold land fo r lease 
period below 90 years is amortized over the period o f lease from  the date o f commencement o f commercial operations.

I I . P R O D U C T  W A R R A N T Y  EX P EN S E S
Liability fo r  W arranties is recognized at the time the claim is accepted. The necessary provisions are made w ith respect to 
warranties claimed and accepted up to  the end of one month from  the close o f the year.

12. F O R E IG N  C U R R E N C Y  T R A N S A C T IO N S
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date o f the 
transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-end are translated at exchange rate 
applicable as on that date. Non monetary items are valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date o f transaction. Any 
income o r expense on account o f exchange difference either on settlement o r on translation is recognized in the pro fit and 
loss account.

13. B O R R O W IN G  C O S T
Borrowing costs that are attributable to  the acquisition o r the construction o f qualifying assets are capitalized as part o f cost 
o f such assets. A  qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period o f time to  get ready fo r intended use. 
A ll o ther borrow ing costs are charged to  revenue.

14. IN C O M E  O N  IN V E S T M E N T S
Dividend on shares is accounted for, as and when the right to  receive the same is established.

15. C LA IM S
Claims receivables are accounted fo r depending on the certainty o f receipt and claims payables are accounted at the time of 
acceptance.

16. E M P LO Y E E ’S B E N E FIT S
L Short term  employee benefit are recognized as an expenses at the undiscounted amount in the p ro fit and loss account

o f the year in which related service is rendered.

ii. The company has defined contribution plans fo r post-retirem ent benefit, namely Employee Provident Fund Scheme 
administered through Provident Fund Commissioner and company contribution is charged to  revenue every year.

iii. Company contribution to  state plans namely Employees State Insurance Fund & Employee Welfare Fund are charged 
to  revenue every year.

iv. The company has defined benefit plan namely Leave Encashment / Compensated absence and Gratuity, the liability for 
which is determined on the basis o f an actuarial valuation at the end o f the year. G ratuity Trust is administrated through 
Life Insurance Corporation o f India (LIC).

V Termination benefits are recognized as expense immediately.

vi. Gain o r  Loss arising ou t o f actuarial valuation is recognized in the pro fit & loss account as income o r expense.

17. D erivatives
In case o f forward contracts, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate, being the premium o r discount, 
at the inception o f a forward exchange contract is recognized as income/expense over the life o f the contract. Exchange 
differences on such contracts are recognized in the pro fit and loss account in the reporting period in which the rates change. 
Any p ro fit o r loss arising on cancellation o r renewal o f forward exchange contract is recognized as income o r as expense fo r 
the period.

18. T A X A T IO N

Provision fo r current income tax is made after taking cred it fo r  allowances and exemptions. In case o f matters under appeal, 
due to  disallowance o r otherwise, provision is made when the said liabilities are accepted by the company.



In accordance w ith the Accounting Standard 22-Accounting fo r Taxes on income, the deferred tax fo r tim ing differences 
between the book & tax p ro fit fo r  the period is accounted fo r using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted o r 
substantively enacted as o f the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from  tem porary tim ing difference are recognized to  the extent there is virtual certainty that the 
asset w ill be realized in future.

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to  the extent there is convincing evidence that 
the Company w ill pay income tax higher than that computed under MAT, during the period that MAT is perm itted to  be set 
o ff under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (specified period). In the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to  be recognized 
as an asset in accordance w ith the recommendations contained in the guidance note issued by the Institute o f Chartered 
Accountants o f India (1CAl), the said asset is created by way o f a cred it to  the pro fit and loss account and shown as MAT credit 
entitlement.The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount o f MAT credit 
entitlem ent to  the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to  the effect that the Company w ill pay income tax higher 
than MAT during the specified period.

19. G O V E R N M E N T  G R A N T S
Government grant in the nature o f p rom oter’s contribution is treated as capital receipt and credited to  investment subsidy 
account.

Grant in the nature o f revenue subsidy is treated as revenue receipt and credited to  p ro fit and loss account.

20. P R O V IS IO N  A N D  C O N T IN G E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S
Show cause notices issued by various government authorities are not considered as obligation. W hen the demand notice are 
raised against such show cause notice and are disputed by the company then these are classified as possible obligations. 

Provisions involving substantial degree o f estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as 
a result o f past events and it is probable that there w ill be an outflow  o f resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized 
but are disclosed in notes.

2 1. LEASES
Leases o f assets under which all the risks and rewards o f ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Annual lease payments are recognized as an expense on straight-line basis and in accordance w ith the 
respective lease agreements.

Assets acquired under leases where company has substantially all the risks and rewards o f ownership are classified as finance 
lease. Assets acquired under the finance lease are capitalized and corresponding lease liability is recorded at an amount equal 
to  the fair value o f the leased asset at the inception o f the lease o r present value o f minimum lease payment, whichever is 
lower.

22. P R O P O S E D  D IV ID E N D
Dividend as proposed by Board o f D irectors is provided fo r in the books o f account, pending approval at the Annual General 
Meeting.

23. C E N V A T /V A T

CENVAT/VAT claimed on capital assets are credited to  assets/ capital w o rk  in progress account. CENVAT /VAT on purchase 
o f raw materials and o ther materials are deducted from  the cost o f such material.

SCHEDULE - I 5 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

C u rre n t Y ear Previous Year
1 C o n tin gen t lia b ilities : (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs)

i) Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt 108.13 108.13

ii) Outstanding Guarantee Issued by Banks 1,660.32 690.87

iii) Letter of Credits issued by the Banks (Agst. which Goods have not been despatched) 2 ,3 3 8 .8 9  1,160.70

2 Machinery costing Rs I 179 .15 Lacs having depreciated value Rs. 782.20 Lacs acquired in earlier years, has been retired from  active 
use due to  technical obsolescence and the same disposed off during the year.

Purchase R edem ption / Sale

3 Details o f Investm ent purchased and sold during th e  year. Units/Shares Rs. Units/Shares Rs.

Units o f Mutual Funds 12,119,353 47 0 ,00 0 ,00 0 12,1 19,434 470,005,1 17
Shares 87,763 8 7 7 ,6 3 0 486,667 53 ,528 ,4 20

o



4 T h e  d eferred  ta x  liab ility  a t th e  year end connprise o f th e  following : (Rs in Lacs)

D eferred  Tax L iability  on account o f :

Difference between W D V  as per Companies A c t and Income 

tax Act, 1961.

D eferred  Tax assets on account of;

Disallowance under Section 43B o f the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Provision fo r Doubtful Debts/Advances

O thers

N e t  d eferred  ta x  liability/(assets)

Opening Deferred Tax Liability 

D eferred  Tax C h arg e d /(C red it) during th e  year 

D eferred  Tax C h arg e d /(C red it) on account o f 

previou years

A S A T  31.03.2011 A S A T  31.03.2010

437.59

437.59

108.36

71 1.36

711.36  

269.35

60.51

47.85

51.45

23.62

194.28

329.23

442.01

(4 8 .6 0 )

(6 4 .1 8 )

442.01

651.19

(2 0 9 .1 8 )

5 Bad debts deb ited  to  accounts include :

Debit balances w ritten  off 

C red it balances w ritten  back

N e t

C u rren tY ea r

3.99

0.33

3.66

Previous Year

152.42

152.42

6 D ire c to rs ’ S itting  Fee 0.82 0.56

7 Research and Development expenses shown under the head W o rk  in Progress in previous year amounting to  Rs. 204.90 lacs 

(P.Y. N il) have been charged to  revenue as no future economic benefit is expected to  flow  to  the company on use.

C u rren tY ea r  

1 1,270,000  

381 .90  

3.39

PreviousYear 

I 1,270,000
(447.79)

(3.97)

8 E A R N IN G  PER S H A R E

a) Equity Shares (Nos.)

b) Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per P & L Account(Rs. in lacs)

c) Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share(Rs)

9 R E LA TE D  PAR TY IN F O R M A T IO N  

R E L A T IO N S H IP

a) Names o f the related parties where contro l exists are as under :

- Subsidiary;

- Shyam Telecom Inc.

b) - Key Management Personnel : Mr. Rajiv M ehrotra , Mr AlokTondon,M r.Arun Khanna and Mr. Ajay Khanna and relative of

Key Management personal : Mr. K.N. M ehrotra

c) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and relatives are able to  exercise significant influence; Shyam Antenna 
Electronics Ltd., Intercity Cable System Pvt. Ltd, Shyam Communication Systems, Shyam Basic Infrastructures Projects Pvt. 
Ltd., Shyam Netw orks Ltd. (form erly Shyam Telecom Systems Pvt. Ltd.),A.T. Invofin India Pvt. Ltd., Cell cap Invofin India Pvt 
Ltd, Intell Invofin India Pvt Ltd, Shyam Digital Communications Pvt Ltd, Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd.,Ubico Networks 
Pvt.Ltd., RMS Autom ation Systems Ltd., Spectranet Pvt Ltd., and Vihaan Networks Ltd.

N o te ; Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors.
Transaction w ith  the above related parties are as follows ;



(Rs. in Lacs)

P A R T IC U L A R S

31.03.201 1 31.03.2010

Subsidiaries

Enterprises  
over which  

key
m anagem ent 

personnel 
& th e ir  

relatives 
are  able to  

exercise  
significant 
influence

Key 
M anagem ent 

Personnel 
and th e ir  
relatives

Total Subsidiaries

Enterprises  
over which  

key
m anagem ent 

personnel 
& th e ir  

relatives 
are  able to  

exercise 
significant 
influence

Key 
M anagem ent 

Personnel 
and th e ir  
relatives

Total

1 Sale o f G oods &  Services

Shyam Telecom Inc. 313.19 - 313.19 383.77 383.77

Spectranet ISP Pvt Ltd. 167.36 167.36 31.82 31.82

Vihaan N etw orks Limited 581.36 581.36 - 913.23 913.23

Ubico N etw orks Pvt Ltd. 331.20 331.20 692.64 692.64

Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd. 16,000.21 16,000.21 1 1.367.69 1 1,367.69

RMS Autom ation Systems Ltd. 1 14.27 1 14.27 - ■ 272.18 272.18

Sub Total 313.19 17,194.40 17,507.59 383.77 13,277.56 13,661.33

2 Purchase o f th e  goods -

Vihaan N etw orks Limited 508.35 508.35

RMS Autom ation Systems Ltd. 10.353,61 10,353.61 1,682.00 1,682.00

Sub Total 10,861.96 10,861.96 1,682.00 1,682.00

3 Rent Paid

Mr.K.N. Mehrotra 1.20 1.20 - 1.20 1.20

Shyam Antenna Electronics Ltd. 25.92 25.92 25.92 - 25.92

Shyam Communication Systems 16.55 16.55 13.23 13.23

Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd. 1.65 1.65 1.99 1.99

Sub Total 44.12 1.20 45.32 41.14 1.20 42.34

4 Rent Received

RMS Autom ation Systems Ltd. 14.74 14.74 13.51 13.51

Sub Total 14.74 14.74 13.51 13.51
5 In te res t Expense

Shyam N etw orks Ltd. 179.22 179.22 232.67 232.67

Sub Total 179.22 179.22 232.67 232.67

6 Loan Received

Shyam N etw orks Ltd. 955.00 955.00 2,048.00 2,048.00

Sub Total 955.00 955.00 2,048.00 2,048.00
7 R epaym ent o f Loan

Shyam N etw orks Ltd. 393.00 393.00 1,565.00 1.565.00 ^

Sub Total 393.00 393.00 1,565.00 - 1,565.00 '
8 A dvance Recovered

Shyam Telecom Inc. 123.12 . - 123.12

Sub Total 123.12 - - 123.12
9 A m o u n t Receivable

Shyam Telecom Inc. 174.02 - - 174.02 49.14 49.14

Spectranet ISP Pvt. Ltd. 66.28 66.28 - 6.82 6.82

Inte rcity Cable System Pvt. Ltd. 13.86 13.86 I.9S 1.95
Ubico N etw orks Pvt. Ltd. 79.67 79.67

RMS Autom ation Systems Ltd. 21 1.41 21 1.41

Sub Total 174.02 371.22 545.24 49.14 8.77 - 57.91
10 A m o u n t Payble

Shyam Communication Systems - - 200.05 200.05
Vihaan N etw orks Limited 39.37 39.37

Intell Invofin India Pvt. Ltd. - I.OI 1.01
Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd. 969.15 969.15 1,050.20 1,050.20
RMS Autom ation Systems Ltd. 1,460.63 - 1,460.63
Shyam Antenna Electronics Ltd. 28.64 28.64 100.30 100.30
Shyam N etw orks Ltd. - - 658.77 - 658.77

Sub Total 1.037.16 1,037.16 - 3,470.96 - 3,470.96
II Loans O utstand ing

Shyam N etw orks Ltd. 3,398.65 3,398.65 - 2,836.65 2,836.65
Sub Total 3.398.65 3,398.65 - 2,836.65 - 2,836.65

12 Advances recoverable

Shyam Telecom Inc. 1,552.90 - 1,552.90 1,676.03 1,676.03
Shyam Communication Systems 34.00 34.00 -

Sub Total 1,552.90 34.00 - 1,586.90 1,676.03 - 1,676.03
13 In te res t Payable

Shyam N etw orks Ltd. 820.07 - 820.07 - 658.77 . 658.77
Sub Total - 820.07 - 820.07 - 658.77 658.77

o



i.) The Company use forward contract to  hedge current account transaction.The company does not use these contracts fo r trading o r speculation purpose.

Particu lars  o f Hedged Foreign C u rrency  Exposure (Rs In Lacs)

P articulars C u rre n cy Foreign C urrency  O utstand ing  as on 
31.03.201 I

Foreign C urrency  
O utstand ing  as on 

31.03.2010

A m o u n t  
O utstanding  in 

IN R a s o n 3 l.0 3 .2 0 l I

A m o u n t  
O utstanding  in 

IN R as  o n 3 l.0 3 .2 0 l0

C red ito rs 158.53 69.66 7,217.77 3,177.19

P articu lars  o f U nhedged  
Foreign C urrency  Exposure Respective Foreign C urrency  shown in Lacs (Rs in Lacs)

P articulars C u rre n cy O utstand ing  am o u n t in Foreign  
C urrency as on 3 1.0 3 .2 0 11

Foreign C urrency  
O utstanding  as on 

31.03.2010

A m o u n t  
O utstanding  in 

IN R a s  o n 31.03 .20 I I

A m o u n t  
O utstanding  in 

IN R a s  o n 3 ).0 3 .2 0 )0

C red ito rs

Advance to  Suppliers  

Advance Received

U S D
Euro
C H F
U S D
Euro
G B P
JPY
AED
U S D
E uro
U S D

114.94 
0.26 
2.48 

76.42 
0.03

0.09
0.47
3.52
0.25

91.73

I 14.73 
1.20 
2.48 

17.79 
0.04 
0.01

4.79
0.03

94.05

5.132.21 
16.64 

122.06 
3,412.18 

1.95

0.05
5.92

157.20
15.69

4,095.68

5.178.74
72.70

105.04
803.35

2.35
0.32

216.09
1.96

4.245.25

I I S E G M E N T  IN F O R M A T IO N
The Company’s operations predominantly relate to  providing Telecommunication products , Turnkey Projects , Trading and 
respective related Services.The company has considered business segment as the primary segment fo r disclosure.The segments 
have been identified taking into account the nature o f the products, the deferring risk and returns, the organisation structure and 
internal reporting system .The company caters mainly to  the needs o f the domestic market and export turnover is not significant 
in context o f the tota l turnover, hence there is no reportable geographical segment .The Telecom products & Services segment 
comprise o f manufacturing, trading and services in the related area. Turnkey Projects and trading services segment includes the 
turnkey Projects and Trading in Telecom Products. Investments are primarly in the companies which are dealing in IT and 
telecommunication sectors.

Revenue & expenditure which relates to  enterprises as a whole and are not attributable to  segments are included in unallocable 
expenditure ( N e t o f unallocable income ) . Assets used in the Company’s business o r liabilities contracted have not been 
identified to  any o f the reportable segment , as all the assets and services are used interchangeably between segments. The 
Company believes that it is currently not practicable to  provide segment disclosure relating to  tota l assets and liabilities since a 
meaningful segregation o f the available data is onerous.

Rs in Lacs 

Year Ended 
3 1 -M a r-2010

S egm ent Reporting  
Particulars  
S egm ent Revenue
- Telecom Products & Services
- Trading and Turnkey Projects
- Investments 

Net Sales

S egm ent Results
(Profit before Am ortisation, Interest, Tax and unallocable overheads)
- Telecom Products & Services
- Trading and Turnkey Projects
- Investments

Total
Less :
- Depreciation & Am ortisation
- Interest & Financial Charges
O ther un-allocable Expenditure ( N e t o f un-allocable Income)

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Taxes (net o f MAT Credit)

N e t profitZ(Loss) a fte r taxes

Year Ended 
3 I -M ar-201 I

7 ,0 99 .28
60 ,617 .8 2

385.80

68 ,1 0 2 .9 0

79.68
1,928.33

385.80

2,393.81

342.48
323.59

1,350.65

377.09
(4 -8 1 )

381.90

7,478.30
21,666.36

1.72

29,146.38

600.02
73.76

1.72
675.50

358.03
452.21
521.16

(655.90)
(208.11) 

(447.79)

I 2 Some o f the personal accounts are subject to  adjustments / reconciliation / confirmation .

I 3 In the opinion o f Board o f D irectors Fixed Assets, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on realisation in ordinary



course o f business at least equal to  the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provision fo r all liabilities have 
been made in the Accounts, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

I 4 In compliance w ith the accounting standards 15 (revised 2005) “ Employee Benefits”  The company has got the employee benefits 
evaluated from  actuarial valuer.

T h e  C om pany has calculated th e  various benefits provided to  em ployees as under:

A . Providen t Fund

During the year the Company has recognized Rs. 58.45 Lacs (previous Year Rs. 5 1.69 lacs) towards contribution to  PF in the 
Profit and Loss account.

B.

C.

S tate  Plans

Employer’s contribution to  Employee State insurance and to  welfare fund

During the year the Company has recognised Rs. 6.39 lacs (Previous year Rs. 3.65 Lacs)towards contribution to  ESI and Rs.
0.18 Lacs (previous Year Rs. 0.027 Lacs) towards welfare fund, in the Profit and Loss accounts.

D efined B enefit Plans

The actuarial valuation carried ou t is based on following assumption;

a) Leave Encashment

b) Contribution to  G ratuity Fund - Employee’s Gratuity Fund.

iii)

iv)

C urre n tV e a r PreviousYear

A c tu a r ia l A ssum ptions Leave Em ployee Leave Em ployee
E ncashm ent G ra tu ity  Fund Encashm ent G ra tu ity  Fund

Discount Rate (per annum) 8%/8.IO% 8%/8.IO% 8.00% 8.00%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Rate of return on plan assets - 9.15% - 9.15%

(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in  Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)
C hange in th e  o b lig a tio n  d u r in g  th e  year
Present value obligation as at beginning of period 100.62 90.85 87.51 82.56
Impact ofTransition provision of AS-15 - - - -

Interest cost 8.05 7.27 6.56 6.19
Past Service cost - 12.36 2.18
Current service cost 20.15 17.30 20.1 1 14.02
Curtailment cost - -

Settlement cost - - - .

Benefits Paid (3.23) (11.11) (3.83) (13.99)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on Obligations (13.71) 19.51 (9.74) (0.1 1)
Present vaiue obligation as at the end of the period - 100.61 90.85
Receivable from other company’s fund - - - -

N et Present value obligation as at the end of the period 1 1 1.88 136.18 100.61 90.85

C hange in fa ir  va lue  p lan  Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets as at beginning o f the period 37.94 28.97
Expected return on Plan Assets - 4.24 - 2.59
Contributions - 43.37 20.18
Benefits Paid - (10.06) - (13.98)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on Obligations - - - 0.18
Fair value of Pian Assets as at the end of the period - 75.49 - 37.94

R eco n c ilia tion  o f  P resen t va lue  o f  D efined  B e n e fit o b lig a tio n  
and F a irv a lu e  o f Assets
Present value obligation as at the end of the period 1 1 1.88 136.18 100.61 90.85
Fair value of Plan Assets as at the end o f the period - 75.49 . 37.94
Funded Status (! 1 1.88) (60.69) (100.61) (52.91)
Present value o f un-funded obligation as at the end o f the period - - - -

Un-recognized Actuarial (gains)/ losses - - - -

Un-funded NetAsset/ (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet. ( i  I 1.88) (60.69) (100.61) (52.91)

Expenses recogn ised  in P ro fit  and L ossA ccou n t
C urrent service cost 20.15 17.30 20.1 1 14.02
Past Service cost - 12.36 (0.36) 4.89
Interest cost 8.05 7.27 6.56 6.19
Expected return on Plan Assets - (4.24) - (2.59)
Curtailment cost - - . -

Settlement cost - - . -

N et Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised during the year {13.71) 19.51 (9.74) (0.30)
Received / Receivable from other company’s fund - - - -

N et Expense recognised in Profit and LossAccount 14.49 52.20 16.57 22.21



s H V f i m
t i l e c o m  l t d

I 5 The Company has not received any intim ation from  “ suppliers”  regarding the ir status under the Micro, small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure, if any, relating to  amounts unpaid as at the year end together w ith
interest paid/payable as required under the said A c t have not been furnished.

16 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary.

I 7 A d d itio na l in fo rm ation  pursuant to  P art II o f Schedule V I o f th e  Com panies A c t, 1956.

(As certified  by th e  m anagem ent) C u rren tY ea r PreviousYear

A. L IC E N S E D  C A P A C IT Y N.A. N.A

B. IN S T A L L E D  C A P A C IT Y

Most o f the Plant & Machinery is common fo r different products manufactured by 
the company, the installed capacity depends on products mix which in turn is 
decided by actual demand fo r  various products from  tim e to  time, as such it  is not 
practical to  ascertain product-wise installed production capacity.

C u rren tY ea r

D.

E.

G.

PreviousYear

H.

P R O D U C T IO N Q ty Value Q ty Value
(N os) (Rs.) (N os) (Rs.)

- Repeator 7,333 - 5,766 -

- Radio Modems 3,607 - - -

O P E N IN G  S T O C K
- Repeator 299 14,458,059 129 7,784,997
- Radio Modems - - - -
- Communication Systems & Accessories 608,611 23,640,607 95,614 16,978,129
- Mobile Handsets & accessories 190,891 262,946,110 63,824 98,787,425

30 1 ,04 4 ,77 6 123,550,551

T U R N O V E R  (Including Services)
- Repeator 7,440 482,664,804 5,596 450,800,585
- Radio Modems 3,381 89,009,350 - -
- Communication Systems & Accessories 1,576,707 116,491,485 1,805,669 240,298,419
- Mobile Handsets & accessories 5,423,489 6,061,781,890 1,374,355 2,000,819,102
- Service Charges - 57,723,635 - 81,972,352
- Computers & accessories - - 14,256 158,842,464
- Accessories fo r W LL cordect system - - 16,623 6,917,571
- O thers - 10,284,776 - 8,410,564

6 ,8 17 ,95 5 ,94 0 2 ,948 ,061 ,057

C L O S IN G  S T O C K
- Repeator 192 4,597,136 299 14,458,059
- Radio Modems 226 2,633,066 - -
- Communication Systems & Accessories 232,798 15,805,648 608,611 23,640,607
- Mobile Handsets & accessories 751,333 832,139,883 190,891 262,946,110

85 5 ,175 ,733 301,044 ,776

P U R C H A S E  O F  G O O D S  T R A D E D
- Communication Systems & Accessories 1,200,894 74,740,302 2,318,666 180,679,064
- Mobile Handsets & accessories 5,983,931 6,348,484,991 1,501,422 2,109,325,637
- Computers & accessories - - 14,256 157,278,528
- Accessories fo r W LL cordect system - - 16,623 6,571,692

Sub-Total 6 ,423 ,225 ,293 2,453,854,921

C O N S U M P T IO N  O F  R A W  M A T E R IA L
- Electronic Components 19,000,252 259,066,957 16,459,427 207,292,487
- Mechanical Components 6,372,974 101,336,837 91 1,917 61,889,887

Sub-Total 3 6 0 ,40 3 ,79 4 269 ,182 ,374

Total 6 ,7 83 ,62 9 ,08 7 2 ,723 ,037 ,295

o



SHvnm
t e l e c o m  l t o

E A R N IN G S  IN  F O R E IG N  C U R R E N C Y

- F.O.B.Value o f Export Goods

- F.O.B.Value o f Export Service

C u rren tY ea r
(R s )

170,270,965 

688,203

PreviousYear
(R s )

205,801,527

333,366

E X P E N D IT U R E  IN  F O R E IG N  C U R R E N C Y

- Travelling

- Business Prom otion

- Commission

- Exhibition Expenses

- Product Certification Charges

- Legal .Professional and consultancy Charges

7,289,443

2,808,000

2,231,691

16,391,742

4,057,797

3,047,301

7,384,231

3,511,163 

17,360,199

12,540,653

K. C .I.F .V A L U E  O F  IM P O R TS

- Raw Material

- Communication Systems & Accessories

- Capital Goods

- Mobile Handsets & accessories

288,369,274

32,774,064

6,303,461

6,062,869,418

185,080,623 

99,995,682 

2,743,721 

2,064,592,71 I

V A L U E  O F  IM P O R T E D  A N D  IN D IG E N O U S  R A W  M A TE R IA LS  SPARE PARTS A N D  C O M P O N E N T S  

C O N S U M E D  :

C u rren tY ea r

R A W  M A T E R IA L

IMPORTED

INDIGENOUS

T O T A L

Value (Rs.) % o fTotal

Consum ption

263,910,899

96,492,895

36 0 ,40 3 ,79 4

73.23

26.77

PreviousYear

Value (Rs.) % o fTotal

Consum ption

194,243,138

74,939,236

100.00 26 9 ,18 2 ,37 4

73.00

27.00

100.00

As per our repo rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K. M E H R A
Partner 
M .N o. 6 102

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irecto r

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irec to r

A L O K T A N D O N
Managing D irecto r



BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE
i R E G IS R A T IO N  D E TA ILS

Registration No. 1 1 7 1 - 1 1 1 7 1 7 1 5 1 0 State Code l ' | 7
Balance Sheet Date 3 1 ' 1 0 m  2 1 0 1 1 1 1

1 ~ T I  I I n I T T T

ii C A P IT A L  R A IS ED  D U R IN G  T H E  Y E A R  (Am ount in Rs Thousand)

Public Issue Right Issue

□ I  I I I | N | l E G
Bonus Issue Private Placement

I I I I I | N l I | L | I I I I I i ^ r r r m
ill P O S IT IO N  O F  M O B IL IS A T IO N  A N D  D E P L O Y M E N T  O F  F U N D S  (Am ount in Rs Thousand)

Total Assets

I I 8 I 7 I 9 I 3 I I I
Total Liabilities

I | 8 | 7 | 9 | 3 _ | T H
S O U R C E S  O F  F U N D S

Paid up capital

~ r ~ T i  1 1 1 2 1 7 1 0 1 o n
Advanced fo r Share Capital

r - | — r  I I i N i  I i L
Secured Loans

  ...............   l o

Reserve & Surplus

[ I I 3 I 8 I 2 I 3 I 9 I gj
Unsecured Loans

I I I 3 I 3 I 9 I 8 I 6 T s
Deferred Tax Liability

I I I I 3 I 2 I 9 I 2~TT
A P P L IC A T IO N  O F  F U N D S

N et Fixed Assets (Including Capital W ork  in Progress)

r - m  1 6 1 8 1 8 1 4 1 0 1

N et Current Assets

I I | 6 | 0 | I | 4 | 0 | 0

iv P E R F O R M A N C E  O F  C O M P A N Y  (Am ount in Rs.Thousand) 

Turnover (Including o ther income )

T T | 8 | 3 | l | 4 | 6 m

Investment (Including advance fo r investment)

I I I I I 9 I 0 I 7 I 61
Preoperative Expenditure

f I I I I I N I I I L I

Total Expenditure

I I 6 I 7 I 9 I 3 I 7 I 6 IT
Profit Before Tax

I I I 3 I 7 1 f J T V T
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share in Rs.

r ~ i  I 1 3 1 1 3 T T I

Profit A fte r Tax

I I I | 3 | 8j  I | 9 | 0 _

Dividend Rate

L .  J 1 I I I N 1 1 1 l:

V  G E N E R A L  N A M E S  O F T H R E E  P R IN C IP A L  P R O D U C T S  I SERVICES O F  C O M P A N Y

(As per monetary terms ) N.A.

Item Code No. ( ITC Code 

Product Description

852520.09

O ther Radio Communication Equipment including VHP, UHF & 

Microwave Communication Equipment

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irec to r

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irecto r

A L O K  T A N D O N

Managing D irec to r



STATEMENT REGARDING SUBSIDIARY COMPANY PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 1956.

I. Name o f the Subsidiary Company Shyam Telecom Inc.

2. Financial Year o f the Subsidiary Company ended on 3 I “  December, 2 0 10

3. Financial Year o f Holding Company ended on 31“  March, 201 I

4. Holding Company’s Interest as on 3 1.03.201 I Holders o f the entire issued, subscribed & paid up 

Share capital o f 100 shares o f I US$ each.

5. N e t aggregate am ount o f p ro fit / (loss) o f the Subsidiary 

Company so far as it concerns the members of Shyam Telecom 

Limited.

(a) N o t dealt w ith  the accounts o f Shyam Telecom Limited.

(i) For the subsidiary’s 9 Months ended 3 1. 12.2010

(ii) For the previous financial year o f subsidiary’s since it

became subsidiary o f Shyam Telecom Limited.

(b) Dealt w ith the accounts o f Shyam Telecom Limited.

(i) For the subsidiary’s 9 Months ended 3 1. 12.2010

(ii) For the  previous subs id ia ry ’s financia l year o f

subsid iary’s since it  became subsidiary o f Shyam 

Telecom Limited.

US$ (312,455) 

US$ (13,73,060)

N il

N il

6. Material changes which have occurred between the end of 

financial year o f the Subsidiary Company and the end o f the 

holding company's financial year in respect of

(a) Fixed Assets (including capital w o rk  in progress o f the 

subsidiary company).

(b) Investment o f Subsidiary Company.

(c) Money lent by subsidiary company.

(d) Money borrowed by subsidiary company fo r any purpose 

other than that o f meeting o f current liabilities.

Nil

Nil

N il

Nil

RAJIV MEHROTRA
Chairman & Managing D irec to r

AJAY KHANNA
Managing D irec to r

ALOKTANDON
Managing D irecto r

o



D I R E C T O R S ’ R E P O R T

Your D irectors have pleasure in presenting the ir Annual Report on the business and operations o f the company together w ith the 
Audited Accounts fo r the period ended 3 1 “  December, 2 0 10.

C A P IT A L

The Company has an issued, subscribed and paid-up capital o f 100 shares o f USD I each amounting to  USD 100 (INR 4,374). 

H O L D IN G  C O M P A N Y

Your Company is wholly owned subsidiary o f Shyam Telecom Limited, company incorporated in India.

F IN A N C IA L  P E R F O R M A N C E

PA R TIC U LA R S

Sales & O the r Income
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Provision fo r Tax
Profit/(Loss) A fte r Tax
Balance brought forward fromprevious year
Balance carried to  Balance Sheet

For th e  period ended on 
31st D e ce m b er 2010
In US$
848105

(312455)

(312455)
(1373060)
(1685515)

InR s.
38741441

(13555394)

(13555394)
(61705114)
(75260508)

20 09 -10

In US$
I6 I5 6 8 I

127473
2200

125273
(1498333)
(1373060)

In Rs.
76961695
I88S604S

100096
18755949

(80461063)
(61705114)

C O R P O R A T E  R E V IE W
During the period under review your company has registered a turnover o f USD 848105 (INR 38741441) fo rth e  period as against USD 
16 15681 (INR 76961695) in the previous year. There is a net loss o f USD 3 12455 (INR 13555394) fo r the period as against a net profit 
o f USD 125273 (INR 18755949) in the previous year.

D IV ID E N D

N o dividends have been declared fo r the period ended 31st December 2010.

D IR E C T O R S

Mr. B.A. Majmudar is the D irecto r who holds office and looks after the affairs o f the Company.

R E LA TED  PARTIES T R A N S A C T IO N S

Disclosures on Related Party Transactions is disclosed in Schedule 12 (Notes to  Accounts) to  the Balance Sheet under the heading 
Related Parties.

D IR E C T O R S  R E S P O N S IB IL IT Y  S T A T E M E N T

In terms o f the provision of Section 217 (2AA) o f the Companies Act, 1956, your directors confirm that:
i) In the preparation o f the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed along w ith proper explanation 

relating to  material departures, where necessary.
ii) The D irectors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to  give a true and fair view o f the state o f affairs o f the company at the end of period ending on 3 1 st 
December 2 0 10 and o f the loss o f the company fo r the period ended on that date.

iii) The D irectors had taken proper and sufficient care fo r the maintenance o f adequate Accounting Records in accordance w ith the 
provisions o f this A c t fo r safeguarding the assets o f the company and fo r preventing and detecting fraud and o ther irregularities.

iv) The D irectors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.

F IN A N C IA L Y E A R

The Company would now observe financial year commencing from  1st January to  31st December every year in place of 1st April to 
31st March.The enclosed Balance 5heet is fo r the period 1st April 2010 to  31st December 2010 fo r nine months.

A U D IT O R S

M/s Mehra Goel & Co., Chartered Accountants, Auditors o f your Company have audited the Accounts o f the Company fo r the Financial 
period ended 31st December 2010 and expressed the ir willingness to  continue as Auditors o f the Company.

The notes to  the Accounts referred to  in the A ud ito rs ’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call fo r any fu rthe r 
comments.

On Behalf o f the Board o f D irectors of 
S H Y A M T E L E C O M  IN C

B .A  M A JM U D A R
D ire c to r



AUDITORS’ REPORT

To

The Shareholders o f Shyam Telecom Inc.USA

We have audited the balance sheet o f Shyam Telecom Inc. USA as at December 3 1,2 0 10, the Profit and Loss Account and also the Cash 

Flow Statement o f the company fo r the 9 months period ended on that date { the financial statements) attached hereto, which have 

been prepared in accordance w ith  the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

Respective Responsibilities o f th e  M anagem ent and A uditors

The Management o f the Company is responsible fo r the preparation o f the financial statements. It is our responsibility to  form  an 

independent opinion, based on our audit o f the financial statements.

Basis o f O pin ion

W e conducted our audit in accordance w ith  the auditing standards. An audit includes examination, on a test basis o f evidence relevant 

to  the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment o f the significant estimates and judgments 

made by the management in the preparation o f the financial statements and whether the accounting policies are appropriate to  the 

circumstances to  the Company, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. W e planned and performed audit so as to  obtain all 

information and explanation, which to  the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary fo r  the purpose of our audit.

The financial statements dealt w ith  by this repo rt are in agreement w ith books o f accounts o f the Company and have been compiled 

solely fo r  complying w ith Indian laws.

O pinion

In our opinion and to  the best o f our information and according to  the explanations given to  us, the financial statements read w ith the 

accounting policies and notes thereon give a true and fair view:

(i) in

(ii) in

(iii) in

For M E H R A  G O E L  & CO . 

C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K. M E H R A

PLACE ; N EW  DELHI Partner

DATED; 25th July, 2 0 1 I M.No. 6 102

o



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st DECEMBER, 2010

I S O U R C E S  O F  F U N D S : 
S H A R E H O L D E R ’S F U N D S

Share Capital

Advance Against Share Capital

II A P P L IC A T IO N  O F  F U N D S  

F IX E D  A SSETS

Gross Block 

Less : Depreciation

S C H E D U L E  A S A T  
N O . 3 1 -D e c -10 

US$

100

25,050

36,848

25,203

N e t Block 11,645

A S A T
3 I - D e c - 10 

Rs.

4,374

1,094,684

25 ,150  1 ,099,058

1,696,480

1,153,871

5 4 2 ,60 9

A S A T
3 I -M a r-1 0 

US$

100

25,050

36,848

23,090

13,758

A S A T
3 I -M a r -10 

Rs.

4,374

1,094,684

25 ,150  1,099,058

1,696,480

1,067,452

62 9 ,02 8

C U R R E N T A S S E T S , L O A N S  & A D V A N C E S

C u rren tA ssets

Inventories 3
Sundry Debtors 4

Cash & Bank Balances 5

Loans & Advances 6

Less : C U R R E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S  & P R O V IS IO N S  7

C urren t Liabilities

N E T  C U R R E N T  A S S E T S /(L IA B IL IT IE S ) 
P R O F IT  & L O S S A C C O U N T

S IG N IF IC A N T  A C C O U N T IN G  P O L IC IE S  I I

N O T E S  T O  A C C O U N T S  I 2

As per our report o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

309,946 

540,091 

136,251 

1,185,304

14,107,252 

24,201,476 

6,105,423 

53,113,460

2,1 71 ,59 2  97 ,527 ,611

3,843,602 172,231,670

3 ,8 43 ,60 2  172,231,670

(1,672,010) (74,704,059)

1,685,515 75,260,508

25 ,150  1,099,058

318,105

444,532

175,565

1,575,918

14,490,801

20,066,162

7,925,023

71,136,955

2 ,5 14 ,12 0  113,618,941

3,875,788 174,854,025

3,8 75 ,78 8  174,854,025

(1,361,668) (61,235,084)

1,373,060 61,705,114

25 ,150  1,099,058

R.K. M E H R A
Partner 
M.No. 6 102

B.A. M A JM U D A R
D ire c to r



PROFIT & LOSSACCOUNT FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER,2010

S C H E D U L E

N O .

F O R T H E  P E R IO D  

E N D E D  O N  E N D E D  O N  Y E A R  E N D E D  Y E A R  E N D E D

3 I - D e c - 10 

US$

3 I - D e c - 10 

Rs.

3 I - M a r - 10 

US$

3 I - M a r - 10 

Rs.

IN C O M E

5ales 8 

O ther Income

834,646

13,459

38,126,632

614,809

1,579,898

35,783

75,313,881

1,647,814

848,105 38,741 ,441 1,615,681 76 ,961 ,695

E X P E N D IT U R E

Cost o f Goods Traded 9 

Adm inistration & O ther Expenditure 1 0

550,388

608,059

25,103,222

27,107,194

892,827

592,426

40,671,432 

17,294,070

1,158,447 52 ,210 ,416 1,485,253 57 ,965 ,502

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) BEFO RE D E P R E C IA T IO N  & T A X

Less : Depreciation

(3 1 0 ,3 4 2 )

2,113

(1 3 ,4 6 8 ,9 7 5 )

86,419

130,428

2,955

18,996,193

140,148

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) BEFO RE T A X

Current Year Taxation

(3 1 2 ,4 5 5 ) (1 3 ,5 5 5 ,3 9 4 ) 127,473

2,200

18,856,045

100,096

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) A F T E R T A X

A D D  : Profit(Loss) brought forward

(3 1 2 ,4 5 5 )

(1,373,060)

(1 3 ,5 5 5 ,3 9 4 )

(61,705,114)

125,273

(1,498,333)

18,755,949

(80,461,063)

Balance C arried  to  Balance Sheet (1 .6 8 5 ,5 1 5 ) (7 5 ,2 6 0 ,5 0 8 ) (1 ,3 7 3 ,0 6 0 ) (6 1 ,7 0 5 ,1 1 4 )

S IG N IF IC A N T  A C C O U N T IN G  P O L IC IE S  I I  

N O T E S  T O  A C C O U N T S  I 2

As per our repo rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R .K .M E H R A
Partner 
M.No. 6102

B.A. M A JM U D A R
D ire c to r
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST DECEMBER, 2010

(A )  C A S H  F L O W  F R O M  O P E R A T IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  :

N e t  P ro fit a fte r tax  and before ex trao rd in ary  item s  

A d justm ents f o r :

Depreciation

Interest and Financial Charges 

Provision fo r Doubtful Debts/ Advances 

Exchange Fluctuation

O p e ra tin g  P ro fit before w orking  capital change 

A djustm ents f o r :

Trade & O the r Receivables 

Inventories

Trade & O the r Payables 

Taxes Paid/ (Refunded)

Cash flow  fro m  operating  activ ities (A )

(B ) C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  IN V E S T IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  :

N e t  cash Used In I fro m  Investing A ctiv ities  (B )

(C ) C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  F IN A N C IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  :

Interest and Financial Charges Paid

N e t cash (used in ) I fro m  financing activities (C )

lncrease/(D ecrease) In cash and cash equivalents

N e t  increase I (decrease ) in cash and 
cash equivalents (A + B + C )

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning o f the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end o f the year

For th e  Period ended  
on 3 1-D ec -10 

U S$ Rs.

(312,455) (13,555,394)

2,113

1,146

86,419

52,338

389,002

(3 0 9 ,1 9 6 ) (1 3 ,0 2 7 ,6 3 5 )

295,055

8,159

13,499,179

383,549

(32,186) (2,622,355)

(3 8 ,1 6 8 ) (1 ,7 6 7 ,2 6 2 )

(1,146) (52,338)

(1 ,1 4 6 )  (5 2 ,3 3 8 )

(3 9 ,3 1 4 )  (1 ,8 1 9 ,6 0 0 )

175,565 7,925,023

136,251 6,105,423

Previous
Year

US$

125,273

2,955

2,078

(98,309)

31,997

332,446

84,615

(318,461)

2,200

132,797

(2,078)

(2 ,0 7 8 )

130,719

44,846

175,565

Rs.

18.755.949

140,148

99,920

(4,472,863)

13,605,759

28 ,128 ,913

14,423,165

2,136,916

(39,049,058)

100,096

5 ,740 ,032

(99,920)

(9 9 ,9 2 0 )

5,640,1 12

2,284,91 I 

7,925,023

N o tes  :

1. Cash flow  statement has been prepared following the “  indirect method “  as set out in the Accounting Standard-3 on Cash 
flow  statement.

2. Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balance including bank deposit.

As per our report o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O .
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K. M E H R A
Partner 
M .N o . 6102

B .A .M A JM U D A R
D ire c to r
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE - I $J^ARE C APITAL
IS S U E D  .S U B S C R IB E D A N D  P A ID  UP
100 (PreviousYear 100) Equity Shares o f USD I/- each

The W hole o f the above shares are held by 
Shyam Telecom Ltd., the holding company.

SCHEDULE - 2 FIXED ASSETS
(Overleaf)

SCHEDULE - 3 INVENTORIES
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management) 
Finished goods (Traded)

SCHEDU LE - 4 SUNDRY DEBTORS
D ebts O utstanding  o ver 6 Months
Considered Good 
O thers

SCHEDULE - 5 CASH & BANK BALANCES
Balance W ith  Banks in :
- Current Account
- Money Market Account

SCHEDULE ■ 6 LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advances recoverable in cash o r in kind o r fo r 
value to  be received 
Security Deposits

SCHEDULE - 7 
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
C U R R E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S
Sundry C reditors 
- O thers *
O th e r Liabilities 
Due to  Holding Company 
Advance From Customers 
Due to  D irec to r **

A S A T
3 I - D e c - 10 

US$

100

100

309,946

341,226
198,865

116,251 
20,000

1,180,804
4,500

356,974
8,471

3,477,950
107
100

A S A T  
3 1 -D e c -10 

Rs.

4,374

4,374

14,107,252

3 0 9 ,9 4 6  14 ,107 ,252

15,290,333 
8,911,143

540,091 24 ,201 ,476

5,209,223
896,200

136,251 6 ,105 ,423

52,911,815
201,645

1,185,304 53 ,113 ,4 60

15,995,897
379,572

155,846,939
4,781
4,481

3 ,8 43 ,60 2  172 ,231,670

A S A T A S A T
31-M a r -10 31 -M a r -10

US$ Rs.

100 4,374

100 4,374

318,105 14,490,801

318 ,105 14,490,801

108,183 4,883,368
336,349 15,182,794

44 4 ,53 2 20 ,066 ,162

95,565 4,313,823
80,000 3,61 1,200

175,565 7 ,925 ,023

1,521,418 68,676,825
54,500 2,460,130

1,575,918 71 ,136 ,955

114,735 5,080,140
5,889 265,786

3,712,950 167,602,563
42,1 14 1,901,022

100 4,514

3 ,8 75 ,78 8 174,854,025

*  There are no dues to  creditors coming under the definition o f Small Scale Industrial Undertakings as at December 31, 2010
* *  Maximum amount outstanding during the year Rs.45l4 (Previous year Rs.4SI4)

o
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE 2 FIXED ASSETS
G R O S S B L O C K D E P R E C I A T I O N N E T  B L O C K

Assets As at 
01.04. 

2010

As at 
01.04. 

2010

A dd itions A d d ition s U p to
31.12.

2010

U p to
31.12.

2010

As at 
01.04. 

2010

As at 
01.04. 
2010

D uring
the

perio d

D uring
the

perio d

U p to
31.12.

2010

U p to
31.12.
2010

As at 
31.12. 
2010

As at 
31.12. 

2010

As at 
31.03. 

2010

As at 
31.03. 
2010

US$ Rs. US$ Rs. US$ Rs. US$ Rs. US$ Rs. US$ Rs. us$ Rs. US$ Rs.

T a n g ib le A s s e t s  :

F u rn itu re  &  F ix tu re s 7.750 345 ,883 - - 7.750 345 ,883 1,928 87 ,700 368 16,421 2,296 104,121 5,454 241,761 5,822 258 ,182

O ffic e  E q u ip m e n t 5,864 275 ,198 - 5,864 2 75 ,198 1,029 48,061 209 13,065 1,238 61 ,126 4,626 214 ,072 4,836 227 ,137

C o m p u te r s 5,234 237 ,320 - - 5,234 2 37 .320 3,033 139,277 636 1 1,267 3,669 150,544 1,565 86 ,776 2,200 98 ,043

T O T A L : 18,848 858,400 - - 18,848 858,400 5,990 275,038 1,213 40,753 7,203 315,791 11,645 542,609 12,858 583,362

In ta n g ib le  A s s e t s  :

S o ftw a re 18,000 838 ,080 - - 18,000 8 38 ,080 17,100 792 ,414 900 45 ,666 18,000 838 ,080 - - 900 45 ,666

G R A N D T O T A L 36,848 1,696,480 - - 36,848 1,696,480 23,090 1,067,452 2,113 86,419 25,203 1,153,871 11,645 542,609 13,758 629,028

P r e v io u s Y e a r 36 ,848 1,696,480 - - 36 ,848 1,696,480 20,135 927 ,304 2,955 140,148 23 ,090 1,067,452 13,758 6 29 ,028 16,713 769 ,176

^3



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

SCHEDULE - 8 SALES
Sales of Products

For the period
Ended on 

3 I-D e c-10

us$
834,646

Ended on 

3 1-D ec-10 

Rs
38,126,632

Year Ended  
3 I-M a r-10

us$
1,579,898

Year Ended 

3 I-M ar-10 

Rs
75,313,881

8 3 4 ,64 6  3 8 ,126 ,6 32  1 ,579,898 75,313,881

SCHEDULE - 9 COST OF SALES
Traded Goods Purchase

Add : O pening Stock
Trading

Less : Closing S to c k :

Trading

542,229 24,719,673

318,105 14,490,801

309,946 14,107,252

55 0 ,38 8  25 ,103 ,2 22

808,213 38,534,516

402,719 16,627,717

318,105 14,490,801

89 2 ,82 7  40 ,671 ,4 32

SCHEDULE - 10 
ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENDITURE

Rent

Rates & taxes 

Salary & wages 

Staff welfare 

Insurance

Installation Charges

Car lease/insurance

Commission expenses

Consultancy charges

Clearing & forwarding expenses

O ther administrative charges

Legal and professional charges

Telephone expenses

Testing charges

Training Expenses

Traveling and conveyance expenses

Advertisement and exhibition expense

Sundry Balances W ritte n  O ff

Bank charges

A ud it fees

Exchange difference on conversion

Bad Debts (N e t o f Provision fo r doubtful debts)

18,000 822,240 24,454 1,160,631

717 32,765 3,213 155,153

234,749 10,723,306 296,579 14,070,381

23,746 1,084,699 32,522 1,539,770

1,849 84,462 1,062 50,695

2,625 119,910 - -

1,392 63,607 4,938 236,404

1,000 45,680 28,276 1,304,71 1

118,576 5,416,543 53,645 2,532,548

11,593 529,582 13,739 641,679

4,283 195,666 5,952 280,310

23,639 1,079,830 17,871 844,144

7,064 322,705 10,889 518,098

8,500 388,280 7,000 339,738

- - 5,000 238,393

20,022 914,601 59,975 2,851,342

- - 2,194 106,052

126,290 5,768,907 - -

1,146 52,338 2,078 99,920

2,868 131,010 2,868 130,488

- (668,937) - (10,724,1 10)

- - 20,171 917,723

60 8 ,05 9 27 ,107 ,1 94 59 2 ,42 6 17,294 ,070

o



SCHEDULE . _M 
SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING  POLICIES

Basis o f preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared 
under the  h is to rica l cost conven tion  in accordance w ith  
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India and the 
applicable accounting standards.

Use o f Estim ates

The preparation o f the financial statements, in conform ity w ith 
the generally accepted accounting principles, requires estimates 
and assumptions to  be made that affect the reported amounts 
o f assets and liabilities on the date o f the financial statements 
and the reported amounts o f revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.

Recognition o f Incom e/E xpend itu re

All Income & Expenditure having a material bearing on the financial 
statements is accounted fo r on an accrual basis and provision is 
made fo r all known losses and liabilities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, net o f Taxes, less accumulated 
d e p re c ia tio n . A ll cos ts  in c lud in g  b o rro w in g  costs  t i l l  
com m encem ent o f com m ercial p roduction  are capitalized. 
Capital expenditure on assets not owned by company is reflected 
in capital w o rk  in progress account t ill the period of completion 
and thereafter in the fixed assets. Machinery spares that can be 
used only in connection w ith  an item o f fixed asset and the ir use 
is expected to  be irregular are capitalized. Replacement o f such 
spares is charged to  revenue.

Intangible Assets

In accordance w ith  the Accounting Standard (AS) 26 relating to  
intangible assets, all costs incurred on technical know-how / 
license fee relating to  production process are charged to  revenue 
in the year o f incurrence. Costs incurred on technical know­
how /  license fee relating to  process design/ plants/ facilities are 
capitalized at the time o f capitalization o f the said plant/ facility 
and amortized on pro-rata basis over a period o f five years. 
Com puter software is capitalised on the date o f installation and 
is amortised on prorata basis over a period of three years.

D eprec ia tion

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method 
at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule XIV to  
the Companies Act, 1956.

Inventories

Inventories o f finished goods traded are valued at low er of 
procurem ent cost (FIFO Method) o r net realizable value. Cost 
includes all expenses incurred to  bring the inventory to  the 
present location and condition.

Foreign C urrencyTransactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the original 
rates o f the exchange in force at the tim e transactions are 
effected. Monetary items (other than those related to  Share 
Capital, advance against Share Capital and acquisition o f fixed

assets) denominated in foreign currency are restated using the 
exchange rates prevailing at the date o f Balance Sheet and the 
resulting net exchange difference is recognized in the Profit and 
Loss Account.

Taxation
Provisions fo r  tax consist o f cu rren t tax and deferred tax. 
C urrent tax provision is computed fo r current income based 
on tax liability after considering allowances and exemptions. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed on the timing 
differences at the balance sheet date between the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities and the ir respective tax bases. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized based on management 
estimates o f available future taxable income and assessing its 
certainty.

Em ployee Benefits
Short term  employee benefits are recognized as an expense at 
the undiscounted amount in the p ro fit and loss account o f the 
year in which related service is rendered.
The company does not have any long term  benefit plans.

SCHEDULE-1 2  NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
1. C om pany O verv iew
Shyam Telecom Inc. (STI o r the Company), incorporated in 
February 2005 under the laws o f the State o f New Jersey, is a 
wholly owned subsidiary o f Shyam Telecom Limited, a Company 
incorporated in India. (Shyam o r the Holding Company). .

2. Basis o f P repara tio n  and Translation in to  Indian  
Rupees

(i) These financial statements have been prepared fo r the 
purpose o f compliance w ith the provisions o f Section 21 I 
and Section 212 o f the Indian companies Act, 1956 and have 
been translated to  Indian Rupees (Rs.) in accordance with 
Accounting Standard-1 I as notified under Companies 
Accounting Standard Rules, 2006 on the ‘The Effects of 
changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’ .The functional currency 
o f the Company is United states Dollar(US$).

(ii) The translation o f Foreign currency into Rs. has been carried 
out:

(a) All Income and expenses are translated at the average 
rate prevailing during the year except Depreciation 
which is calculated on historical cost o f assets.

(b) All Non- Monetary assets are translated at historical 
ra tes and m o n e ta ry  assets and lia b ilit ie s  are 
translated at the closing rate on the Balance Sheet 
date.

(c) Share capital and advance against Share capital is 
translated at historical rates.

(d) Furchase fro m  hold ing companies recorded at 
transaction rate on the date of transaction.

(e) The resulting exchange difference arises are charged 
to  Frofit and Loss account.



3. Segm ent Reporting:

Business Segm ents (P rim a ry )

The Company operates only in ine business segment viz.Telecom 
Products & Services. Accord ing ly the re  are no reportab le 
business segments.

G eographical Segm ents (Secondary)

The following is the distribution of the company’s consolidated 
sales by geographical segment, regardless o f where the goods 
were produced;

(R up ees)

R even ue  f r o m  U .S .A . O th e rs  T o ta l

E x te rn a l c u s to m e rs
C u r r e n t  P e rio d  35 ,076 ,501 3,050,131 3 8 ,126 ,632

P re v io u s Y e a r  (6 8 ,6 8 4 ,8 4 4 ) (6 ,6 2 9 ,0 3 8 ) (7 5 ,3 1 3 ,8 8 1 )

S um m ary of significant re la ted  party transactions

The Company has common assets fo r  goods fo r  overseas 
markets and domestic markets. Hence, Separate Figures fo r 
fixed assets etc. can not be furnished.

4. Related Parties (as identified by th e  m anagem ent) 
are classified as:

Holding Company -  Shyam Telecom Limited, India

Key Management Personnel : Mr. B A  Majumdar

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and 
relatives are able to  exercise significant influence; Embeem 
Inc.

N o te : Related party relationship is as identified by the 
company and relied upon by the auditors.

D e s c r ip t io n  &  n a tu re  

o f  T ra n s a c tio n s

K ey M a n a g e m e n t 

P e rso ne l and  
th e i r  re la t iv e s  

(U S $ )

Key M a n a g e m e n t 

P e rso ne l and 

th e i r  re la t iv e s  

(R up ees)

H o ld in g

c o m p a n y

(U S $ )

H o ld in g

c o m p a n y

(R up ees)

T o ta l

(U S $ )

T o ta l

(R upees)

Receiving o f Goods 5 4 2229

(8 0 4 ,9 3 6 )

24 615273

(3 8 ,3 7 7 ,3 5 9 )

54 2229

(8 0 4 ,9 3 6 )

24 ,615 ,273

(3 8 ,3 7 7 ,3 5 9 )

Managerial Rem uneration

BA Majumdar 23 ,0 0 4 1,050,843 - - 23 ,004 1,050,843

(3 0 ,8 1 3 ) (1 ,3 9 0 ,9 0 2 ) - - (3 0 ,813) (1 ,390 ,902)

C onsultancy Charges

Embeem Inc 4 5 ,000 2 ,0 55 ,6 00 - - 45 ,000 2,055,600

(4 9 ,5 0 0 ) (2 ,2 3 4 ,4 3 0 ) - - (4 9 ,500) (2 ,234 ,430)

Sundry C red ito rs 353 ,995 15,862 ,519 353 ,995 15,862,519

(1 0 8 ,8 7 1 ) (4 ,9 1 4 .4 2 3 ) (1 0 8 ,8 7 1 ) (4 ,9 1 4 ,4 2 3 )

Advances received 3 ,4 77 ,9 50 155,846,939 3 ,4 77 ,9 50 155,846,939

(3 ,7 1 2 ,9 5 0 ) (1 6 7 ,6 0 2 ,5 6 3 ) (3 ,7 1 2 ,9 5 0 ) (1 6 7 ,6 0 2 ,5 6 3 )

Figures in brackets indicate previous year figures

5 . Lease

O perating Lease:

During previous period the Company had taken on lease office space, 

The fu ture m inimum lease payments and payment profile  o f operating

under various operating leases ranging from  one month to  five years, 

leases are as follows:

P a r t ic u la rs T o ta l m in im u m  iease 
P a y m e n ts  O /s  as o n  

31 s t D e c e m b e r, 2010

T o ta l m in im u m  lease 
P a y m e n ts  O /s  as on  

31 s t M a rc h , 2010

U S $ RS. U S $ RS.
N o t Later than O ne Year Nil N il 23 ,100 1042734

Later than one year but no t la ter than five years Nil N il Nil Nil

Later than five years Nil Nil Nil Nil

6 . D e fe rre d  Tax

Deferred tax liability/asset is no t recognized since the re  are no tim ing differences between the carrying am ount o f assets and liabilities and 
the ir respective tax bases.

o



7. Q u a n tita tive  details o f goods traded

I te m O p e n in g

s to c k

P u rch a se s S ales C lo s in g

s to c k

Telecom

Equipm ents

Nos. 1,531 2,006 1,683 1,854

Amt-Rs. 14,490,801 24,719,673 38,126,632 14,107,252

Previous

Year

Nos. 1,579 2,819 2,867 1,531

Amt-Rs. 16,627,717 38,534,516 75,313,881 14,490,801

8. Earning Per Share

The components o f earnings per share are as follows:

Earning Per share is 
calculated as follows 31" December, 2010 31" March, 2010

US$ Rs. US$ Rs.

N et Profit / (Loss) as per 
Profit and Loss Account

(3 12,455) (13,555,394) 125,273 18,755,949

Weighted average outstanding 
common stock(Nos.)

100 100 100 100

Nominal value of common 
stock

N o Par No Par No Par No Par

Basic and diluted earning 
per share (3,124.55) (135,553.94) 1,252.73 187,559.49

9. Contingent Liabilities -  Rs. Nil

10. O th e r disclosure requirem ents o f Schedule VI to  the 

Companies Act, 1956 are not applicable to  the Company.

11. In the opinion o f the Board, C u rren t assets. Loans & 

advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course 

o f the company’s business which is at least equal to  the 

amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

I 2. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified 

wherever considered necessary to  conform to  current 

year's classification.

13. Previous year figures is not comparable w ith current period 

figures.

14. Financial statement o f current year is only fo r 9 months 

period from  1st A pril,2010 to  31st December,20l0.

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R .K .M E H R A
Partner 
M.No. 6102

P LA C E  : NEW  DELHI 
D A T E D  :2 5 th  July, 2 0 1 I

B .A .M A JM U D A R
D ire c to r



AUDITORS’ REPORT O N THE CONSOLIDATED  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To th e  Board o f D irecto rs  of 

S H Y A M  T E L E C O M  L IM IT E D

W e have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet o f Shyam Telecom Limited and its Subsidiary namely Shyam Telecom Inc., USA 

as at 3 I March 201 I and also the Consolidated Profit & LossAccount and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement fo r the year ended on 

tha t date, annexure thereto.These financial statements of the subsidiary prepared fo r the purpose of compliance of the provisions of 

Section 211 & 212 of the Companies A c t 1956 is the responsibility o f the management and have been considered and included in the 

consolidated accounts up to  the appointed date on the basis o f accounts audited by us.

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility o f the Company’s management. O ur responsibility is to  express an 

opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.We conducted our audit in accordance w ith generally accepted 

auditing standards in India. These Standards require that we plan and perform  the audit to  obtain reasonable assurance whether the 

consolidated financial statements are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance w ith an identified financial reporting fram ework 

and are free o f material misstatements. An audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 

in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statements. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable 

basis fo r our opinion.

W e rep o rt that;-

a) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance w ith  the requirements o f Accounting 

Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, and on the basis o f the separate audited financial statements o f the Company 

and audited financial statements o f its subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements.

b) On the basis o f the information and explanations given to  us and on the consideration o f separate audit reports on individual

audited financial statements o f the Company and its subsidiaries, we are o f the opinion that the said consolidated financial 

statements give a true & fair view in conform ity w ith the accounting principles generally accepted in India

i. in the case o f the Consolidated Balance Sheet, o f the consolidated state o f affairs o f the Company as at 3 I st March 2 0 1 I and

fo r its subsidiary as at 31st December 2010;

ii. in the case o f Consolidated Profit & Loss Account, o f the consolidated results o f operations o f Company fo r the year ended 

3 I st March 2 0 1 I and its subsidiary fo r the period o f nine months ended 3 I st December 2 0 10 and

iii. in the case o f Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, o f the Consolidated cash flow  o f the Company and its subsidiary fo r the 

year/period then ended.

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O . 

C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R. K. M E H R A

Place ; NEW  DELHI P artner

D ated  : I st August, 2 0 1 I M. No. 6 102

o



SHvnm
T  E L C C O

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH, 2011

S O U R C E S  O F  F U N D S  

S H A R E  H O L D E R ’S F U N D S

Share Capital 

Reserves and Surplus 

L O A N  F U N D S
Secured

Unsecured

D EFERR ED T A X  L IA B IL IT Y  (N e t)

S C H E D U L E
N O .

1

2 
3

A S A T  
3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

112.700.000 

303,378,087

11,429,720

339.865.000 

32,923,289

800 ,29 6 ,09 6

A S A T
3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l0

(Rs.)

112.700.000 

276,822,086

75,167,484

283.665.000 

44,201,220

7 9 2 ,555 ,790

A P P L IC A T IO N  O F  F U N D S  

F IX E D  A SSETS

Gross Block 

Less ; Depreciation

N et Block

Capital W o rk  in Progress 

IN V E S T M E N T S

C U R R E N T A S S E T S , L O A N S  &  A D V A N C E S

Inventories 

Sundry Debtors 

Cash & Bank Balances 

Loans & Advances

443,720,116 

.174,337,680

269 ,38 2 ,43 6

7,977,680

1,202,878,182

802,758,861

409,104,592

245,220,192

2 ,6 59 ,96 1 ,82 7

554,049,543

180,299,322

373,750,221

20,490,518

25,190,512

493,071,210

828,809,933

194,445,020

190,583,611

1 ,706,909,774

Less : C U R R E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S  &  P R O V IS IO N S

C urren t Liabilities 

Provisions

N E T  C U R R E N T A S S E T S

S IG N IF IC A N T  A C C O U N T IN G  P O L IC IE S  

N O T E S  T O  A C C O U N T S

As per our rep o rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O .
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

10

14

15

2,119,767,926 

17,257,921

2 ,137 ,025 ,847

52 2 ,93 5 ,98 0

80 0 ,29 6 ,09 6

1,318,431,835

15,353,400

1,333,785,235

37 3 ,12 4 ,53 9

79 2 ,55 5 ,79 0

R.K M E H R A
Partner 
M. No. 6 102

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irecto r

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irec to r

A L O K T A N D O N
Managing D irec to r



CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSSACCOUNT FORTHEYEAR ENDED 3 h ' MARCH, 201 I

IN C O M E

Sales & Services

Less : Excise Duty/ Service Tax

N e t Sales

O ther Incomes

S C H E D U L E
N O .

I I

Y E A R  E N D E D  
3 I-M a r^ 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

6,831,467,299

46,246,333

6 ,785 ,22 0 ,96 6

60,374,098

6 ,8 45 ,59 5 ,06 4

Y E A R  E N D E D  
3 1 -M a r-2 0 10 

(Rs.)

2,984,997,579

33,594,702

2,951 ,402 ,877

20,156,492

2,971 ,559 ,369

E X P E N D IT U R E
Manufacturing, Administrative & O ther Expenditure 

Financial Charges

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) BEFO RE D E P R E C IA T IO N  & T A X

Less : Depreciation

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) BEFO RE T A X
Provision fo r Income Tax

- Current Tax

- Deferred Tax

- MAT C redit available fo r set-off 

Provision fo r Wealth Tax

Income Tax / Deferred Tax fo r earlier years

P R O F IT /(L O S S ) A F T E R  T A X  

Balance C arried  to  Balance Sheet

- Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share (Refer Note No. 4 o f Schedule 15)

12

13

6,752,773,594 

32,411,686

6 ,7 85 ,18 5 ,28 0
6 0 ,499 ,7 84

34,334,910

26 ,074 ,8 74

9,012,492

(4,860,035)

1,292,374

88,000
(6,013,958)

26.556 .001

26.556 .001

2.36

2,934,748,479

45,320,629

2,980 ,069 ,108
(8 ,5 0 9 ,7 3 9 )

35,943,581

(4 4 ,4 5 3 ,3 2 0 )

100,096

(20,918,255)

107,000

(2 3 ,7 4 2 ,1 6 1 )

(2 3 ,7 4 2 ,1 6 1 )

(2 . 11)

S IG N IF IC A N T  A C C O U N T IN G  P O LIC IE S  

N O T E S  T O  A C C O U N T S

14

15

As per our repo rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  &  C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K M E H R A
Partner 
M .N o. 6102

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irector

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irec to r

A L O K T A N D O N
Managing D irector



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31’

A .  C A S H  F L O W  F R O M  O P E R A T IN G  A C T IV IT IE S  C u r re n tY e a r

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax and before p rio r period/ extra ordinary items 265.56
Adjustment fo r  :

Depreciation 343.35
Provision ( leave encashment) 19.05
Interest and financial charges 324.12
Loss on sale / w rite  off o f Fixed Assets (3-18)
Provision fo r tax (4 .81)
Bad debts / Provision fo r doubtful debts /  advances 74.73
Dividend on Investments (30.54)
Interest Income (134.56)
Exchange Fluctuation
Plant and Machinery Discarded 782.20
(Profit) / Loss on Sale o f Investment (355.27)
Opening Reaserch & Development Expenses W /o ff 204.91

Operating p ro fit before working capital change 1,485 .54
Adjustment fo r :

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and O ther Receivables (284.00)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (7,098.07)
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payable 7,852.07

Cash Generated from  operations 1,955.54
D irect Taxes Paid (184.56)
N e t Cash (used in) From Operating Activities (A) 1,770.98

B C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  IN V E S T IN G  A C T IV IT IE S
Purchase o f Fixed Assets including Capital W o rk  in Progress (140.38)
Sale o f Fixed Assets 6 1.69
Dividend on Invetments 30.54
Investment ( N e t ) 527.40
Interest received 134.56
N et cash (used in) / from  investing activities (B) 613.81

C C A S H  F L O W  FR O M  F IN A N C IN G  A C T IV IT IE S
Short-term  borrow ing ( N e t ) (75.37)
Interest & Financial Charges (162.82)
N et cash (used in) / from  Financing Activities (C ) (2 3 8 .1 9 )

N e t increase/(D ecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C ) 2 , 146 .60
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning o f the Period 1,944.45
Cash and cash equivalents at the end o f the Period 4 ,091.05

MARCH, 201 I
(Rs. in  Lacs) 

P re v io u s  Y e a r

(237.42)

359.44 
17.00 

453.21 
1.78 

(208.1 I) 
85.16 
(1.72) 

(39.37) 
136.06

566.01

2,546.96 
(2,026.80) 

21.49 
i , i  07.66  

71.54 
1,179.20

(368.17)
2.31
1.72

(0.84)
39.37

(3 2 5 .6 1 )

135.89
(243.80)

(1 0 7 .9 1 )

745.68
1,198.77
1,944.45

N o te s  :
I. Cash f lo w  s ta te m e n t has been p repared  fo llo w in g  th e  “ in d ire c t m e th o d ”  as set o u t  in th e  A cco u n tin g  Standard-3 on  cash flo w  s ta tem ent.

Z  Cash and cash equ iva len ts  re p re s e n t cash and bank balance inc lud ing  bank depos it.

As per our rep o rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O . 
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K M E H R A
Partner 
M .N o. 6102

RAJIV M E H R O T R A
Chairman & Managing D irecto r

AJAY K H A N N A
Managing D irecto r

A L O K T A N D O N
Managing D irector

o



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEDULE - I SHARE CAPITAL 

A U T H O R IS E D

50,000,000 Equity Shares o f Rs. 10/- each 

2,500,000 Preference Shares o f Rs 100/-each.

A S A T  
3 1-M ar-2011  

(Rs.)

500.000.000

250.000.000

75 0 ,00 0 ,00 0

A S A T
3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l0

(Rs.)

500.000.000

250.000.000

750 ,000 ,000

IS S U E D  S U B S C R IB E D  A N D  P A ID  U P

I 1,270,000 Equity Shares o f Rs 10/- each, fully paid up 112,700,000

I 12 ,700 ,000

I 12,700,000

I 12 ,700,000

SCHEDULE - 2 RESERVES & SURPLUS
Investm en t Subsidy

Acquired under the scheme o f arrangement

P rofit & LossAccount

As per last Balance Sheet

Add/Less ; Balance transferred from  Profit & Loss account

1,500,000

275.322.086 

26,556,001

301.878.087 

303 ,37 8 ,08 7

1,500,000

299,064,247

(23,742,161)

275,322,086

276 ,822 ,086

SCHEDULE - 3 LOAN FUNDS 

S E C U R E D  L O A N S  

T erm  Loans

-Vehicle Loans from  Banks (*)

- Cash C red it (**)

U N S E C U R E D  L O A N S

From C orporate Bodies

541,983

10,887,737

I 1,429,720

339,865,000

33 9 ,86 5 ,00 0

2,903,429

72,264,055

75 ,167 ,484

283,665,000

283 ,665 ,000

(*) Secured by hypothecation o f specific Assets.

(**) Secured by way o f firs t charge on Stock and Book Debts o f the Company and second charge on Movable and Immovable Fixed 
Assets o f the Company, on Pari Passu basis among member banks and personal guarantee o f Three Promoter Directors.

o



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

SCHEDULE - 4 FIXED ASSETS

A S S E T S

G R O S S  B L O C K

Cost As A t  
01-4-2010  

(Rs.)

Additions

(Rs.)

Deletions/
Adjustm ents

(Rs.)

As A t
31-3-201 I 

(Rs.)

D E P R E C IA T IO N

As A t
01-4-2010

(Rs.)

For the  
Year 
(Rs.)

Deletions/
A djustm ents

(Rs.)

As A t
3 1 -3 -2 0 1 1 

(Rs.)

N E T  B L O C K

As A t
31-3-201 I 

(Rs.)

A s  A t
3 1 -3 -2 0 1 0

(Rs.)

.and Free Hold 

.easehold Land 

Juilding

^lant SM achinery 

Electric Installation 

■urniture & Fixture 

i/ehicles

Office Equipment 

Com puter Lease hold 

C o m p u t e r

177,150 

8 .352,429 

4 4 .474 ,745  

400 ,412 ,262  

I 1,901,983 

19,845,191 

24,394,953 

16,647,257

5 ,269,372

7 ,206,358

1,437,668

2,172,785

1,039,974

1,227,370

123,175.455

1,192,267

i 7 7 ,1 50 

8 ,352,429 

44,474 ,745  

284 ,443 ,166  

I 1,901,983 

21,282 ,859  

25,375,471 

17,687,23!

6 ,496,742

8 .268.740

129,362,462

1,646,628

6,884,673

9 ,294,310

4 ,069,596

2,256,822

1,588,468

22,108 ,274

6 55 ,016

1,565,758

2 ,466.687

2,179,471

601 ,658

39,915,141

381,41 i

9 ,857,208

1 I 1.555,595 

2 .301,644 

8,450,431 

I 1,379,586 

6 ,249 ,067

2,858,480

177,150 

8 ,352,429 

34,61 7,537 

72,887,571 

9 ,600.340 

12,832,428 

13,995,884 

I 1,438,164

3,638,262

177,150

8,352,429

36,206,005

270,965,639

10.181.658 

13,034,165 

15,100,672

12.577.658

3,096,735

T O T A L 5 3 1 ,4 7 5 ,3 4 3 1 3 ,0 8 4 ,1 5 5 1 2 4 ,3 6 7 ,7 2 2 4 2 0 ,1 9 1 ,7 7 6 1 61 ,7 8 3 ,2 3 1 3 1 ,1 6 5 ,3 3 2 4 0 ,2 9 6 ,5 5 2 1 5 2 ,6 5 2 ,0 1 1 2 6 7 ,5 3 9 ,7 6 5 3 6 9 ,6 9 2 ,1 1 1

In ta n g ib le  A s se ts

Software 22.574 ,200 954 ,140 23,528 ,340 18,516,091 3.169.578 21,685 ,669 1,842,671 4,058,1 10

Grand Total 5 5 4 ,0 4 9 ,5 4 3 1 4 ,0 3 8 ,2 9 5 1 2 4 ,3 6 7 ,7 2 2 4 4 3 ,7 2 0 ,1  16 1 8 0 ,2 9 9 ,3 2 2 3 4 ,3 3 4 ,9 1 0 4 0 ,2 9 6 ,5 5 2 1 7 4 ,3 3 7 ,6 8 0 2 6 9 ,3 8 2 ,4 3 6 3 7 3 ,7 5 0 ,2 2 1

Previous Year figures : 538 ,361 ,170  16,730,633 1,042,260 554 ,049 ,543 144,989,412 35,943 ,582  633,671 180,299,322 373,750,221

C A P IT A L  W O R K  IN  

T O T A L

P R O G R E S S 20,490,518

2 0 ,4 9 0 ,5 1 8

N ote  : Capital W o rk  in Progress Includes advance fo r  capital expenditure. (Unsecured, Considered Good.)

A S A T  
3 I-M a r^ 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

33,000
5,232,799

A S A T
3 I-M a r^ 2 0 l0

(Rs.)

33,000
5,232,799

18,006,679

SCHEDULE - 5 INVESTMENTS
N O N  T R A D E -Q U O T E D (* )

Long Term

3,300 Equity Shares o f Rs 10/- each o f Intec Capital Limited 
1,41,427 Equity Shares o f Rs 10/- each o f Spanco Ltd.
NIL (RY. 4,86,667) Equity Shares o f RslO/- each fully paid up of 
Sparsh BPO Services Ltd.
T R A D E  -U N Q U O T E D
3,80,307 (RY. 2,92,544) Equity Shares o f Rs. 10/- each of
Sistema Shyam Teleservices Ltd. 2,711,881 1,834,251
S H O R T T E R M
NIL (RY. 80.63) Units, UTI Treasury Advantage Fund -  83,783

7,9 77 ,68 0  25 ,190 ,512

(*) Aggregated market value o f Quoted Investments Rs 2 15.88 Lacs (PreviousYear Rs. 294.28 Lacs) including cost where market value 

is not readily available.

o



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S C H E D U L E  - 6 I N V E N T O R I E S

(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Material 

Finished Goods 

W ork  In Process 

Stores
Materail In Transit

A S A T  
3 I-M a rv 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

171,012,355

865,523,306

74,931,879

3,435,542

87,975,101

1,202,878,182

A S A T  
3 I-M a r -2 0 10 

(Rs.)

137,875,894

309,854,175

34,001,368

1,017,081

10,322,692

4 9 3 ,071 ,210

SCHEDULE - 7 SUNDRY DEBTORS
D ebts O utstanding  fo r over 6 m onths

Unsecured & Considered Good 

Unsecured & Considered doubtful

Less : Provision fo r doubtful debts 

O th ers  debts
Unsecured & Considered Good

503,051,134

13.777.705

516 ,82 8 ,83 9
13.777.705

503 ,05 1 ,13 4
299,707,727

802,758,861

479,676,615

7.642.329

48 7 ,318 ,944
7.642.329

479 ,676 ,615
349,133,318

828 ,809 ,933

SCHEDULE - 8 CASH & BANK BALANCES
Cash in Hand

Balance W ith  Scheduled Banks in :

- Fixed Deposits / Margin Money (including interest accrued) (*)

- Current Account

Balance W ith  O ther Banks in :

- C urrent Account

(*) Rs. 1,729 Lacs (PreviousYear Rs. 1,099.08 Lacs) under bank lien as margin Money

SCHEDULE - 9 LOANS & ADVANCES
(Unsecured, Considered Good unless otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable in cash o r in kind o r fo r value to  be received 
Considered Good 
Considered Doubtful

Less ; Provision fo r doubtful amounts

Security Deposits 
Cenvat Receivable 
Balance w ith  Excise Department 
Advance Tax (Net)
MAT C red it available

1,230,705

310,658,829

92,005,835

5,209,223

40 9 ,10 4 ,59 2

144,687,355
971.500

145,658,855
971.500

144,687,355
17,247,075
60,005,394

24,152
23,256,216

24 5 ,22 0 ,19 2

1,707,251

I 13,519,140 

74,904,806

4,313,823

194,445,020

117.463.020

117.463.020

I 17 ,463 ,020
13,428,386
42,764,922

37,402
15,597,507

1,292,374

190,583,61 I



SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SCHEDULE - 10 CURRENT LIABILIT IES & PROVISIONS
A S A T  

3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l I 
(Rs.)

Sundry C reditors

Advances From Customers and Others

O th e r Liabilities

Due to  D irectors

Due to  Holding Company

Interest Accrued on loans

P R O V IS IO N S

Leave Encashment 

Retirement Benefits

1,422,763,815

614,056,756

379,572

4,481

556,472

82,006,830

2 ,119 ,767 ,926

11,188,478

6,069,443

17,257,921

A S A T  
3 1 -M ar-2010 

(Rs.)

661,674,016

590,610,227

265,786

4,514

65,877,292

1,318,431,835

10,061,654

5,291,746

15,353,400

SCHEDULE - I I OTHER INCOMES

Interest On Deposits {*)

Dividend on Non Trade Long term  investment 

Profit on Sale o f Investment 

Exchange rate Fluctuation ( Net)

Miscellaneous Income 

Profit on Sale o f Assets (Net)

(*)T a x  deducted at source Rs. 14.53 Lacs (PreviousYear Rs 5.96 Lacs)

Year ended  
3 I-M a iv 2 0 l I 

(Rs.)

13,456,367 

3,053,811 

35,526,858 

5,470,016 

2,548,635 

318,411

6 0 ,374 ,0 98

Year ended  
3 I-M a r -2 0 10 

(Rs.)

3,937,076

171,928

10,612,282

5,435,206

2 0 ,156 ,492

SCHEDULE ■ 12 MANUFACTURING. ADMINISTRATIVE & OTHER EXPENDITURE

Material Consumed 

Purchase o f Goods Traded 

Stores & Spares Consumed 

Power & Fuel 

Manufacturing Expenses

Excise Duty on Closing Stock ( Finished Goods) 

Salary, Wages & Bonus 

Employer's Contribution to  RF. & O the r Fund 

Staff Welfare 

Repair to:

- Plant & Machinery

- Building

360,403,794 

6,423,329,693 

5,334,446 

8,083,035 

12,464,849 

139,896 

131,853,567 

11,187,292 

9,503,344

2,124,616

1,661,387

269,182,374

2,454,012,078

2,696,497

6,907,694

12,359,708

(763,940)

129,554,999

7,544,858

9,863,595

1,928,974

4,983,390



S H v n m

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OFTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Y E A R  E N D E D Y E A R E N D E D
3 I-M a i^ 2 0 l 1 3 1 -M a r -2 0 10

A ud ito r’s Remuneration : (Rs.) (Rs.)

- A ud it Fee 906,010 783,488

- Tax A ud it Fee 175,000 150,000

- O ther 360,957 216,000

Research & Development Expenses 36,349,131 -

Communication Expenses 12,020,427 10,001,535

Printing & Stationery 3,289,067 2,067,978

Travelling & Conveyance 35,902,792 32,103,173

Rates & Taxes 2,755,401 1,926,118

Insurance 6,393,936 5,383,167

Rent and utilities 18,499,119 15,838,129

D irectors Sitting Fee 82,000 56,000

Advertisement & Publicity 24,353,473 34,917,998

Dealers commission 45,680 1,304,71 1

Packing & Forwarding 71,125,623 23,753,212

Sundry Balances W ritte n  O ff 6,409,552 -

Bad debts w ritten  o ff ( N e t ) 366,052 20,632,854

Add/(Less) ; Provision fo r  Doubtfull Debts (W ritten  Back) 7,106,876 7,472,928 (6,726,577) 13,906,277

Legal & Professional Charges 38,323,879 40,634,084

Foreign Consultancy Charges 3,047,302 4,999,876

O ther Administrative Charges 38,223,824 24,171,220

Loss on Sale/write off o f Assets (Net) - 177,862

Discount on Sales - 26,000,000

Plant and Machinery Discarded 78,220,152 -

Exchange Rate Difference arises on Conversion (668,937)

7 ,349 ,373 ,235

(10,724,1 10) 

3 ,125 ,936 ,945

Add /  Less Decrease /  Increase in  S to cks ;
Add : O pening  Stock :

W o rk  In Process 34,001,368 20,450,841

Finished Goods 309,854,175 132,216,236

Less: Closing Stock:

W o rk  in Process 74,931,879 34,001,368

Finished Goods 865,523,306

6 ,7 52 ,77 3 ,59 4

309,854,175

2 ,934 ,748 ,479

SCHEDULE -13 FINAN C IAL CHARGES
Interest on

- Fixed Period Loans 261,405 3,380,312

- O thers 24,298,847 33,320,816

Bank Charges and commission 7,851,434 

32 ,411 ,6 86

8,619,501

45 ,320 ,629

o
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SCHEDULE -  14 SIGNIFICANT ACCO UNTING  POLICIES

I . BASIS O F  C O N S O L ID A T IO N

The consolidated financial statements relate to  Shyam Telecom Limited (the company) and its subsidiary company.

A. BASIS O F  A C C O U N T IN G

i. The financial statements o f the subsidiary company used in the consolidation are o f 9 months period i.e. from  1“  April 
2010 to  3 I "  December’ 2010,

ii. The financial statements o f the Company and subsidiary company have been prepared in accordance w ith the applicable 
Accounting Standards.

B. USE O F  E S T IM A TE S

The presentation o f financial statements in conform ity w ith the Indian GAAP requires the management to  make estimates and 
assumptions to  be made that may affect the balances o f assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to  contingent liabilities as 
at the date o f the financial statements and the reported amounts o f incomes and expenses during the reporting period. 
Although these estimates are based upon management best knowledge o f current events and actions, actual results could differ 
from  those estimated.

C. P R IN C IP L E S  O F  C O N S O L ID A T IO N

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

i. The financial statements o f the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a Line-by-line basis by
adding together like items o f assets, liabilities. Income & expenses. The intra-group balances and intra-group transactions 
and unrealized profits o r losses are fully eliminated, as per Accounting Standard 21 - “ Consolidated Financial Statements" 
notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2006 

Ii. As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform  accounting policies fo r  like
transactions and o ther events in similar circumstances and are presented, to  the extent possible, in the same manner as 
the Company’s separate financial statements

iii. The excess o f cost to  the Company o f its investments in the subsidiary companies over its share o f the equity o f the 
subsidiary companies, at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognized as 
‘goodw ill’ being an asset in the consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, where the share o f equity in the 
subsidiary companies as on the date o f investment, is in excess o f cost o f investment o f the Company, it is recognized 
as ‘capital reserve’ and shown under the head ‘Reserves and Surplus’, in the consolidate financial statements.

iv. M inority interest in the net assets o f consolidated subsidiaries consists o f the amount o f equity attributable to  the
m inority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary companies and
fu rthe r movements in the ir share in the equity, subsequent to  the dates o f investments.

V. The difference between the proceeds from  disposal o f investment in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of its assets 
less liability as o f the date o f disposal is recognized in the consolidated statement o f p ro fit & loss account as the pro fit 
o r loss on disposal o f investment in subsidiary.

D. IN F O R M A T IO N  O N  S U B S ID IA R Y  C O M P A N IE S

The following subsidiary company is considered in the preparation o f consolidated financial statements:

N a m e o f th e  C om pany C o u n tryo f Incorporation % o f voting pow er heldAs a t D ecem b er 31, 2010

Shyam Telecom  Inc. USA 100

2. BASIS F O R  P R E P A R A T IO N  O F  A C C O U N T S

The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance w ith generally 
accepted accounting principles and applicable Accounting Standards and the provisions o f Companies Act, 1956.

3. F IX E D  A SSETS

Fixed Assets are stated at cost, net o f VAT/ CENVAT, less accumulated depreciation. A ll costs including borrowing costs till 
commencement o f commercial production and adjustment arising from  exchange rate variations relating to  borrowings 
attributable to  the fixed assets are capitalized. Capital expenditure on assets not owned by company is reflected in capital w ork  
in progress account t ill the period o f completion and thereafter in the fixed assets. Machinery spares that can be used only in
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connection w ith  an item o f fixed asset and the ir use is expected to  be irregular are capitalized. Replacement o f such spares is 
charged to  revenue.

4. E X P E N D IT U R E  IN C U R R E D  D U R IN G  T H E  C O N S T R U C T IO N  P E R IO D

Expenditure directly relating to  construction activity including tria l run production expenses (net o f income, ifany) is capitalized. 
Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is capitalized as part o f the indirect construction cost to  the extent 
to  which the expenditure is indirectly related to  construction o r is incidental thereto. O ther indirect expenditure (including 
borrow ing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to  the construction activity nor is incidental 
thereto, is charged to  the Profit & Loss Account.

5. D E P R E C IA T IO N

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on straight-line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule X IV  to  
the Companies Act, 1956. Individual assets costing Rs.5000 o r less are depreciated in full in the year o f purchase. Leasehold land 
fo r lease period below 90 years is amortised over the period o f lease from  the date o f commencement o f commercial 
operations

6. IN T A N G IB L E  ASSETS

In accordance w ith the Accounting Standard (AS) 26 relating to  intangible assets, all costs incurred on technical know-how / 
license fee relating to  production process are charged to  revenue in the year o f incurrence. Costs incurred on technical know­
how / license fee relating to  process design / plants / facilities are capitalized at the time o f capitalization o f the said plant / facility 
and amortized on pro-rata basis over a period o f five years.

Com puter Software is capitalised on the date o f installation and is amortised pro-rata basis over a period o f 3 years.

7. IM P A IR M E N T

Carrying amount o f cash generating units / assets is reviewed fo r impairment. Impairment, if any, is recognized where the 
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount being the higher o f net realizable price and value in use

8. IN V E S T M E N T S

Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. C urrent investments are stated at the lower o f cost and 
quoted/ fair value. Long term  investments are stated at cost less any provision fo r diminution in value o ther than temporary.

9. IN V E N T O R Y  V A L U A T IO N

Inventories are valued at lower o f cost o r net realizable value except scrap which is valued at net realizable value.The cost is 
determined by using first-in -firs t-ou t (FIFO) method. Finished goods and work-in  progress include costs o f conversion and 
o ther costs incurred in bringing the inventories to  the ir present location and condition.

Excise duty on closing stock o f finished goods and scrap are accounted fo r on the basis o f payments made in respect o f goods 
cleared as also provision made fo r goods lying in the factory and included in the value o f such stocks.

10. F O R E IG N  C U R R E N C Y T R A N S A C T IO N S

I. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the date o f the 
transaction.

II. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are translated at the year end rates.

III. Non-m onetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

IV. Any income o r expense on account o f exchange difference either on settlement o r on translation is recognized in the
pro fit and loss account.

V. Foreign Subsidiary is integral in nature. All Income and expenses o f such Subsidiary are translated at the average rate
o f exchange prevailing during the year except depreciation which is calculated on historical cost o f assets. A ll Non- 
Monetary assets are translated at historical rates and monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate 
on the Balance Sheet date. Share capital is translated at historical rates.The resulting exchange difference charged to  
pro fit & loss account.

11. R E V E N U E  R E C O G N IT IO N

Sales are inclusive o f excise duty, service tax and net o f sales tax. Export sales are net o f ocean freight and insurance. 

Revenue in respect o f long-term turnkey works contracts is recognized under percentage o f completion method, subject to  
such contracts having progressed to  a reasonable extent.
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12. IN C O M E  O N  IN V E S T M E N T S

Dividend on shares/units is accounted for, as and when the right to  receive the same is established.

13. B O R R O W IN G  C O S T

Borrowing costs that are attributable to  the acquisition o r the construction o f qualifying assets are capitalized as part o f the 
cost o f such assets. A  qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period o f time to  get ready fo r intended use. All 
o ther borrow ing costs are charged to  revenue in the year in which they are incurred.

14. LEASES

Leases o f assets under which all the risks and rewards o f ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Annual lease payments are recognized as an expense on straight-line basis and in accordance w ith the 
respective lease agreements.

Assets acquired under leases where company has substantially all the risks and rewards o f ownership are classified as finance 
lease. Assets acquired under the finance lease are capitalized and corresponding lease liability is recorded at an amount equal 
to  the fair value o f the leased asset at the inception o f the lease o r present value o f minimum lease payment, whichever is lower.

15. P R O D U C T  W A R R A N T Y  EXPEN SES

Liability fo r  W arranties is recognized at the time the claim is accepted. The necessary provisions are made w ith respect to 
warranties claimed and accepted, which are received up to  the end o f one month from  the close o f the year.

16. E M PLO YEES B E N E FIT S

L Short term  employee benefit are recognized as an expenses at the undiscounted amount in the pro fit and loss account
o f the year in which related service is rendered.

ii. The company has defined contribution plans fo r post-retirem ent benefit, namely Employee Provident Fund Scheme 
administered through Provident Fund Commissioner and company contribution are charged to  revenue every year.

iii. Company contribution to  state plans namely Employees State Insurance Fund & Employee Welfare Fund are charge to 
revenue every year.

iv. The company has defined benefit plan namely Leave Encashment / Compensated absence and Gratuity, the liability for 
which is determined on the basis o f an actuarial valuation at the end o f the year. G ratuity Trust is administrated through 
Life Insurance C orporation o f India (LIC).

y  Termination benefits are recognized as an expenses immediately.

vi. Gain o r Loss arising out o f actuarial valuation are recognized immediately in the pro fit & loss account as income or
expenses

17. C LA IM S

Claims receivable are accounted fo r depending on the certainty o f receipt and claims payable are accounted fo r at the time of 
acceptance.

18. D E R IV A T IV E

In case o f forward contracts, the difference between the forward rate and the exchange rate, being the premium o r discount, 
at the inception o f a forward exchange contract is recognized as income/expense over the life o f the contract. Exchange 
differences on such contracts are recognized in the p ro fit and loss account in the reporting period in which the rates change. 
Any pro fit o r  loss arising on cancellation o r renewal of forward exchange contract is recognized as income o r as expense fo r 
the period.

19. T A X A T IO N

Provision fo r current income tax is made after taking credit fo r allowances and exemptions. In case o f matters under appeal, due 
to  disallowance o r otherwise, provision is made when the said liabilities are accepted by the company.

In accordance w ith  the Accounting Standard 22-Accounting fo r Taxes on income, the deferred tax fo r tim ing differences 
between the book & tax p ro fit fo r the period is accounted fo r using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted as o f the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from  tem porary tim ing difference are recognized to  the extent there is virtual certainty that the 
asset w ill be realized in future.
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20. G O V E R N M E N T  G R A N T S

Government grant in the nature o f p rom oter’s contribution is treated as capital receipt and credited to  investment subsidy 
account.

Grant in the nature o f revenue subsidy is treated as revenue receipt and credited to  pro fit and loss account

2 1. P R O V IS IO N  A N D  C O N T IN G E N T  L IA B IL IT IE S

Show cause notices issued by various government authorities are not considered as obligation. W hen the demand notice are 
raised against such show cause notice and are disputed by the company then these are classified as possible obligations.

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a 
result o f past events and it is probable that there w ill be an outflow  o f resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognized but 
are disclosed in notes.

22. P R O P O S E D  D IV ID E N D

Dividend as proposed by Board o f D irectors is provided fo r in the books o f account, pending approval at the Annual General 
Meeting

23. C E N V A T /V A T

CENVAT / VAT claimed on capital assets are credited to  assets I capital w o rk  in progress account. CENVAT / VAT on purchase 
o f raw materials and o ther materials are deducted from  the cost o f such materials.

SC H ED U LE- IS NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

C o n tin g e n t l ia b il it ie s :
i) Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt
ii) Outstanding Guarantee Issued by Banks

iii) Letter o f Credits issued by the Banks (Agst. which Goods have 
not been despatched)

Year Ended 
M arch  31,2011

108.13
1,660.32
2,338.89

(Rs in Lacs) 
Year Ended 

M arch  31,2010
108.13
690.87

1,160.70

Machinery costing Rs I 179.15 Lacs having depreciated value Rs. 782.20 Lacs acquired in earlier years, has been retired from active use due to  technical obsolescence 
and the same disposed off during the year.

3 Bad deb ts d eb ite d  to  accoun ts inc lude  :

Debit balances w ritten  off 3.99 206.33
C redit balances w ritten off 0.33 -
N e t 3.66 206.33

4 Earnings p e r share (Basic and D ilu te d ) :
Equity Shares (Nos.) 1 1,270,000 1 1,270.000
Profit/(Loss)afterTax (Rs.ln Lacs) 265.56 (237.42)
Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share ( Rs. ) 2.36 (2.11)

5 DEFERRED IN C O M E T A X
(Rs. in Lacs)

T h e  d e fe rre d  ta x  l ia b il ity  a t th e  ye a r end c o m prise  o f  th e  fo llo w in g  : A S A T 3 I.0 3 .2 0 II AS  A T  31.03.2010

D e fe rre d T a x  L ia b ility  on a cco u n t o f;
Timing difference between book &Tax Depreciation 437.59 71 1.36
Deferred Revenue Expenditure - 437.59 - 71 1.36
D e fe rre d T a x  assets on  a cco u n t o f;
Disallowance under Section 43B 60.51 51.45
Provision fo r Doubtful Debts / Advances 47.85 23.62
Others - 108.36 194.28 269.35
N e t d e fe rre d  ta x  lia b il ity 329.23 442.01
Opening DeferredTax Liability 442.01 651.19
D e fe rre d T a x  C h a rg e d /(C re d it)  d u r in g  th e  year (48.60) (209.18)

D e fe rre d T a x  C h a rg e d /(C re d it)  on a ccou n t o f  p rev io u  years (64.18) -

6 RELA TED  PA R TY IN F O R M A T IO N  R E L A T IO N S H IP
a ) - Key Management Personnel ; Mr. K. N. M ehrotra , Mr. Rajiv M ehrotra ,, M r A lok Tondon, M r.Arun Khanna, Mr.Ajay Khanna,

and Mr. B A  majumdar [Previous year Mr. K. N. M ehrotra  , Mr. Rajiv M ehrotra  , M r A lo k  Tondon ,Mr. Ajay Khanna, and 
Mr. B A  Majumdar]

o
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b ) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and relatives are able to  exercise significant influence; Shyam Antenna 
Electronics Ltd., Intercity Cable System Pvt. Ltd, Shyam Communication Systems, Shyam Basic Infrastructures Projects Pvt. Ltd, 
Shyam Networks Limited (Formerly Shyam Telecom Systems Pvt. Ltd),A.T. Invofin India Pvt Ltd, Cell cap Invofin India Pvt Ltd, Intell 
Invofin India Pvt Ltd, Shyam Digital Communications Pvt Ltd, Sistema Shyam Teleservices Limited,Ubico Networks Pvt.Ltd., RMS 
Autom ation Systems Ltd., Spectranet Pvt Ltd.,Vihaan Networks Ltd., and Embeem Inc.

N ote : Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors.

Transactions w ith  th e  above re la ted  parties are as follows:

(Rs In Lacs)

P A R TIC U LA R S
Key M anagem ent Personnel

E n te rp rises  o ve r w h ich  

th e y  have s ign ifican t 

in flu e n ce

Grand

Total

1 Sale o f Products/Services - 1 7 1 9 4 .4 0 1 7 ,1 9 4 .4 0

- 13277.56 13,277.56

2 Purchase o f Goods - 1 0 8 6 1 .9 6 1 0 ,8 6 1 .9 6

- 1682.00 1,682.00

3 Managerial Remuneration 10.51 - 10.51

13.91 - 13.91

4 Consultancy Charges 2 0 .5 6 - 2 0 .5 6

22.34 - 22.34

S In terest Accrued - 8 2 0 .0 7 8 2 0 .0 7

- 658.77 658.77

6 Rent Agreem ents (Paid) 1 .20 4 4 .1 2 4 5 .3 2

1.20 41.14 42.34

7 Rent Agreem ents (Received) - 1 4 .74 14.74

- 13.51 13.51

8 Loan Taken - 9 5 5 .0 0 9 5 5 .0 0

- 2,048.00 2,048.00

9 Repayment o f Loan - 3 9 3 .0 0 3 9 3 .0 0

- 1,565.00 1,565.00

O u t s tandings ;

10 Receivables - 4 0 5 .2 2 4 0 5 .2 2

- 8.77 8.77

1 1 Payables - 1 ,037.16 1,037.16

- 3,470.96 3,470.96

12 Guarantees ■ ■ -

1 3 Loans (including in te rest accrued) - 4 2 18 .7 2 4 ,2 18 .7 2

- 3,495.42 3,495.42

O p era tin g  Leases

W h e re  th e  com pany is a lessee

O p e ra tin g  Lease :

The Company ( Shyam Telecom Inc.) takes on lease office space, under various operating leases ranging from  one month to  
five years.

Future lease receipts under operating leases are as follows:

(Rs in Lacs)

M arch 3 1,2 0 1 I M arch 3 1,2 0 10

Payable no t later than one year - 10.43
Later than one year but no t later than five years
later than five years  -  -

Total - 10.43
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8 S E G M E N T  IN F O R M A T IO N

The Company and its subsidiaries operations predominantly relate to  providing Telecommunication and information technology 
services T h e  company has considered business segment as the primary segment and geographical segment as secondary segment 
fo r disclosure.The segments have been identified taking into account the nature o f the products, the deffering risk and returns, 
the organisation structure and internal reporting system T he  subsidiary ( ShyamTelecom,lnc. USA) caters the needs o f American 
market and o ther countries Viz,latinAmerica,Canada etc. based on this secondary segment is identified as Geographical Segment 
.The Telecom products & Services segment comprise o f manufacturing, trading and services in the related area.Turnkey Projects 
and trading services segment includes the turnkey Projects and Trading in Telecom Products. Software Products & services 
segment includes the services in the area incuding software and Information Technology related and Infomation technology 
enabled services.

Revenue & expenditure which relates to  enterprises as a whole and are not attributable to  segments are included in unallocable 
expenditure ( N e t o f unallocable income ) . Assets used in the Company’s business o r liabilities contracted have not been 
identified to  any o f the reportable segment except basic telephony services and internet services , as all the assets and services 
are used interchangeably between segments. The Company believes tha t it  is currently no t practicable to  provide segment 
disclosure relating to  tota l assets and liabilities since a meaningful segregation o f available data is onerous except basic telephony 
services.

Business Segm ents ( P rim a ry ) Rs in Lacs

Segm ent Reporting Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31 - M a r  11 3 1 -M a r -10

S egm ent Revenue
- Telecom Products & Services 7,234.39 7,847.67
- Trading and Turnkey Projects 60,617.82 21,666.36
- Investment 385.80 1.72

N et Sales 68,238 .01 29,515.75

S egm ent Results
(Profit before Am ortisation, Interest, Tax and unallocable overheads)
- Telecom Products & Services 79.68 813.80
- Trading and Turnkey Projects 1,808.54 73.76
- Investment 385.80 1.72

Total 2 ,274 .02 889.28

Less ;
- Depreciation & Am ortisation 343.35 359.44
- Interest & Financial Charges 324.12 453.21
O ther un-allocable Expenditure ( N e t o f un-allocable Income) 1,345.80 521.16

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (n e t o f E xtrao rd inary  Item s) 260.75 (4 4 4 .5 3 )

Taxes (net o f MAT Credit) (4.81) (207.11)

N e t profitZ(Loss) a fte r taxes 265.56 (2 3 7 .4 2 )

9 In compliance w ith  the accounting standards 15 (revised 2005) “ Employee Benefits”  The company has got the employee benefits 
evaluated from  actuarial valuer.

T h e  C om pany has calculated th e  various benefits provided to  em ployees as under:

A. Provident Fund

During the year the Company has recognized Rs. 58.45 Lacs (previous Year Rs. 5 1.69 lacs) towards contribution to  PF in the 
Profit and Loss account.

B. S ta te  Plans
Employer’s contribution to  Employee State insurance and to  Welfare Fund
During the year the Company has recognised Rs. 6.39 lacs (Previous year Rs. 3.65 Lacs)towards contribution to  ESI and 
Rs. 0 .18 Lacs (previous Year Rs. 0.027 Lacs) towards welfare fund, in the Profit and Loss accounts.

C. D efined B enefit Plans
The actuarial valuation carried out is based on following assumption;
a) Leave Encashment

o
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b) Contribution to  Gratuity Fund - Employee’s Gratuity Fund.

C u r r e n t  Y e a r Previous Year

i) A c tu a r ia l  A s s u m p tio n s L e a ve

E n c a s h m e n t

E m p lo y e e  

G ra tu i ty  Fund

Leave

Encashment

Employee 

G ra tu ity  Fund

D iscount Rate (per annum) 8 % /8 .10% 8% /8.IO % 8.00% 8.00%

Rate o f increase in compensation levels 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%

ii)

Rate o f re tu rn  on plan assets

C h a n g e  in  th e  o b lig a t io n  d u r in g  th e  y e a r

(Rs In  Lacs)

9.15% 

(R s In  Lacs) (Rs In Lacs)

9.15% 

(Rs In Lacs)

Present value obligation as a t beginning o f period 100.62 90.85 87.51 82.56

Impact o f Transition provision o f A S -15 - - - -

Interest cost 8.05 7.27 6.56 6.19

Past Service cost - 12.36 - 2.18

C urren t service cost 20.15 17.30 20.1 1 14.02

C urta ilm en t cost - - -

Settlem ent cost - ‘ - -

Benefits Paid (3 .2 3 ) (1 1 .1 1 ) (3 .83 ) (13.99)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on Obligations (1 3 .7 1 ) 19.51 (9 .74) (0 .11)

Present value obligation as at the end o f the period - - 100.61 90,85

Receivable from  o th e r company's fund - - - -

i i i )

N e t Present value obligation as at the end o f the period 

C h a n g e  in  fa ir  v a lu e  p la n  A sse ts

1 I I . 88 136.18 100.61 90.85

Fair value o f Plan Assets as at beginning o f the period 37.94 - 28.97

Expected re tu rn  on Plan Assets 4.24 - 2.59

C o n trib u tio n s 43.37 - 20.18

Benefits Paid (1 0 .0 6 ) - (13.98)

A ctuarial gain/ (loss) on Obligations - - 0.18

iv )

Fair value o f Plan Assets as at the end o f the period

R e c o n c ilia t io n  o f  P re s e n t va lu e  o f  D e fin e d  B e n e fit  

o b lig a t io n  and  F a ir  va lu e  o f  A sse ts

75.49 37.94

Present value obligation as at the end o f the period 11 1.88 136.18 100.61 90.85

Fair value o f Plan Assets as at the end o f the period - 75.49 - 37.94

Funded Status (1 1 1.88) (6 0 .6 9 ) (100 .61 ) (52.91)

Present value o f un-funded obligation as at the end o f the period - - - -

Un-recognized Actuarial (gains)/ losses - - - -

V )

Un-funded N e t Asset/ (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet. 

E xpenses re co g n ise d  in  P ro f it  and  Loss A c c o u n t

(1 1 1 .8 8 ) (6 0 .6 9 ) (100 .61 ) (52 .91 )

C u rre n t service cost 20.15 17.30 20.1 1 14.02

Past Service cost - 12.36 (0 .36) 4,89

Interest cost 8.05 7.27 6.56 6.19

Expected re tu rn  on Plan Assets - (4 .2 4 ) - (2 .59 )

C urta ilm en t cost - - - -

Settlem ent cost - - - -

N e t Actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised during the year (1 3 .7 1 ) 19.51 (9 .74) (0 .30)

Received / Receivable from  o th e r company’s fund - - - -

N e t Expense recognised in Profit and Loss Account 14.49 52.20 16.57 22.21
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN C IAL STATEMENTS

I 0 Some o f the personal accounts are subject to  adjustments / reconciliation /  confirmation .

I I In the opinion o f Board o f D irectors Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value on realisation in ordinary course of
business at least equal to  the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provision fo r all liabilities have been made 
in the Accounts, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

I 2 Figures pertaining to  the holding company o r subsidiaries have been reclassified wherever necessary to  bring them in line fo r
preparation o f consolidated financial statements.

I 3 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever considered necessary

I 4 Previous year figures is non comparable w ith  current year figures.

I 5 The Financial statement o f subsidiary company namely Shyam telecom Inc.used in consolidation only fo r 9 months period from  I st
A pril,2010 to  31st December,20l0.

As per our rep o rt o f even date attached

For M E H R A  G O E L  & C O .
C H A R T E R E D  A C C O U N T A N T S

R.K M E H R A  RAJIV M E H R O T R A  AJAY K H A N N A  A L O K T A N D O N
Partner Chairman & Managing D irec to r Managing D irec to r Managing D irector
M .N o. 6 102

P LA C E  : NEW  DELHI U M E S H  G A R G  D H A R M E N D E R  D H IN G R A
D A T E D  : I st August, 201 I Chief Financial O fficer Vice President ( Legal) & Company Secretary

o
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NOTICE OF TH_E_EIGHTEENTH ANNUA L GENERAL MEETING
T IM E : 12.00 Noon  

DA Y &  DATE: M O N D A Y , 5"  SEPTEM BER, 201 I 
V E N U E : H O T E L  M A R R IO T  N E A R  J A W A H A R  C IR C LE  A S H R A M  M A R G ,T O N K  RO AD ,

JA IP U R -302015 R A JA S T H A N

N o tice  is hereby given tha t the Eighteenth Annual General 
Meeting o f the Members o f S H Y A M  T E L E C O M  L IM IT E D  
w ill be held at Hotel M arrio t near Jawahar Circle Ashram Marg, 
Tonk Road,Jaipur- 302015 Rajasthan, on Monday, 5th September, 
201 I at 12.00 Noon to  transact the following business.

O R D IN A R Y  B U S IN E S S
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance 

Sheet as at 3 1 “  March 201 I and Profit and LossAccount 
fo r the period ended on that date together w ith the 
D irectors ’ and Aud itors ’ Report thereon.

2. To appoint a D irec to r in place o f Mr. N.Kumbhat, who 
retires by ro ta tion and being eligible, offers himself 
fo r  re-appointment.

3. To appoint a D irec to r in place o f Mr. Vinod Juneja,
who re tires  by ro ta tio n  and being eligible, offers
himself fo r re-appointment.

4. To appoint a D irecto r in place o f Mr. C.S.Malhotra,
who re tires  by ro ta tio n  and being eligible, offers
himself fo r re-appointment.

5. To re-appo in t M/S Mehra Goel & co.. Chartered 
Accountants, as Auditors to  hold the office from  the 
conclusion o f this Annual General Meeting till the 
conclusion o f next Annual General Meeting and 
authorize the Aud it Com m ittee o f the Board/Board 
o f D irectors to  fix  the ir remuneration.

By O rde r o f the Board o f D irectors 
For Shyam Telecom  L im ited

Sd/-
D H A R M E N D E R  D H IN G R A
V.P.(legal) & Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi 
D ate: I “  August, 2 0 1 I

R E G IS TE R E D  O FF IC E :
MTS TOWERS 
3,AMRAPALI CIRCLE 
VAISHALI NAGAR 
JAIPUR-302021 
RAJASTHAN (IND IA)

N O TE S :

1. A  M EM B ER  E N T IT L E D  T O  A T T E N D  A N D  V O TE  
A T  T H E  M E E T IN G  IS E N T IT L E D  T O  A P P O IN T  A  
P R O X Y  T O  A T T E N D  A N D  V O T E , O N  A  P O L L , 
IN S T E A D  O F  H IM S E L F /H E R S E L F  A N D  S U C H  
P R O X Y  N E E D  N O T  BE A  M E M B E R  O F  T H E  
C O M P A N Y .

An instrument appointing a proxy should be duly completed, 
stamped and signed, and must be sent as to  reach the 
Company’s Registered office not less than 48 hours before 
the tim e scheduled fo r the commencement o f the meeting.

2. Please bring the Admission slip duly filled-in and hand over 
the same at the entrance o f the Meeting Hall.

3. The Register o f Members and share transfer Books of the 
company w ill remain closed from  I "  September,201 I 
(Thursday) to  5 " September,20l l (  Monday), (both days 
inclusive).

4. Members desirous o f getting any inform ation from  the
company are requested to  send th e ir  queries to  the
company at its reg is tered office w e ll in advance so
that the same may reach at least 7 days before the date of 
the meeting to  enable the management to  keep the required 
information readily available at the meeting.

5. As a measure o f economy, members are requested to  bring 
the ir copy o f the Annual Report to  the meeting.

6. Members are requested to  im m ediately furnish the ir
Email addresses and intimate the change o f the ir address, 
if any, along w ith  pin-code numbers w ith the registered 
o ffice  o f the  company quoting  th e ir  Folio Num bers 
and members holding shares in e lec tron ic  fo rm  may 
inform the same to  the ir Depository Participants.

7. In compliance to  the listing Agreement the company is in 
the process o f transferring all unclaimed shares to  Shyam 
Telecom Ltd.-Unclaimed Suspense A/c. Hence members 
are requested to  kindly claim the ir shares immediately 
from  the Registrar o r the company as the case may be.

8. Persuant to  section 205A o f the companies Act, 1956, 
all the  uncla im ed/ unpaid d ividend fo r  all the years 
have been transferred to  Investor Education & Protection 
Fund.

9. B r ie f resum e and o th e r  re q u is ite  in fo rm a tio n  o f 
Mr. N.Kumbhat, Mr.Vinod Juneja, Mr. C.S Malhotra and are 
given in the report o f Corporate Governance, as required 
under Clause 49 o f the Listing agreement. Further , all 
three directors have filled form  No. DD A w ith the company 
as required by the companies (Disqualification o f D irectors 
under section 274(l)(g) o f the companies Act, 1956) Rules, 
2003 and have confirmed that they are not disqualified fo r 
re-appointment as D irectors o f the company.

10. The shares o f the company are at present listed on tw o 
Stock Exchanges viz, Bombay Stock Exchange and National 
Stock Exchange. Listing Fees to  all the stock Exchanges had 
been paid up to  3 1 “  March, 2 0 1 I .

11. An im portan t communication is attached herew ith fo r 
perusal o f Members.

By O rder o f the Board o f D irectors 
For Shyam Telecom  L im ited  

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi D H A R M E N D E R  D H IN G R A
D ate: 1“  August, 201 I V.P.(legal) & Company Secretary

RE G ISTER ED  O FF IC E :
MTS TOWERS
3,AMRAPALI CIRCLE
VAISHALI NAGAR
JAIPUR-302021
RAJASTHAN (IND IA)



IMPORTANT CO M M UNICATIO N TO MEMBERS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a“Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” 

by allowing paperless compliances by companies and has issued circulars allowing 

companies to send any notice/document (including Annual Report) to its mebers via e-mail. 

To support Green Initiative of the Government in letter and spirit, the Company has taken an 

Initiative to collect e-mail addresses of all its members.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to fill the appropriate column in the 

‘Member’s Response Form’ and register their e-mail addresses with the company.

(PleaseTear from here)

S H Y A M T E L E C O M  LTD.
Member’s Response Form 2010-201 I

Name : ____________________________________________________________

e-mail id : __________________________________________________________

Address : __________________________________________________________

Folio N o : _______________________________ No of equity shares held_: ___

I hereby authorise the Company to  send all correspondence to me (statutory or otherwise) 

including the Annual Report (comprising of Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account, Auditors’ 

Report, D irector’s Report, Notices of General Meetings and Explanatory Statement etc.) 

through e-mail, as per the e-mail address mentioned above, till such further notice from me.

Signature of Member

Notes:

1) Members holding shares in dematerialised form may kindly update their e-mail 

addresses with their respective Depository Participants (DP’s)

2) These forms shall be sent to the Company Secretary, Shyam Telecom Ltd. Registered 

Office: MTS Tower, 3,Amarpali Circle,Vaishali Nagar, Jaipur-302021, Rajasthan, India
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SHYAM TELECOM LIMITED
Registered Office: MTS Tower, 3, Amrapali Circle, Vaishali Nagar, 

Jaipur-302021, Rajasthan, India

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please com plete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the m eeting hall)

Name & Address Folio No. DP ID # Client ID # No. o f Shares Held

#  Applicable fo r members holding shares in dematerialized form.

I / We hereby record my / our presence at the 18™ AN N U AL GENERAL MEETING o f SHYAM TELECOM 
LIMITED to  be held at 12.00 Noon on Monday, 5* September 201 I, at Hotel M arriot Near Jawahar Circle 
Ashram Marg, Tonk Road, Jaipur-302015, Rajasthan, India.

SIGNATURE OFTHE MEMBER ORTHE PROXY ATTENDING THE MEETING

If M em ber, please sign here If Proxy, please sign here

N o te : Members are requested to bring their copies ofthe ANNUAL REPORT and AGM Notice at the Meeting as the same will not be circulated at 
the Meeting.

EHvnm
TELECOM LTD

Folio N o ....................................... DP ID*.

Shares Held..................................

SHYAM TELECOM LIMITED
Registered Office: MTS Tower, 3, Amrapali Circle, Vaishali Nagar, 

Jaipur-302021, Rajasthan, India

PROXY FORM

............................. Client ID *..................................

lAVe..........................................................................o f....................................................... being a Member / Members of

SHYAM TELECOM LIMITED, hereby a pp o in t..................................................... o f..............................................

o r failing him /her..............................................................  o f.......................................................................  o r failing

h im /her............................................................................  o f............................................................................................

as m y/our Proxy to  attend and vote fo r me / us on my / our behalf at the 18™ AN N U AL GENERAL MEETING 

of SHYAM TELECOM LIMITED to  be held at 12.00 Noon on Monday, 5* September 201 I, at Hotel Marriot 

Near Jawahar Circle Ashram Marg,Tonk Road, Jaipur-302015, Rajasthan, India o r at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ■day of 201 I.

*Applicable fo r holding in electronic form

Note: The Proxy fo rm  du ly  com p le te d  m ust be depos ited  a t the Registered O ffice  o f  the  Com pany, no t less than  
FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the tim e o f  holding the meeting.The Proxy need not be a M em ber o f  the Company.



CORPORATE INFORMATION

BO AR D  OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Rajiv Mehrotra Chairman & Managing D irector

Mr. Ajay Khanna 

Mr.AlokTandon 

Mr. Achintya Karati 

*Mr. Ravi Kant jaipuria 

Dr.Vinod Juneja 

Mr. P. K. Bhatia 

Mr. C. S. Malhotra 

Mr. Arun Khanna 

Mr. N. Kumbhat

Managing D irector

Managing D irector

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

(*M r. Ravi K ant Ja ipuria  w ere  on the  Board up to  
I I th February, 2011)

VICE PRESIDENT (LEGAL) & COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Dharmender Dhingra

DEPOSITORY

• National Securities Depository Ltd.

4th Floor.Trade World,

Kamla Mills Compound,

Senapati Bapat Marg,

Lower Parel,

Mumbai-400013, India

Ph.: 91-22-24994200

Fax; 91-22-24972993/24976351

• Centra l Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Phirozejeejeebhoy Towers,

17th Floor, Dalai Street,

Mumbai-400 001, India 

Ph.: 91-22-22723333-3224 

Fax; 91-22-22723199/22722072

M/s Mehra Goel & Co. 

Chartered Accountants, 

505, Chiranjiv Towers,

43, Nehru Place,

New Delhi-1 10019, India.

BANKERS
United Bank of India 

Bank of Baroda 

State Bank of India

E Q U IT Y  SHARES L IS TIN G
Equity Shares of the Company are listed at BSE & NSE.

REGISTERED OFFICE
MTSTower, 3,Amrapali Circle, 

Vaishali Nagar, Jaipur 302021 

Rajasthan, India 

Ph.: 91-141-5100343 

Fax: 91-141-5100310

R EG ISTRAR AN D TRANSFERAG ENTS
Indus Portfolio Pvt. Ltd.

G-65, Bali Nagar 

New D elh i-110015, India 

E-mail: rnt@indusinvest.com 

Ph.: 91-1 1-47671200, 47671214 

Fax: 91-1 1-25449863

CORPORATE OFFICE
A-60, Naraina Industrial Area, 

Phase-1

New Delhi-1 10028, India 

Ph.: 91-1 I -4 I4 I  1071/72/73 

Fax: 91-1 1-25792194

Printed at A n u p a m  A r t  P r in te rs ,  N ew  Delhi-28. T  45280000, F 25704888, E anupamprinters@ yahoo.co.in

mailto:rnt@indusinvest.com
mailto:anupamprinters@yahoo.co.in


www.shyamtelecom.com

REGD.OFFICE:
MTS Towers,

3, Amrapali Circle,
Vaishali Nagar, Jaipur-302021 

Rajasthan, India y
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